
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
October 6, 2011, Regular Meeting 


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the September 1, 2011 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 







 2


 
D. Waive the full reading of the text and adopt, by title only, Ordinance 47, 


Replacing Section 2000 of the District’s Policies and Procedures 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Public Hearing; Discussion/Action re Resolution 11-25, Approving the 2010 


Urban Water Management Report Plan, Including Approval of Method 1, the 
Gallons per Capita Per Day Approach, for Meeting the Water Conservation 
Goals of SBx7-7 (Est. time 15 min.) 


 
B. Presentation by Monte Rio Recreation and Park District re Russian River 


Watershed Adventure Park and Wonderland Trail (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Future Updates to the Policies and Procedures Manual 


(Est. time 20 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re Design Services and Construction Management and 


Inspection Services for the 2013 Capital Improvement Project (CIP) (Est. time 15 
min.) 


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS (Est. time 


5 min.) 
 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 20 min.) 
 
 A. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957- Public Employee 


 Performance Evaluation 
 Title: General Manager 


 
 
IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 
 


ADJOURN 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
Regular Meeting  
September 1, 2011 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Victoria Wikle 
 Jim Quigley 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Richard Holmer 
   
Board Members Absent: (None) 
 
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     Nancy Thorington, District Counsel 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Jim Quigley at 6:31 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 


p.m.) 
 
It was agreed to move Item V-F (Resolution of Appreciation for Mike Gogna) to be discussed after 
Item V-A. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.) 
 
Director Wikle moved to approve the Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Robb-Wilder 
seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  The following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the August 4, 2011 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: 
 
D. Approval of Resolution 11-21, Authorizing and Revoking Signers to the West 


America Bank Accounts  
 


 1







IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.) 
 
None. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:32 p.m.) 
 
A. (6:32 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 11-24, Appointing Nancy 


Thorington of Meyers Nave et al as District Counsel.  The GM provided an overview 
of this item.  Director Holmer moved to approve Resolution 11-24, Appointing Nancy 
Thorington as General Counsel.  Director Wikle seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.   


F. (6:35 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Resolution 11-23, A Resolution of Appreciation for 
Mike Gogna.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  Director 
Wikle moved to approve Resolution 11-23, Expressing Appreciation for the Services of 
Mike Gogna as District Counsel.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.    


B. (6:37 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 11-17, Accepting CIP IV-B, 
Project 2 (KAT Construction) and to Sign and Record a Notice of Completion.  The 
GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  Director Wikle moved to 
approve Resolution 11-17, Authorizing the General Manager to Accept CIP IV-B, Project 
2, and to Sign and Record a Notice of Completion.  Director Holmer seconded.  Motion 
carried 5-0.   


C. (6:41 p.m.) Discussion/Action re 2010 Urban Water Management Report Plan.  The 
GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was taken.  


D. (7:08 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Introduction by title only of Ordinance 47, 
Replacing Section 2000 of the District’s Policies and Procedures.  The GM provided 
an overview of this item.  Director Robb-Wilder introduced Ordinance 47, Replacing 
Section 2000 of the District’s Policies and Procedures, by title only and waiving full 
reading of the ordinance.  Director Wikle seconded.  Discussion ensued.  Motion carried 
5-0.  


E. (7:17 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Leak on Rio Vista Terrace, Project 2 Addition.  The 
GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken. 


F. (This item was moved to after Item A.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:36 p.m.) 
 
The GM reported on the following items: 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water Production and Sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Summer river flow chart 
5. CIP IV-B, Project 2 status 
6. 2012 CIP status 
7. Toilet Rebate Program 
8. In-house construction projects 
9. Urban Water Management Plan 
10. Sonoma County Water Agency Water Rights Permit Revision Protest 
11. Gantt Chart 
 
 


 2







 3


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(7:32 p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (7:32 p.m.) 
 
At 7:32 p.m. President Quigley announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 7:33 
p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 8 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the following 
actions on Closed Session items were announced: 
 


A. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957 – Public Employee Performance 
Evaluation 


  Title: General Manager 
  No action was taken. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:01 p.m.) 
 
1. Urban Water Management Plan 
2. Leak on Rio Vista addition project 
3. GM performance evaluation 
4. Future Policies & Procedures review 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:04 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Jim Quigley:  ______________ _ ______  
Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:32 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:36 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(7:32 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (7:32 p.m.)

		A. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957 – Public Employee Performance Evaluation





		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:01 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






 SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. III-D  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: October 6, 2011  
 
Subject:  ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 47 REVISING SECTION 2000 OF 
DISTRICT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Waive the full reading of the text and adopt, by title only, 
Ordinance 47, Replacing Section 2000 of the District’s Policies and Procedures.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Ordinance 47, revision of Section 2000 of the District’s Policies and Procedures, was 
introduced at the September 1, 2011 meeting.  Because there have been no changes from 
the Ordinance 47 that was introduced, staff is not recirculating hard copies of the Ordinance 
Exhibits.  Please review the September 1 agenda package for the track changes (Exhibit A) 
and clean (Exhibit B) hard copy versions of the proposed Section 2000 associated with 
Ordinance 47.  Electronic versions are available with this distribution.   
 
The review of the past months has had the purposes of reducing duplicative language – both 
in general and with the Union Memorandum of Understanding, correcting mistakes, changing 
the policies to make them more up-to-date and more in keeping with current District 
practices, avoid reference to specific numbers (amounts) that are subject to change, and 
avoiding restating State or Federal law which may be subject to change.   The review of 
Section 2000 was greatly aided by our legal intern, Patricia Doyle, the legal staff at Meyers 
Nave, and Director Robb-Wilder, who spent much time reviewing the document and 
developing the Table of Contents and referencing which is available in the final electronic 
version.   
 
Staff recommend adoption of Ordinance 47.  Ordinance 47 will become effective 30 days 
after adoption.   







ORDINANCE NO. 47 
 


AN ORDINANCE OF SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT REPLACING 
SECTION 2000 OF THE DISTRICT’S POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 


 
  


WHEREAS, Section 2000 of the Sweetwater Springs Water District’s Policies and 
Procedures contains important policies regarding personnel activities and actions, and;  
 
WHEREAS, the District’s Policies and Procedures direct review of Section 2000 on a 
periodic basis; and  
 
WHEREAS, District staff, legal counsel and the Board of Directors have reviewed, 
discussed, and revised numerous sections of Section 2000 over the past year; and  
 
WHEREAS, the purpose of reviewing Section 2000 was to update the Policies to reflect 
current practices and current law, reduce duplication generally, reduce conflicts and 
duplication with the Union Memorandum of Understanding, improve wording, and eliminate 
references and legal descriptions that are incorrect, and/or subject to change; and 
 
WHEREAS, Exhibit A attached shows the changes recommended by this review and Exhibit 
B attached is a clean, final version of Section 2000. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs 
Water District, County of Sonoma, as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Section 2000 of the District’s Policies and Procedures is hereby replaced with a 
new section 2000, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit B. 


Section 2.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for 
any reason held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unconstitutional, such 
decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of the Ordinance.  The Board 
hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance and each section, subsection, 
sentence, clause and phrase thereof irrespective of the fact that one or more sections, 
subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases may be held invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
Section3.  Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after the 
date of its adoption by the Board of Directors.  







Ordinance No. 47. Replacing Section 2000 of the District’s Policies and Procedures 
October 6, 2011 2 
 
 
This Ordinance was adopted on October 6, 2011, on roll call by the following vote: 
  
 Jim Quigley    
 Gaylord Schaap:   
 Victoria Wikle:    
 Richard Holmer:   
 Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______ 
     
           
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board 
ATTEST: 
  
  
    
Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board 
 





		Item III-D - Adoption of Ordinance 47, Revision of P&P Section 2000

		Meeting Date: October 6, 2011 



		Item III-D.1 - Ordinance 47 - Replacing Section 2000






Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 2000 - 2999 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL 
 
 
 
 SECTIONS 
 


Policy Title:     Executive Officer 
  Personnel Policy Review and Ratification 
Policy Title: Employee Classifications / /Compensation 
  Hours of Work and Overtime 
  Vacation 
  Holidays 
Sick Leave 
Leaves of Absence 
2060  Insurance and Retirement Benefits 
2070  Open Door 
2080  Internal Complaint Review 
Termination, Discipline, and Rules of Conduct 
Smoking / Dress / Grooming / Health Standards 
Employment of Relatives 
Safety Program 
Security / Confidential Information 
Workplace 
2170  Solicitation, Distribution and Bulletin Boards 
Non-Fraternization 
Harassment 
Conflicts of Interest 
Inspections and Searches 
Drug Free Workplace 
2230  Proof of Right to Work 
Travel / Educational Reimbursement 
Advancement of Wages 
Continuity of Service and Employment 
Employer - Employee Relations 


 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2000 EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2000 EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
 
Section 2000  Ordinance Introduction, September 1, 2011 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


Policy Title:     Executive Officer 
Policy Number:     2000 
Date Approved:     December 8, 1992 
Date Revised:        October 6, 2011_______________ 
 
 2000.10 The General Manager shall be the Executive Officer of the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District. 
 
 2000.20 The terms and conditions of the General Manager's employment 
shall be specified in the agreement of employment established between the General 
Manager and the Board of Directors.  The General Manager shall serve at the pleasure 
of the Board of Directors. 
 
 2000.30 Whenever the agreement of employment established between the 
General Manager and the Board of Directors is in conflict with any District policy, said 
agreement of employment shall prevail. 
 
 2000.40 The duties of the General Manager shall include all those duties 
outlined in the State of California Water Code Section 30580 and 30581 incorporated 
herein by reference.  Additionally, the General Manager or his /her designee shall serve 
as the clerk of the BoardBboard. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2001 PERSONNEL POLICY REVIEW AND RATIFICATION 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
2001 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2001 PERSONNEL POLICY REVIEW AND RATIFICATION 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


Policy Title:     Personnel Policy Review and Ratification 
Policy Number:    2001 
Date Approved: July 6, 2005 (Ordinance 28) 
Date Revised:  October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2001  Sections 2001 to 3000 of the District Policies and Procedures 
Manual (Personnel Policy) shall be annually reviewed periodicallyannuallyperiodically  
by District staff and District CounselCcounsel, at least as often as directly after the Board 
of Directors’ approval of a Memorandum of Understanding with the designated 
Employee Organization representing District employees. and ratified by the Board of 
Directors. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2005 EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATIONS / COMPENSATION 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
2005   
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2005 EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATIONS / COMPENSATION 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


Policy Title: Employee Classifications / /Compensation 
Policy Number: 2005 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised: __3/14/02 (Resolution 02-10), October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2005.10 This policy shall apply to all District employees. 
 
 2005.20 Employee Classifications: 
 
  2005.21 By Number of Hours Worked 
 
   (1)  Full-Time Employees:  Full-time employees are all those 
having a regular work schedule of forty (40) hours per week. 
 
   (2)  Part-Time Employees:  Part-time employees are all those 
having a regular work schedule of less than forty (40) hours per week. 
 
  2005.22 By Length of Employment 
 
   (1)  Temporary Employees:  Temporary employees are all those 
hired under special assignment with the specific understanding that such work will be 
completed within a short period of time. 
 
   (2)  Regular Employees:  Regular employees are all others. 
 
  2005.23 By Method of Payment 
 
   (1)  Salaried Employees:  Salaried employees are all those who 
are paid a fixed salary and not by the hour.  These positions are usually 
management/supervisorial positions. 
 
   (2)  Hourly Employees:  Hourly employees are all those whose 
wages are paid by the hour and fluctuate according to the number of hours worked.







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2005 EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATIONS / COMPENSATION 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
 
 
  2005.24 By Eligibility for Overtime 
 
   (1)  Nonexempt Employees:  Nonexempt employees are all 
those who are eligible to be paid for overtime work in accordance with the provisions of 
applicable wage and hour laws. 
 
   (2)  Exempt Employees:  Exempt employees are all those who 
are not eligible for overtime pay. 
 
 2005.30 Compensation 
 
  2005.31  Salary ranges:    Salaries for each position shall be within the 
salary range that is assigned to the position based on the position's duties and 
responsibilities, according to a salary schedule approved by resolution of the Board of 
Directors.  Salary ranges for all positions are evaluated on a periodic basis, at least as 
frequently as the approval of a Memorandum of Understanding with the Employee 
Organization.  
 
   
2005.32 Compensation at Hiring: 
 
   (1)  New Employees:  Unless authorized by a majority vote of the 
Board of Directors, all newly appointed employees shall be paid at the first step of the 
salary range for the position to which the employee is appointed except as provided 
elsewhere herein. 
 
    
  2005.33 Merit Advancement Within Range 
 
   (1)  Merit Advancement:  Merit advancement increases are 
provided when, in the opinion of the Supervisor and/or General Manager an employee's 
performance warrants an adjustment in salary.  Merit increases are based on job 
performance, evaluations, and observation of an employee's work and can be affected 
by attitude, special training or educational courses.  In the field positions, merit increases 
may be awarded when an employee receives certification from the State of California for 
Graded Water Treatment Operator licenses.  Salary review on an individual basis will be 
scheduled at least once each year and more frequently if warranted. 
 
 
    
 2005.40 Promotion 
 
  2005.41 It shall be the policy of the District to promote from within 
whenever possible, and to encourage employees to apply for all positions for which they 
are qualified.  A recruitment will take place for all vacancies within a classification and a 
hiring list shall be maintained for a reasonable period of time and may be extended for 
up to one year by the General Manger. 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2005 EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATIONS / COMPENSATION 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
 2005.50 Performance Development Program 
 
  2005.51 Employees receive performance reviews after the first six 
(6) months of employment and annually thereafter.  More frequent performance review 
schedules may be established for specific employees.   
 
  2005.52 The purpose of the review is to evaluate the current level 
of performance of an employee and to examine the progress made since the last review 
as well as establish goals for the next review.  Performance reviews should not be 
confused with salary increases.  While performance reviews may affect the salary 
increases, they are separate issues and a satisfactory performance review does not 
always indicate an increase in salary, and likewise, an increase in salary can be 
awarded without a performance review. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2010 HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
2010







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2010 HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


Policy Title:     Hours of Work and Overtime 
Policy Number:    2010 
Date Approved: November 17, 1992 (Reso. No. 104) 
Date Revised: July 1, 1993; November 30, 1995; September 2, 2004, July 6, 2005, 
October 6, 2011 
 
 
 
 
 2010.10 This policy shall apply to all employees. 
 
 2010.15 Timesheet Documentation.  All employees must submit and sign a 
bi-weekly timecard certifying the accuracy of all time recorded for compensation.  All 
timecards must be approved with a supervisor’s signature.  Any revisions to a timecard 
shall be crossed out, versus erased or “whited” out.  Any revisions must be initialed by 
either the employee or the supervisor approving that employee’s timecard. 
 
 2010.20 Hours of Work:  District office hours are from 8:00 A.M. to 
4:54:030 P.M., Monday through Friday,., April 1st through September 31st (summer 
hours), and 8:00 A.M. to 4:30 P.M. Monday through Friday, October 1st through 
March 31st (winter hours) . Regular Ffield operation is from 7:30 A.M. to 4:00 P.M. 
Sunday Monday through Friday .  Saturday.  Field crewAll staff shall be provided one-
half (1/2) hour for lunch.  Office employees have a choice of one (l) hour for lunch and 
working until 5:00 P.M. or one-half (1/2) hour for lunch and working until 4:30 P.M.  All 
employees receive two fifteen (15) minute breaks, one in the morning and one in the 
afternoon.  All employees work eight (8) hours per day and are compensated for their 
break periods.  Employees are not compensated for lunch periods. 
 
 2010.30 Overtime Definition and Rates of Pay: 
 
  2010.31 All nonexempt employees who work more than eight (8) 
hours in one work day or more than forty (40) hours in one work week will receive 
overtime pay as computed for employees in accordance with the Memorandum of 
Understanding with the designated Employee Organization representing District 
Employees.  .as follows: 
 
  (1)  Overtime compensated at the rate of 1 1/2 times the employees 
regular rate of pay will be provided for all hours worked in excess of forty (40) in one 
workweek, for the first four (4) hours in excess of eight (8) in any one workday, and for 
the first eight (8) hours on the seventh day of work in one work week; 
 
  (2)  Overtime at the rate of two (2) times the employee's regular rate of 
pay will be provided for all hours worked in excess of twelve (12) in one work day, and 
for all hours worked in excess of eight (8) on the seventh day of work in one work week 
and any work scheduled on a holiday. 
 
  (3)  Overtime will be computed on actual minutes worked adjusted to the 
nearest increment of fifteen (15) minutes. 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2010 HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
 
  (4)  Only those hours that are actually worked are added together to 
determine an employee's overtime pay.  Compensated holidays, for example, are not 
hours worked and, therefore, are not counted in making overtime calculations. 
 
  (5)  All salaried positions within the district shall be designated as 
"Management Positions" and as such are not compensated for overtime. 
 
  2010.32 Pre-Authorization - No nonexempt employee may work 
overtime without the express prior approval of his or her supervisor. 
 
 2010.40 On Call -  On call/shift differential:  Operations employees 
scheduled for on-call duty will be paid $17.00 for each on-call weekday shift scheduled 
and $20.00 for each on-call weekend shift scheduled.  If an employee responds to an 
emergency call, the employee will be paid at overtime rates for hours over eight (8) in a 
day or forty (40) hours in a week worked.  Scheduled on call will rotate among all 
operations staff.  When an employee is on-call he/she shall be provided a pager which 
will provide notification in the event of an emergency repair/maintenance work need.  
Said pager shall be kept in the on-call employee's possession during the entire on-call 
period of time.  Notification of an emergency repair/maintenance work need may also be 
given verbally, in person or by telephone, by the General Manager, Field Supervisor, or 
Grade II Operator. 
 
  2010.41 When an employee is on-call he/she shall be free to utilize 
his/her time as desired, but must remain able to respond to an emergency situation 
within forty-five (45) minutes from the time said emergency call is received by them.  On 
call employees shall be subject to the provisions of the Drug Free Workplace policy 
during the time they are on call. 
 
  2010.42 An on call employee may trade with another operational 
employee asso long as the General Manager and Field Supervisor are notified of the 
change prior to the commencement of the on call duty shift. 
shall be reimbursed and follow other provisions of On Call duties according to the 
relevant sections of the Memorandum of Understanding with the designated Employee 
Organization representing District Employees. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2020 VACATION 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
2020







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2020 VACATION 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


Policy Title:     Vacation 
Policy Number:    2020 
Date Approved: November 17, 1992 (Reso. No. 104) 
Date Revised:  __ October 6, 2011_____________ 
 
 
 2020.10 The District has established a vacation plan to provide eligible 
employees with a period of rest and relaxation without loss of pay or benefits. 
 
  2020.11 Eligibility - All regular full-time employees begin accruing 
vacation benefits upon commencement of employment.  Any accrued vacation benefits 
may not be used until the employee has completed at least six (6) months of continuous 
service, measured from the date of commencement of employment.  Regular part-time 
employees working a minimum of twenty (20) hours per week accrue vacation on a pro-
rataratea basis.  "Continuous service" means service that is uninterrupted by termination 
of employment and subsequent rehire by the District.  Temporary employees and 
employees who work less than twenty (20) hours per week do not accrue vacation 
benefits.  Employees moving from a part-time position to a full-time position shall have 
their vacation pay entitlement calculated from the date of hire, based upon the number of 
hours workedbecoming eligible in accordance with the Memorandum of Understanding 
with the designated Employee Organization representing District Employees. 
 
  2020.12 Accrual - Employees are entitled to vacation as follows: 
 
Commencement of Employment 
through First Year:    7/12 of one day for 
      each full month 
      worked up to a maximum 
      of seven (7) days for 
      the first year. 
 
Second year through Fifth Year:  10/12 of one day  
      for each full month 
      worked up to a maximum 
      of 10 days per year. 
 
Sixth year through Tenth Year:  15/12 of one day for 
      each full month worked 
      up to a maximum of 15 
      days per year. 
 
Eleventh year and Thereafter:  20/12 of one day for 
       each full month worked 
      up to a maximum of 20 
      days per year. 
 
 2020.13 Administration: 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2020 VACATION 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
  (1) Maximum Accrual:  Vacation accruals may not exceed twice an 
employee’s current annual entitlement (for example, six weeks30 days for an employee 
with more than five years of service).  Once this maximum is reached, all further 
accruals will cease.  Vacation accruals will recommence after the employee has taken 
vacation and the accrued vacation has dropped below the two-year maximum accrual. 
 
  (2)  Vacation Use:  All vacation days shall be taken no later than the 
calendar year immediately following the year in which they accrue, unless prior 
supervisor approval is obtained.  Employees may take their vacation time all at once, or 
gradually, with the prior approval of their supervisor. 
 
  (3)  Vacation Advances:  An employee may not take vacation before 
they have earned it, without the express authorization of the General Manager. 
 
  (4)  No Pay in Lieu of Vacation:  No employee will receive pay in lieu of 
vacation except on termination of his or her employment as provided for in Section (7) 
below. 
 
  (54)  Approval:  All vacations must be approved in advance by the 
employee’s supervisor. 
 
  (65)  Scheduling Conflicts:  Each January, vacations may be scheduled 
according to seniority.  Thereafter, scheduling of vacation will be done on a first come, 
first served basis at the discretion of the General Manager and should be scheduled at 
least one month in advance. 
 
  (76)  Vacation Pay on Termination:  On termination of employment, an 
employee will be paid all accrued but unused vacation. 
 
  (87)  Holidays:  A holiday that falls during a vacation period will be 
treated as a holiday and not as a day of vacation taken. 
 
  (98)  Vacation Accrual During Leaves of Absence:  If an employee 
takes an unpaid leave of absence, they will not earn vacation during the leave.  Vacation 
accruals will recommence when the employee returns to work. 
 
  (10)  Accrued vacation must be taken in increments of at least eight (8) 
hours. 
 
  (119)  Salaried employees will receive an additional five (5) days  of 
vacation each year to compensate for the loss of paid overtime. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2030 HOLIDAYS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
2030







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2030 HOLIDAYS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


Policy Title:     Holidays 
Policy Number:    2030 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  ___ October 6, 2011____________ 
 
 
 2030.10 Paid Holidays:  The District provides full-time employees the 
following paid holidays each year: 
 
NEW YEARS DAY - MARTIN LUTHER KING'S BIRTHDAY - PRESIDENTS' DAY - 
MEMORIAL DAY - INDEPENDENCE DAY - LABOR DAY - VETERAN'S DAY 
THANKSGIVING DAY - FRIDAY AFTER THANKSGIVING DAY and CHRISTMAS DAY 
 
  2030.11 In addition to the above listed holidays, each employee will 
be entitled to two (2) floating holidays to be scheduled by the General Manager on 
January 1st of each year.  If not scheduled by the General Manager, floating holidays 
are taken at the discretion of the employee, but must be taken within the business year.   
 
  2030.12 For each recognized holiday, eligible employees will 
receive a day off with pay. 
 
 2030.20 Pay in Lieu of Time Off:  The District may, in its discretion, require 
employees to work on scheduled holidays and provide pay in lieu of time off. 
 
 2030.30 Payment for Holidays:  In order to qualify to receive holiday pay an 
employee must work the scheduled day prior to and after the holiday. 
 
 2030.40 Weekends and Vacations:  When a scheduled holiday holidays 
falls on a Sunday, it will be observed on the following Monday.  When a scheduled 
holidayholidays falls on a Saturday, it will be observed on the preceding Friday.  
Holidays that occur during youran employee’s vacation will not be counted as vacation 
days. 
 
 2030.50 Eligibility:  Part-time and temporary employees are ineligible for 
holiday benefits.  All employees are ineligible for holidayholidays benefits that accrue 
while on leave of absence or during a disciplinary time off without pay situation. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2040 SICK LEAVE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
2040   
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2040 SICK LEAVE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


Policy Title: Sick Leave 
Policy Number:    2040 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  ____ October 6, 2011___________ 
 
 
 2040.10 In order to help prevent loss of earnings that may be caused by 
accident or illness, the District has established paid sick leave. 
 
 2040.20 Eligibility:  All regular full-time employees begin accruing sick 
leave benefits upon commencement of employment at the rate of one day for each full 
month worked cumulative up to a maximum of twelve (12) days sick leave per calendar 
year.  Eligible regularrRegular part-time employees are eligible to accrue sick leave on a 
pro-rata basis.  Temporary employees are ineligible to earn or receive sick leave 
benefits. 
 
 2040.30 Use: 
 
  2040.31 Sick leave may be taken for personal illness or disability in 
the employee's immediate family.  "Immediate family" is defined as the employee's 
registered domestic partner, spouse, employee’s, registered domestic partner’s or 
spouse’s children, or parents.   Registered Domestic Partner is defined in Family Code 
Section 297.  During each calendar year employees may use a minimum of up to one-
half of their annual allotment of sick leave to attend to illness or disability in the 
employee’s immediate family.   Registered Domestic Partner is defined in Family Code 
Section 297.  2040.31 Sick leave may be taken for personal illness or disability in the 
employee's immediate family.  "Immediate family" is defined as the employee's domestic 
partner, children or parents. 
 
  2040.32 Hours absent for medical and dental appointments will be 
treated as sick leave. 
 
  2040.33 The District retains the right to request a verification from a 
licensed medical practitioner for any absence due to illness or disability.  Sick pay may 
be withheld if a satisfactory verification is not received. 
 
TOC 2040.40 Pay in Lieu of Sick Leave:  After the maximum accrual of 24 days, 
the District thereafter agrees to pay 50% of sick pay accrued but unused on an annual 
basis.  No sick pay will be paid in lieu of sick leave to employees who terminate their 


employment with the district or who are terminated by the District. 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2050 LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
2050   
 2040.50 Maximum Accrual:  Sick leave accruals may not exceed twenty-
four (24) days.  Once the maximum is reached, all further accruals will cease.  Sick 
leave accruals will recommence after the employee has  taken sick leave and the 
accrued sick leave has dropped below the maximum. 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2050 LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


Policy Title: Leaves of Absence 
Policy Number:    2050 
Date Approved: November 17, 1992 
Date Revised:  August 3, 2006 (Ordinance 25) 
   January 3, 2008 (Ordinance 34) 
   March 5, 2009 (Ordinance 37) 
   , October 6, 2011 
 


2050.10 ScopeIntroduction:   Section 2050 covers:  
 
Leave Without Pay (Personal Leave).  Any employee who needs unpaid time 


off because vacation leave accumulations have been exhausted,  may be considered 
eligible for leave without pay (2050.20 et seq). 


 
Medical Disability Leave.  Any employee who, as a result of a medical disability, 


becomes unable to perform the essential functions of his or her position, and any 
employee who becomes disabled on account of pregnancy, may be considered eligible 
for a medical disability leave (2050.30 et seq). 


 
Paid Family Leave.  Any employee who needs to attend to the birth, adoption, or 


serious illness of a child, or to care for a parent, spouse or registered domestic partner 
with a serious health condition may be considered eligible for paid family leave (2050.40 
et seq). 


 
Industrial Leave (Worker’s Compensation)  Any employee who, as a result of 


an injury at work, is temporarily unable to work at the District in any capacity on the 
medical advice of the workers compensation doctor of record, will be considered on 
industrial leave (2050.50 et seq). 


 
Any employee who, as a result of a medical disability, becomes unable to 


perform the duties of his or her position, and any employee who becomes disabled on 
account of pregnancy, may be considered eligible for a medical disability leave. 


 
 Any employee who needs to attend to the birth, adoption, or serious 


illness of a child, or to care for a parent, spouse or domestic partner with a serious 
health condition may be considered eligible for family medical leave and/or paid family 
leave. 


 
 Any employee who, as a result of an injury at work, is temporarily unable 


to work at the District in any capacity on the medical advice of the workers compensation 
doctor of record, will be considered on industrial leave. 
 
 


2050.20 Leave Without Pay (Personal Leave): 
 


2050.21  The General Manager may grant employees leave of absence without 
pay for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days.  No leave shall be granted except upon 
written request of the employee.  Such requests shall be submitted to the General 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2050 LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
Manager.  Such leaves shall normally be granted to permit the employee to engage in 
activities that will increase his or her value to the District upon return, or because of 
personal hardship.  Employees may not be granted a leave of absence until all accrued 
vacation is taken.  Failure on the part of an employee on leave to report promptly at its 
expiration may result in dismissal of the employee. Vacation and sick leave credits shall 
not accrue to an employee on leave of absence.  The decision of the General Manager 
on granting or refusing to grant a leave of absence or extension thereof shall be final. 


 
2050.22   Medical Insurance Contribution during Leave Without Pay. In situations 


when an employee has exhausted all eligible leave and the employee is on a leave 
without pay, the employee shall be required to contribute one-half of the monthly 
premium for health, dental and vision insurance prior to the District making its 
contribution. 
 
 
 2050.2030 Medical Disability Leave: 
 
  2050.2030.5 Introduction: Any regular full-time employee who, as a 
result of a medical disability, becomes unable to perform the essential functionsduties of 
his or her position, and any employee who becomes disabled on account of pregnancy, 
may be eligible for placement on medical leave of absence.  Such medical leave of 
absence will be considered paid leave until exhaustion of the employee’s earned paid 
time off, (which includes accumulated sick leave, vacation, any unused floating holidays, 
administrative leave, or compensatory time), except that the employee shall have the 
option of leaving up to five (5) earned vacation days unexhausted for use following their 
return to work.  All other paid time off shall be exhausted at the beginning of the leave, 
with the remainder of the medical leave considered unpaid leave. 
 
  2050.2131 Duration of Disability Leave:  The leave shall continue so 
long as the employee remains unable to perform the essential functions of the 
employee’s position and there remains a reasonable basis to believe the employee will 
be able to resume performance of the essential functions at the end of the leaveextends 
for the duration of the disability, up to a maximum of 180 calendar120 business days, 
measured from the onset of the disability.  Additional extensions of leave time beyond 
180 calendar120 business days may be granted upon written request of the employee at 
the sole discretion of the General Manager, or, if the General Manager is unavailable or 
is requesting the leave, the Board of Directors. 
 
  2050.2232 Verification of Disability:  The District reserves the right 
to request at any time that an employee confirm the existence and anticipated duration 
of his or her disability with a written verification from a licensed physician.   
 
  2050.2333 Sick Leave Accrual, Vacation Accrual, Holiday Pay, 
and Continuation of Paid Benefits:   
 


2050.233.1 Fully paid disability leave: During any period of 
fully paid absence relative to disability leave, the employee shall accrue 
paid time off and paid benefits. 


 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2050 LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2050.2333.2 Partially paid, or part-time, disability leave:  
During any period of part-time absence relative to disability leave, the 
employee shall accrue pro-rated paid time off and pro-rated retirement 
benefits.  For the first sixty (60) ninetysixty (9060) calendarbusiness days 
of the any part-time absence due to disability leave, medical, dental, and 
other District paid insurance benefits will continue to be paid by the 
District in accordance with the District’s normal share for the employee.  
After the first sixty (ninetysixty (9060) days of partially paid or part-time 
disability leave, medical, dental, and other District-paid insurance benefits 
will continue for a maximum of an additional sixty (60) ninetysixty (9060) 
calendarbusiness days of disability leave so long as the employee pays 
the lesser of fifty percent (50%) or their pro-rated share of the District’s 
normal share for the employee for such insurance, in addition to the full 
employee’s normal share of such insurance. 


 
2050.2333.3 Unpaid disability leave: Neither sick leave nor 


vacation shall accrue during any period of unpaid absence relative to 
disability leave.  Employees on unpaid leave also do not receive holiday 
pay.  Medical, dental, and other District-paid insurance benefits will 
continue to be paid by the District in accordance with the District’s normal 
share for the employee for the first sixty (60) ninetysixty (9060) 
calendarbusiness days of any unpaid  and/or partially paid disability 
leave.  After the first sixty (ninetysixty (9060) days of unpaid and/or 
partially paid disability leave, medical, dental, and other insurance 
benefits will continue for a maximum of an additional sixty (60) ninetysixty 
(9060) calendarbusiness days of disability leave so long as the employee 
pays fifty percent (50%) of the District’s normal share for the employee for 
such insurance, in addition to the full employee’s normal share of such 
insurance.   


 
Additional extensions of benefit time beyond calendar120 business days may be 


granted, upon written request by the employee, at the sole discretion of the General 
Manager, or, if the General Manager is unavailable or is requesting the leave, the Board 
of Directors. 
 
  2050.2434 Notice of Leave:  Employees whose disability leaves can 
be anticipated (i.e., leave for scheduled surgery or leave for pregnancy) are required to 
provide two weeks' advance written notice of the anticipated start of their period of 
disability. 
 
  2050.2535 Verification of Ability to Return:  The District reserves 
the right to require written verification from a licensed physician that an employee is 
physically fit to return to duty before permitting the employee to return to work. 
 
  2050.2636 Return to Part-Time Work:  An employee who has not 
fully recovered from his or her medical disability may request a return to work on a part-
time basis.  Such request must be accompanied by a written release from a licensed 
physician indicating that the employee is capable of performing work on a part-time 
basis.  Such request will may be granted at the sole discretion of the General Manager 
(or, if the General Manager is unavailable or is requesting the part-time work, the Board 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2050 LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
of Directors) based upon the needs of the District and the likelihood of, and the time in 
frame in which, the employee will return to full-time work.  If the request can be 
accommodated, the employee will be compensated according to his or her part-time 
work schedule (and will cease to be covered by the District's salary continuation policy 
for short-term disabilities).  District paid benefits will be paid in accordance with Section 
2050.23 33 above. 
 
  2050.2737 Subsequent Leave for the Same Disability:  If an 
employee returns to work from an approved disability leave of absence before the lapse 
of the maximum leave period of 120 business180 days measured from the onset of 
disability and thereafter is granted one or more additional leaves for the same disability, 
the additional leaves may continue only until the employee has spent a combined total of 
120 business180 days absent from work due to disability.  After the lapse of 120 
business180 days of absence for the same disability, the District will consider medical 
separation or disability retirement as applicableemployee's employment with the District 
may be terminated, as discussed furtherfurtherprovided in Paragraph 2050.28 38 below.  
Whether or not additional leave is for the “same disability” is the decision of the General 
Manager, or if the General Manager is unavailable or is requesting the leave, the Board 
of Directors. 
 
  2050.2838 Holding of Positions/Termination:  To the extent 
feasible, the District will return the employee to the same position or a comparable 
position for which the employee is qualified at the end of the employee's disability leave.  
If no such positions are available, the District will place the employee on administrative 
leave (paid unless the employee has further paid leave balances)layoff, during which 
time the employee will be given a right of first recall to an opening in his or her same 
position or to an opening in a comparable position for which he or she is qualified.  The 
administrative leavelayoff, however, will last only until the combined period of absence 
due to disability and absence due to administrative leave leavelayoff totals 180 
calendar120 business days.  After the lapse of this period, the employeeemployee's 
employment with the District may be medically separated terminated from the District, as 
determined by the General Manager (or, if the General Manager is unavailable or the 
one on leave, the Board of Directors). 
 
 
 2050.30 Family Medical Leave:   
 


 2050.31 Family Medical Leave.  During each calendar year 
employees may use a minimum of one-half of their annual allotment of sick leave to 
attend to the illness of a child, parent, spouse, or domestic partner of the employee.  
Employees who have been employed by the District for at least one year, and who are 
eligible for other benefits offered by the District are entitled to take up to two (2) months 
of family medical leave within a twelve (12) month period.  During this leave period, 
employees are required to use their accrued paid time off, (which includes accumulated 
sick leave, vacation, any unused eligible floating holidays, and administrative leave).  
After paid time off is exhausted, the leave shall be unpaid.  Family medical leave is 
permitted for the birth, adoption or serious illness of a child, or to care for a parent, 
spouse or domestic partner with a serious health condition. 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2050 LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
The following procedures shall apply only when an employee requests family medical 
leave: 
 
  2050.32 If the need for leave is foreseeable, the employee must 
provide reasonable advance notice to the supervisor or General Manager.  If the leave is 
needed due to a planned medical treatment or supervision, the employee must make a 
reasonable effort to schedule the treatment or supervision to avoid disruption to District 
operations. 
 
  2050.33 If the leave is needed to care for a sick child, spouse, 
domestic partner or parent, the employee must provide a certification from the health 
care provider which states: 
 
   a. Date of commencement of the serious health 


condition 
     
   b. Probable duration of the condition 
 
   c. Estimated amount of time the health care provider 


will provide care 
 
   d. Confirmation that the serious health condition 


warrants participation of a family member 
 
  2050.34 The amount of leave actually granted by the District will be 
determined by what is reasonable under the circumstances and the operational needs of 
the District. 
 
  2050.35 A request for family medical leave may be denied when it is 
determined that to grant the request would be unduly disruptive to District operations.  
However, the District may not deny an employee’s request to use a minimum of one half 
of his/her accumulated allotment of sick leave to attend to the illness of a child, parent, 
spouse or domestic partner where the employee has provided adequate medical proof of 
the need for such leave. 
 
  2050.36 The District may deny a family medical leave request to 
care for a child where the child's other parent is already taking family leave or is 
unemployed. 
 
  2050.37 An employee taking family medical leave will be allowed to 
continue participating in any health and welfare benefit plans during a period of unpaid 
leave, as long as the employee pays fifty percent (50%) of the expense for employee 
coverage and may continue coverage for dependents so long as the employee pays the 
full cost of dependent coverage. 
 
  2050.38 The cumulative amount of leave from disability, personal 
leave or family medical leave may not exceed 180 calendar days in duration, measured 
from the first day of the leave. 
 
 2050.40 Paid Family Leave: 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2050 LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
 
  2050.41 Eligibility:  Employees who are covered by State Disability 
Insurance (SDI) are eligible for Family Temporary Disability Insurance (FTDI) benefits 
while taking care of family member(s) in accordance with state law.  These benefits are 
paid by the State Employment Development Department.  There is no requirement that 
the employee have worked for the District any particular length of time before being 
entitled to this leave.  However, no employee can receive more FTDI benefits than he or 
she earned in wages during the base period for calculating benefits.  Employees are not 
eligible if they are receiving State Disability insurance (SDI), workers’ compensation or 
private insurance payments in lieu of such payments. 
 
Employees are eligible for this leave under the following circumstances: 
 
   (1) For the birth and care of a newborn child, or the placement 
and initial care of an adopted or foster care child, or 


   (2) To care for an employee’s spouse, child, parent or 
registered domestic partner with a serious health condition.  However, an employee is 
not eligible to receive FTDI benefits for any day that another family member is able and 
available for the same period of time that the employee is providing care.  For example, 
the District may deny a Paid Family Leave request to care for a child where the child’s 
other parent is already taking family leave or is unemployed.  
 
  2050.42 Definitions of all applicable terms will be in accordance 
with state law relating to Family Temporary Disability Insurance (California 
Unemployment Insurance Code section 3300 et seq.). 
 
  2050.43 Request for Leave.  Requests for paid family leave must 
be approved in advance by the employee’s supervisor and General Manager. The 
employee must provide a certification from the health care provider which states: 
 
   a. Date of commencement of the serious health 


condition 
     
   b. Probable duration of the condition 
 
   c. Estimated amount of time the health care provider 


will provide care 
 
   d. Confirmation that the serious health condition 


warrants participation of a family member 
 Since the need for the family leave is included within the need for family medical leave, 
the same procedures for making requests for family medical leave and scheduling of 
leave shall apply to requests for paid family leave.  As with family medical leave, the 
employee must submit medical certification to the District to justify the request for such 
leave. 
 
  2050.44 Duration of Paid Family Leave.  EmployeesAccording to 
law, employees are entitled to a maximum of six (6) weeks paid family leave in a twelve-
(12) month period.  Such leave runs concurrently with family medical leave.  An 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2050 LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
employee is not entitled to more than a maximum of two (2) months leave in a twelve 
(12) month period to care for a family member. 
 
  2050.45 Compensation During Leave.  According to law, 
eEmployees are entitled to be paid FTDI benefits while on family leave, replacing 
approximately fifty-five percent (55%) of an employee’s wages.  Payment for these 
benefits is funded through employee contributions to SDI.  The employee is solely 
responsible to apply for this compensation from the State Employment Development 
Department (EDD).  The district District has no obligation to ensure that employees 
receive FTDI payments. 
 
  2050.46 Waiting Period and Use of Vacation.  The law requires 
that tThere will be a seven (7) day “waiting period” before an employee on family leave 
may begin receiving FTDI payments.  If available, employees must use two (2) weeks of 
earned and unused vacation before receiving FTDI benefits.  The first week of vacation 
shall count as the “waiting period” before the employee may begin receiving FTDI 
payments. 
 
 2050.50 Industrial Disability Leave (Worker’s Compensation) 
 
 Any employee who, as a result of an injury at work, is temporarily unable to work 
at the District in any capacity on the medical advice of the workers compensation doctor 
of record, will be considered on industrial leave. 
 


It is the intent of the District to attempt to have available light duty work for 
employees with an open worker’sworkers compensation claim.  However, should an 
employee’s injuries require a period of part-time or full-time industrial disability leave, the 
provisions below shall apply: 
 
  2050.51 Compensation During Leave.  According to law, 
eEmployees who are entitled to temporary disability indemnity (TDI) will receive 
compensation to replace approximately sixty-seven (67%) of their wages. (Labor Code 
Section 46544564.)  The district District has no obligation to ensure that employees 
receive TDI payments. 
 
  2050.52 Waiting Period and Use of Sick Leave.  The lawLabor 
Code Section 4652 requires that there be a three (3) calendar day “waiting period” 
before an employee may begin receiving TDI payments.  (Labor Code 4652).  If an 
employee misses work during these 3 days, employees must use available sick leave.  
However, if the employee misses more than 3 calendar days and requests and receives 
TDI for the initial 3-day period, they must reimburse the District for any sick leave 
compensation received during that 3-day period.  The sick leave time reimbursed will be 
credited back to the employee’s time-off accruals.  
 
When an employee is receiving full or partial TDI they will have the option of 
supplementing their TDI payment with sick or vacation leave equaling 25% of the hours 
missed on a pay-period to pay-period basis. 


 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2050 LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


 Example 1: An employee who misses a full 80-hour payroll period would 
have the option of using 20 hours of sick or vacation accruals to 
supplement their TDI check;  


 
 Example 2: An employee who misses 40 hours of an 80-hour payroll 


period would have the option of using 10 hours of sick or vacation 
accruals to supplement their TDI check.) 


 
Employees who are working at the District but have an open worker’s compensation 
claim must use their sick leave (or other available leave if their sick leave is exhausted) 
for any claim-related doctor appointments. 


 
  2050.53 Accrual of benefits/time off.  Employees with an open 
worker’sworkers compensation claim shall continue to receive the District-provided 
share for health care, whether they are working at the District during the claim or are on 
industrial leave.  Employees shall remain responsible for the employee share of health 
benefits.   
 
 Employees with an open worker’sworkers compensation claim shall receive pro-
rated retirement benefits contributions in accordance with the number of hours 
worked each pay period. 
 


Employees with an open worker’sworkers compensation claim shall continue to 
receive full time off accruals (sick, vacation, administrative leave), whether or not they 
are working at the District during the claim or are on industrial leave. (Source: Labor 
Code Section 132aA case law)  


 
Employees who have an open worker’s compensation claim will be paid pro-


rated holiday pay in accordance with the number of hours worked during that holiday 
pay period. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2060 INSURANCE AND RETIREMENT BENEFITS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2060  Insurance and Retirement Benefits 
 
   







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2060 INSURANCE AND RETIREMENT BENEFITS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Policy Title: Open Door 
Policy Number: 2060 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised: ___ October 6, 2011____________ 
 
 
 2060.10 The Purpose of the Open Door policy is to implement the 
philosophy of the District that employees should be encouraged to raise their work-
related concerns informally with their supervisors and the General Manager.  The District 
will attempt to keep all such expressions of concern, their investigation, and the terms of 
their resolution confidential, recognizing, however, that in the course of investigating and 
resolving the concerns some dissemination of information to others may be appropriate. 
 
 2060.20 Employees are encouraged to raise work-related concerns with 
their immediate supervisor as soon as possible after the event that causes the concern.  
After discussion with their supervisor, if the problem is still not resolved, the concern 
should be taken to the General Manager who may schedule a meeting with between the 
supervisor and employee to further discuss the matter. 
 
  2060.21 Employees are encouraged to pursue discussion of  work- 
related concerns until the matter is fully resolved.  It may not always be possible to 
achieve the result the employee desiredsyou want, but if not, the District will attempt in 
each case to explain why.  The District believes that employee concerns are best 
addressed through informal and open communication.  No employee will be disciplined 
or otherwise penalized for raising a good-faith concern.  If an employee feels that 
his/hertheir work- related concern should be brought to the attention of the District by 
written complaint and formal investigation, the "Internal Complaint Review" policy may 
be used.should be followed (Section 2070). 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2060 INSURANCE AND RETIREMENT BENEFITS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Policy Title: Insurance and Retirement Benefits 
Policy Number: 2060 
Date Approved: November 17, 1992 (Reso. No. 104) 
Date Revised:  July 1, 1993, October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2060.10 The District provides benefits for its regular full-time eligible 
employees.  The District reserves the right to eliminate or modify any of its benefits at 
any time. 
 
 2060.20 Insurance Benefits 
 
  2060.22 Medical, Dental and Vision Insurance:  All regular full-
time employees and their dependents are eligible to participate in the District's health, 
dental, and vision insurance plan starting the first day of the month following 
commencement of employment.  The terms of this participation shall be defined by the 
Memorandum of Understanding with the designated Employee Organization 
representing District Employees   
 
  2060.24 Conversion/Post Employment Insurance Options:  
Pursuant to the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA), 
eligible employees and their dependents may be entitled to continue insurance coverage 
after employment with the District ceases. 
 
  2060.25 Insurance Coverage Information:  Eligibility requirements 
and further information concerning insurance coverage are fully explained in information 
available from the General Manager. 
 
 2060.30 Retirement Plans 
 
  2060.31 Deferred Compensation.  All employees are eligible to 
participate in the District’s adopted deferred compensation plans at commencement of 
employment.  This is an optional employee benefit to which the District does not 
contribute.  Further information concerning the features and requirements of this plan 
are explained in information available from the General Manager. 
 
  2060.32 Pension Plan.  The District participates in the CalPERS 
retirement program.  All regular full time employees are eligible as well as permanent 
part-time employees who work more that 20 hours per week for a year or more than 
1000 hours in a year.  The district may contribute a percentage of an employee’s base 
salary.   
 


TOC    







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2070 OPEN DOOR 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2070  Open Door 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2070.10 The Purpose of the Open Door policy is to encourage employees 
to raise their work-related concerns informally with their supervisors and the General 
Manager.  The District will attempt to keep all such expressions of concern, their 
investigation, and the terms of their resolution confidential, recognizing, however, that in 
the course of investigating and resolving the concerns some dissemination of 
information to others may be appropriate. 
 
 2070.20 Employees are encouraged to raise work-related concerns with 
their immediate supervisor as soon as possible after the event that causes the concern.  
After discussion with their supervisor, if the problem is still not resolved, the concern 
should be taken to the General Manager who may schedule a meeting with the 
supervisor and employee to further discuss the matter. 
 
  2070.21 Employees are encouraged to pursue discussion of work-
related concerns until the matter is fully resolved.  It may not always be possible to 
achieve the result the employee desires, but if not, the District will attempt in each case 
to explain why.  The District believes that employee concerns are best addressed 
through informal and open communication.  No employee will be disciplined or otherwise 
penalized for raising a good-faith concern.  If an employee feels that his/her work-related 
concern should be brought to the attention of the District by written complaint and formal 
investigation, the "SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Policy Title: Internal Complaint Review” policy should be followed  (Section 2080).  
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2080 INTERNAL COMPLAINT REVIEW 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2080  Internal Complaint Review 
Policy Number:  2070 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  May 5, 2005., October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2080 2070.10 Purpose and Scope:  The purpose of Internal Complaint 
Review is to afford all employees of the District the opportunity to seek internal 
resolution of their work-related complaints.  For purposes of this provision, a “work-
related complaint” is defined as any violation of the District’s Personnel Rules (but does 
not include complaints or grievances related to disciplinary actions).  The “Internal 
Complaint Review Policy" is intended to supplement the "Open Door Policy" described 
under Section 20702060, which states the philosophy of the District that all employees 
have free access to their immediate supervisor and to the General Manager to informally 
express their work-related concerns.  The District will attempt to treat all internal 
complaints and their investigation as confidential, recognizing, however, that in the 
course of investigating and resolving internal complaints some dissemination to others 
may be appropriate.  The provisions of this policy are applicable to those employees not 
covered by a Memorandum of Understanding containing a grievance procedure. 
 
 2080 2070.20 Procedure 
 
  20802070.21 Filing of Complaint:  Complaints should be filed within 
seven (7) days after the date of the events that the employee knew, or reasonably 
should have known, gavegavegive rise to the alleged violation of the District’s Personnel 
Rules by completing a Complaint Form available from the General Manager.  Complaint 
Forms must be filled out completely and must set forth in detail the basis for an 
employee's complaint or violation of the District’s Personnel Rules.  The original of the 
Complaint Form should then be given to the General Manager.  If an employee does not 
present the grievance, or does not appeal the decision rendered regarding the grievance 
within the time limits specified above, the grievance shall be considered resolved.   
 
  20802070.22 Investigation:  The General Manager will date and log all 
Complaint Forms and provide an acknowledgment of receipt to the employee submitting 
the complaint stating that the complaint is under review.  All complaints will be reviewed 
within ten (10) working days of submission. 
 
  20802070.23 The General Manager or his/her designee will investigate 
the allegations of the complaint by meeting separately with the employee filing the 
complaint and others who either are named in the complaint or who may have 
knowledge of the facts set forth therein. 
 
  20802070.24 On completion of its investigation, the General Manager 
will report the conclusions to the employee who filed the complaint.  A copy of all formal 
grievance decisions shall be placed in the employee'semployee's permanent personnel 
file. 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2080 INTERNAL COMPLAINT REVIEW 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


20802070.25.   If the complaint involves the General Manager, the 
complaint shall be given to the Board President.  The Board President shall follow the 
procedure contained in this section.   
 
 2080 2070.30 Appeal:  If an employee is not satisfied with the decision of 
the General Manager, regarding the complaint, the employee may seek review of the 
matter by the District Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall, as soon as 
possible, agendize the complaint for consideration.   The District Board of Directors shall 
determine whether the complaint states a violation of the Personnel Rules, and if so, 
what shall be the remedy.  The decision of the District Board of Directors shall be final.  
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2090 TERMINATION, DISCIPLINE, AND RULES OF CONDUCT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


Termination, Discipline, and Rules of Conduct  
Policy Number: 2080 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  September 1, 2005 (Ord. 27), October 6, 2011 
 
 
 20902080.10 Termination: 
 
  20902080.11 Voluntary Termination:  The District will consider an 
employee to have voluntarily terminated his or her employment if an employee does any 
of the following: 
 


(1) Elects to resign from the District; 
(2) Fails to return from an approved leave of absence on the 


date specified by the District; or 
(3) Fails to report for work without notice to the District for three 


consecutive days without notice to the District. 
 
  20902080.12 Involuntary Termination:  An employee may be 
terminated involuntarily for reasons that may include poor performance, misconduct, or 
other violations of the District's rules of conduct as set forth below.  Notwithstanding this 
list of rules, the District reserves the right to discharge with or without cause and with or 
without prior notice. 
 
  20902080.13 Termination Due to Reorganization, Economics, or 
Lack of Work:  From time to time, the District may need to terminate an employee as a 
consequence of reorganization, job eliminationselimination’s, lack of work, changed 
business conditions, or other factors unrelated to an employee’s performance.  
Termination for any of the foregoing reasons shall be deemed to be “for cause”.  Should 
the District consider such termination’s necessary, the DistrictDdistrict is committed to 
providing all affected employees with advance notice when practical.  Layoff benefits 
associated with such terminationstermination’s, if any, will be as specified in the notice. 
 
 2090 2080.20 Discipline and Rules of Conduct 
 
  20902080.21 Policy:  Employees are expected to observe certain 
standards of job performance and good conduct.  When performance or conduct do not 
meet District standards, the District will endeavor when it deems appropriate to provide 
the employee a reasonable opportunity to correct the deficiency.  If, however, the 
employee fails to make the correction, he or she will be subject to discipline including 
termination. 
 
 The rules set forth below are intended to provide employees with fair notice of 
what is expected of them.  Necessarily, however, such rules cannot identify every type of 
unacceptable conduct and performance.  Therefore, employees should be aware that 
conduct not specifically listed below but which adversely affects or is otherwise 
detrimental to the interests of the District, other employees, or customers, may also 
result in disciplinary action. 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2090 TERMINATION, DISCIPLINE, AND RULES OF CONDUCT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
 
  20902080.22 Job Performance: Employees may be disciplined for poor 
job performance, including but not limited to the following: 
 


1. Below average work quality or quantity; 
2. Poor attitude (for example, rudeness or lack of cooperation 


demonstrated with supervisors, management staff or fellow 
employees); 


3. Excessive absenteeism, tardiness, or abuse of break and 
lunch privileges; 


4. Failure to follow instruction or District procedures, or; 
5. Failure to follow established safety regulations. 


 
  20902080.23 Misconduct:  Employees may be disciplined for 
misconduct, including but not limited to the following: 
 


1. Insubordination; 
2. Dishonesty; 
3. Theft; 
4. Discourtesy; 
5. Misuse of or destroying District property or the property of 


another on District premises; 
6. Violating Conflict of Interest rules; 
7. Disclosing or using confidential or proprietary information 


without authorization; 
8. Falsifying or altering District records, including the 


application for employment; 
9. Interfering with the work performance of others; 
10. Altercations; 
11. Harassing, including sexually harassing, employees or 


customers; 
12. Being under the influence of, using, or possessing alcohol or 


illegal or controlled substances on District property or while 
conducting District business; 


13. Gambling on District premises or while conducting  District 
business; 


14. Sleeping on the job or leaving the job without  authorization; 
15. Possessing a firearm or other dangerous weapon on District 


property or while conducting district business; 
16. Being convicted of a crime that indicates unfitness for the job 


or raises a threat to the safety or well being of the District, its 
employees, customers, or property; 


17. Failing to report to the District, within five (5) days, any 
conviction under any criminal drug statute for a violation 
occurring in the workplace; and. 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2090 TERMINATION, DISCIPLINE, AND RULES OF CONDUCT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


18. Misuse of or falsifying overtime or on-call compensation. 
 
  20902080.24 Attendance:  In addition to the general rules stated above, 
employees may be disciplined for failing to observe the following specific requirements 
relating to attendance: 
 


1. Reporting to work on time, observing the time limits for rest 
and lunch periods, and obtaining approval to leave work 
early; and 


2. Notifying the supervisor in advance of anticipated tardiness 
or absence. 


 
  20902080.25 Discipline Procedure:  Except as set forth below, 
discharge for poor performance ordinarily will be preceded by an oral or written warning, 
or a suspension without pay, such prior step(s) being preferred or recommended, but not 
required.  The General Manager has the right to proceed directly to a written warning or 
to termination for misconduct or performance deficiency, without resort to prior 
disciplinary steps, when in the General Manager’s judgment such action is appropriate. 
 


  20902080.25.1 For employees who are not “at-will”, who 
have “for cause” rights, and who are not covered by a discipline process in an MOU, the 
following procedures shall apply.   
 


  20902080.25.2 Minor Disciplinary Action:  In cases 
involving oral or written reprimands or suspensions of five (5) days or less, the General 
Manager or supervisor shall issue a written notice of discipline, describing the discipline, 
the basis for the discipline, and attaching any documents upon which the discipline is 
based.  The affected employee may respond by submitting a rebuttal to be lodged in the 
employee’s personnel file, but no further appeal shall be permitted. 
 


  20902080.25.3 Major Disciplinary Action:  In cases 
involving suspensions of more than five (5) days, demotions, or termination, the General 
Manager or supervisor shall first issue a notice of intent to discipline, describing the 
intended discipline, the basis for the discipline, and attaching any documents upon 
which the discipline is based.  The affected employee shall have a right to respond, 
orally or in writing, to this notice before the discipline is imposed.   
 


  20902080.25.3.1 The General Manager, or designee, 
shall give notice and convene a meeting to review the employee’s response and 
position before imposing discipline.The DistrictGeneral Manager shall set the 
meeting approximately one (1) week from the date of the notice, unless a 
different time and date is set by mutual agreement.  The General Manager, or 
designee, shall convene a meeting to review the employee’s response and 
position before imposing discipline.  The employee shall be entitled to a 
representative of his/her choice; provided, however, that the inability of a 
particular representative to attend the meeting shall not be a cause requiring a 
continuance of the meeting.  At the meeting, the employee shall be provided the 
opportunity to respond and to present any new information for consideration by 
the District. 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2090 TERMINATION, DISCIPLINE, AND RULES OF CONDUCT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


 
  20902080.25.3.2 At some reasonable time after the 


employee has been provided an opportunity to respond to the charges, the 
District shall issue a final notice of discipline.  The notice shall include the final 
decision, the effective date of the discipline and the facts upon which the 
discipline is based. 
 


  20902080.25.3.3 Appeal of Major Disciplinary Action:  
Employees who have “for cause” rights have the right to appeal the final decision 
imposing major disciplinary actions.  The notice of appeal must be received 
within seven (7) calendar days from the date of the final notice of discipline, or 
the right to appeal is waived and the discipline shall become final. 


 
  Upon receipt of a notice of appeal, the General Manager 


shall inform the Board of Directors of the proposed disciplinary action and the 
fact that the employee who is the subject of such action has requested an appeal 
of the proposed action. 
 


  The appeal shall be heard by an independent hearing 
officer to be selected by the General Manager from a list of hearing officers that 
has been pre-approved by the District Board of Directors. 


 
  The General Manager shall select two (2) proposed 


hearing officers from the District’s pre-approved list to serve as a hearing officer 
for the particular appeal.  The selection of proposed hearing officers shall be 
given to the employee who will then have the right to “strike” one of the hearing 
officers submitted by the General Manager.  The employee shall provide written 
notice to the General Manager of his/her election to have one of the hearing 
officers stricken, such notice to be provided no later than seven (7) calendar days 
from being given the names of the proposed hearing officers.  Any hearing officer 
who is not “stricken” will be eligible to serve as the hearing officer for the appeal. 
 


  The costs of the hearing officer shall be borne by the 
District.  Either party may request that the matter be transcribed, and the 
requesting party shall bear the expense of the transcript. 
 
   The hearing officer shall have the authority to convene the 
hearing, receive evidence through testimony and documents and make findings 
of fact and conclusions about the discipline.  The hearing officer may recommend 
an outcome, but the final authority rests with the General Manager.  The hearing 
officer shall serve a recommended decision on the District, including each Board 
member of the District, and the employee.  The General Manager shall issue a 
final decision.  The General Manager’s decision is reviewable by administrative 
writ of mandamus. 


 
  20902080.26 Exit Interview:  Employees who leave the District for any 
reason may be asked to participate in an exit interview.  This interview is intended to 
permit terminating employees the opportunity to communicate their views regarding their 
work with the District, including job duties, job training, job supervision, and job benefits.  
At the time of the interview, employees are expected to return all District- furnished 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2090 TERMINATION, DISCIPLINE, AND RULES OF CONDUCT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
property, such as uniforms, tools, equipment, I.D. cards, keys, credit cards, documents, 
and handbooks.  Arrangements for clearing any outstanding debts with the District 
and/or receiving final pay will be made at this time. 
 
 2090 2080.30 Employment at Will:  Nothing in this Guideline Policy is 
intended to alter the at-will status of employment with the District.  Any at-will employee 
or the District may terminate the employment relationship at any time with or without 
cause and with or without prior notice.  The District reserves its right to terminate any 
employment relationship without resort to the above disciplinary procedures.  Only the 
Board of Directors of the  District Board of Directors has the authority to alter this 
arrangement, to enter into an agreement for employment for a specified period of time, 
or to make any agreement contrary to this policy.  Furthermore, any such agreement 
must be in writing and signed by the General Manager of the District after Board 
authorization.  Changes in the at-will employment structure of the Sweetwater Springs 
Water District may only be made by a majority vote of the Board of Directors at a public 
meeting. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2100 PERSONNEL RECORDS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
 SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Policy Title: Employee Classifications/Compensation 
Policy Number: 2090 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2100.__3/14/02 (Resolution 02-10 ) 
 
 
 2090.10 This policy shall apply to all District employees. 
 
 2090.20 Employee Classifications: 
 
  2090.21 By Number of Hours Worked 
 
   (1)  Full-Time Employees:  Full-time employees are all those 
having a regular work schedule of forty (40) hours per week. 
 
   (2)  Part-Time Employees:  Part-time employees are all those 
having a regular work schedule of less than forty (40) hours per week. 
 
  2090.22 By Length of Employment 
 
   (1)  Temporary Employees:  Temporary employees are all those 
hired under special assignment with the specific understanding that such work will be 
completed within a short period of time. 
 
   (2)  Regular Employees:  Regular employees are all others. 
 
  2090.23 By Method of Payment 
 
   (1)  Salaried Employees:  Salaried employees are all those who 
are paid a fixed salary and not by the hour.  These positions are usually 
management/supervisorial positions. 
 
   (2)  Hourly Employees:  Hourly employees are all those whose 
wages are paid by the hour and fluctuate according to the number of hours worked.







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2100 PERSONNEL RECORDS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
 
 
  2090.24 By Eligibility for Overtime 
 
   (1)  Nonexempt Employees:  Nonexempt employees are all 
those who are eligible to be paid for overtime work in accordance with the provisions of 
applicable wage and hour laws. 
 
   (2)  Exempt Employees:  Exempt employees are all those who 
are not eligible for overtime pay. 
 
 2090.30 Compensation 
 
  2090.31 Compensation at Hiring: 
 
   (1)  New Employees:  Unless authorized by a majority vote of the 
Board of Directors, all newly appointed employees shall be paid at the first step of the 
salary range for the position to which the employee is appointed except as provided 
elsewhere herein. 
 
   (2)  Former Employees:  A person who previously held a full-time 
position from which the person was separated in good standing may, when re-employed 
in a position with the same or lower pay range than held at separation, be appointed at 
the same salary rate which was paid at the effective date of the person's termination, or 
the nearest lower applicable step for the range to which the person is appointed, 
provided such re-employment occurs within twelve (12) months from the date of said 
termination. 
 
  2090.32 Merit Advancement Within Range 
 
   (1)  Merit Advancement :  Merit advancement increases are 
provided when, in the opinion of the Supervisor and/or General Manager an employee's 
performance warrants an adjustment in salary.  Merit increases are based on job 
performance, evaluations, and observation of an employee's work and can be affected 
by attitude, special training or educational courses.  In the field positions, merit increases 
may be awarded when an employee receives certification from the State of California for 
Graded Water Treatment Operator licenses.  Salary review on an individual basis will be 
scheduled at least once each year and more frequently if warranted. 
 
 
   (2)  Salary ranges:  Salary ranges for all positions are evaluated 
on an annual basis. 
 
 
 2090.40 Promotion 
 
  2090.41 It shall be the policy of the District to promote from within 
whenever possible, and to encourage employees to apply for all positions for which they 
are qualified.  A recruitment will take place for all vacancies within a classification and a 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2100 PERSONNEL RECORDS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
hiring list shall be maintained for a reasonable period of time and may be extended for 
up to one year by the General Manger. 
 
 2090.50 Performance Development Program 
 
  2090.51 Hourly and salaried nonexempt employees receive 
performance reviews after the first six (6) months of employment and annually 
thereafter.  More frequent performance review schedules may be established for specific 
employees.  Exempt employees receive performance reviews annually. 
 
  2090.52 The purpose of the review is to evaluate the current level 
of performance of an employee and to examine the progress made since the last review 
as well as establish goals for the next review.  Performance reviews should not be 
confused with salary advances.  While one may affect the other, they are separate 
issues and a satisfactory performance review does not always indicate an increase in 
salary and likewise an increase in salary can be awarded without a performance review. 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2100 PERSONNEL RECORDS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Policy Title: Personnel Records 
Policy Number: 2100 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised: ____ October 6, 2011___________ 
 
 
 2100.10 It is important that District personnel files will contain current 
information regarding each employee.  The District requires that t  Employees shall 
inform the General Manager be informed immediately whenever there are changes in an 
employee’s his/her personal data such as address, telephone number, marital status, 
number of dependents, and person(s) to notify in case of emergency.  It is also 
necessary toEmployees will  report any pending court action which may affect an 
employee's ability to perform the duties for which they were hired. 
 
 2100.20 Employees have the right to inspect personnel files at reasonable 
times on reasonable notice.  Copies of any document in personnel files may be provided 
employees upon request.  Personnel files are the property of the District and information 
contained in them will not be duplicated or forwarded without notification to the affected 
employee.  .  All personnel information and records are to be considered as confidential 
to the extent allowed by Federal or State law.  The District policy is to require all 
personnel files to be maintained in a secure and private condition and to have all 
employees manage personnel information in that manner.  
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2110 SMOKING / DRESS / GROOMING / HEALTH STANDARDS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


Smoking / /Dress / /Grooming / /Health Standards 
Policy Number: 2110 
Date Approved: November 17, 1992 
Date Revised:  May 11, 1994 (Resolution No. 155), October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2110.10 Smoking:  Smoking shall be prohibited in all enclosed facilities 
within a the place of employment without exception.  This includes common work areas, 
auditoriums, classrooms, conference and meeting rooms, private offices, elevators, 
hallways, medical facilities, cafeterias, employee lounges, stairs, restrooms, vehicles 
and all other enclosed facilities.  The smoking policy shall be communicated to all 
employees within three weeks of its adoption, and at least annually thereafter and the 
General Manager shall supply a written copy of the smoking policy to any existing or 
prospective employees. 
 
 2110.20 Dress Code & Grooming Standards:  It is in the District's best 
interests to present a professional image to customers and the public.  Accordingly, 
while the District has no formal dress code, it is expected that all employees will dress in 
a manner consistent with good hygiene, safety, and good taste.  Employees whose jobs 
require them to come in contact with the public are expected to wear apparel consistent 
with that worn by persons dealing with the public in the community in similar capacities.  
Field crew will be expected to wear the uniform provided to them and keep their hair at a 
length which will be consistent with safety standards.  This policy applies to facial hair as 
well.  Field crew are expected to wear pants that are clean and without holes. 
 
 2110.30 Allowances:  Uniforms will be provided and maintained for all field 
crew employees.  Additionally, employees will be provided with a boot allowance of 
$70.00 to cover the cost of OSHA approved footwear.  Employees may submit receipts 
for reimbursement of the boot allowance.  The uniforms to be worn by field employees 
shall be selected by the General Manager. Employees will be provided boot allowances 
and uniforms as negotiated in the current Union Memorandum of Understanding and 
employee contracts. 
 
 2110.40 Health:  Employees are expected to report to work fit to perform 
their assigned tasks.  Employees who report to work but whose state of health may not 
permit them to satisfactorily complete assigned tasks or who may create a danger to 
themselves or others may be referred to a doctor for a determination as to fitness for 
work.  Upon affirmative recommendation from the doctor, the District may take any 
appropriate action including placing an employee on involuntary leavesick leave, or 
leave without pay if the sick leave balance is exhausted, until such time as the employee 
is fit for duty. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2120 EMPLOYMENT OF RELATIVES 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


Employment of Relatives 
Policy Number: 2120 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  ___ October 6, 2011____________ 
 
 
 2120.10 Employment:  Employment of relatives of employees is 
discouraged.  Relatives of present employees may be hired by the District only if (1) the 
individuals concerned will not work in a direct supervisory relationship, and (2) the 
employment will not pose difficulties for supervision, security, safety or morale.  
Relatives are defined as spouse, registered domestic partners, children, sisters, 
brothers, mothers, or fathers, and persons related by marriage. 
 
 2120.20 Present Employees:  Present employees who marry or who 
become related by marriage, will be permitted to continue employment with the District 
only if they do not work in a direct supervisory relationship with one another, or 
otherwise pose difficulties for supervision, security, safety or morale.  If employees who 
marry, or who become related by marriage, do work in a direct supervisory relationship 
with one another, the District will attempt to reassign one of the employees to another 
position for which he or she is qualified, if such a position is available.  If no such 
position is available, then one of the employees will be required to leave the district 
District unless the General Manager recommends a waiver of this provision and this 
decision is confirmed by the Board of Directors.  
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2130 SAFETY PROGRAM 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


Safety Program 
Policy Number: 2130 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  ___ October 6, 2011____________ 
 
 
 2130.10 General:  The District strives to maintain safe working conditions.  
The success of our safety program depends on the cooperation of everyone.  
Employees are asked to learn the safety rules and observe them at all times, and to 
immediately report any potential safety hazards, injuries or accidents to their Supervisor 
or the General Manager.  The location of the nearest doctor and/or medical facility is 
posted on the bulletin board. 
 
 2130.20 OSHA Binder:  The District maintains a current OSHA safety 
binder which is available to all field crew employees.  Field crew employees are required 
to review the binder and sign an acknowledgment which indicates their understanding of 
the material contained therein. 
 
 2130.30 Periodic Meetings:  Periodic safety meetings and inservice 
programs are provided during weekly staff meetings to allow time within the work 
schedule to address areas of concern and promote the education of employees relative 
to on the job safety. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2140 SECURITY / CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


Security / /Confidential Information 
 Policy Number: 2140 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  ___ October 6, 2011____________ 
 
 
 2140.10 General:  The security of employees, employee property, and 
District property is of vital importance to the District.  All employees share responsibility 
to ensure that proper security is maintained.  Any breach of security should be reported 
promptly to the General Manager. 
 
 2140.20 Confidentiality:  District property includes not only tangible 
property, like desks and typewriters, but also intangible property such as information.  As 
a public entity, the California Constitution requires that District records be open to the 
public unless a specific exemption applies.  tThe District's records are generally 
available for public review and copying pursuant to the California Public Records Act.  
However, there are a variety of exemptions in that Act allowing certain records to be 
closed to public review.  In addition, the California Constitutional protection of privacy 
rights dictates that certain information be kept confidential.  Personnel files and trade 
secrets are examples of confidential information.  Employees or Directors may not 
disclose or use confidential information except asthe law requires.as their jobs require.  
Anyone who violates this policyguidelinePolicy will be subject to discipline and possible 
legal recourse.  
 


2140.30  Records Requests:  All inquiries for records should be directed to 
the General Manager.  As a public entity the District is subject to the California 
constitution and the California Public Records Act. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2150 AIDS AND AIDS-RELATED CONDITIONS IN THE WORKPLACE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
2150  AIDS and AIDS-







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2150 AIDS AND AIDS-RELATED CONDITIONS IN THE WORKPLACE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Policy Title: Aids and Aids Related Conditions in the  


   Workplace 
 Policy Number: 2150 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  October 6, 2011_______________ 
 
 
 2150.10 General:  The District recognizes that Acquired Immune 
Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS), related conditions such as AIDS Related Complex (ARC), 
and persons with seropositive test results pose significant concerns for employees in the 
workplace.  Accordingly, we have established the following guidelinesPolicy for handling 
issues that may arise when an employee is affected by this potentially fatal disease. 
 
 2150.20 Safety:  The District is committed to maintaining a safe and 
healthy work environment for all employees. 
 
 2150.30 Treatment by District:  Consistent with this commitment, the 
District will treat AIDS the same as other illnesses in terms of employee policies and 
benefits, group health and life insurance, disability leaves of absence, and other 
disability benefits which the District provides. 
 
 2150.40 Continuation of Employment:  Based on overwhelming medical 
evidence and scientific opinions, including statements from the U.S. Public Health 
Service Center for Disease Control, the AIDS virus is not casually transmitted in ordinary 
social or occupational settings or conditions.  Therefore, subject to changes in available 
medical information, District employees with AIDS or any of its related conditions may 
continue to work as long as they are able.  The District will provide AIDS afflicted 
employees with reasonable accommodation as long as they are medically and physically 
able to perform the duties of their position.  Co-workers may not refuse to work or 
withhold their services for fear of contracting AIDS by working with an AIDS afflicted 
person, and may not harass or otherwise discriminate against an AIDS afflicted 
employee.  Employees who engage in such behavior by refusing to work, or by 
harassing or otherwise discriminating against any AIDS afflicted employee will be 
subject to discipline and possible termination. 
 
 2150.50 Information:  Recognizing the need for employees to be accurately 
informed about AIDS, the District will provide information regarding the facts about this 
disease, how it is transmitted, and how best to prevent it from spreading.  Employees 
who would like this information should contact the General Manager. 
 
 2150.60 Notification:   Employees with AIDS or any of its related 
conditions or who are concerned about AIDS are encouraged to contact the General 
Manager to obtain additional information. 
 
 2150.70 Confidentiality:  The District will treat all medical information 
obtained from employees with AIDS or any of its related conditions confidentially as 
required by law.  If employees have any questions about this guidelinePolicy or its 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2150 AIDS AND AIDS-RELATED CONDITIONS IN THE WORKPLACE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
interpretation or the information on which it is based, employees should contact the 
General Manager. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2170 SOLICITATION, DISTRIBUTION AND BULLETIN BOARDS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2170  Solicitation, Distribution and Bulletin Boards 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2170 SOLICITATION, DISTRIBUTION AND BULLETIN BOARDS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
 SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Policy Title: Employee Benefits 
Policy Number: 2160 
Date Approved: _______________November 17, 1992 (Reso. No. 104) 
Date Revised:  October 6, 2011July 1, 1993 
 
 
 2160.10 The District provides benefits for its regular full-time eligible 
employees.  The District reserves the right to eliminate or modify any of its benefits at 
any time. 
 
 2160.20 Insurance Benefits 
 
  2160.21 Workers Compensation Benefits:  The District carries 
workers' compensation insurance coverage as required by law to protect employees 
who are injured on the job.  This insurance provides medical, surgical, and hospital 
treatment in addition to payment for loss of earnings that result from work-related 
injuries.  Compensation payments begin from the first day of an employee's 
hospitalization or after the third day following the injury if an employee is not 
hospitalized.  The cost of this coverage is paid completely by the District. 
 
  2160.22 Medical, Dental and Vision Insurance:  All regular full-
time employees and their dependents are eligible to participate in the District's health, 
dental, and vision insurance plan starting the first day of the month following 
commencement of employment.  The premium cost for eligible employees and their 
dependents is paid by the District.  Should the premiums increase at any time, the 
employee will be responsible to pay the difference..   
 
  2160.23 Premium Payments for Employees on Leave:  The 
District will pay one-half the premiums for continuation of group insurance benefits 
during the first 180 days of any authorized leave. 
 
  2160.24 Conversion/Post Employment Insurance Options:  
Pursuant to the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA), 
eligible employees and their dependents may be entitled to continue insurance coverage 
after employment with the District ceases. 
 
  2160.25 Insurance Coverage Information:  Eligibility requirements 
and further information concerning insurance coverage are fully explained in various 
brochures available from the General Manager. 
 
 2160.30 Retirement Plans 
 
  2160.31 Deferred Compensation.  All regular full time employees 
are eligible to participate in the District’s adopted deferred compensation plan starting 
the first day of the month following commencement of employment.  This is an optional 
employee benefit which the District does not contribute to.  Further information 
concerning the features and requirements of this plan are fully explained in various 
brochures available from the General Manager. 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2170 SOLICITATION, DISTRIBUTION AND BULLETIN BOARDS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
  2160.32 Pension Plan.  All regular full time employees as of July 1, 
1993 are eligible to participate in a District paid retirement program.  Future employees 
of the District will be eligible to participate in the program one (1) year following 
commencement of their employment. The district will contribute a percentage of an 
employee’s base salary, as set by Resolution adopted by the Board, effective July 1, 
1993, which may be amended from time to time. 
 
   2l60.321 Vesting.  Ownership of Contributions is based on 
years of service, known as a vesting schedule.  Full vesting (100%) will be at the sixth 
(6th) year of employment. 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2170 SOLICITATION, DISTRIBUTION AND BULLETIN BOARDS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Policy Title: Solicitation, Distribution and Bulletin 
   Boards 
Policy Number: 2170 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised: ___ October 6, 2011____________ 
 
 
 2170.10 Solicitation:  Employees may engage in solicitation (distributing 
fliers and/or other information to advertise and/or entice business) on District premises 
only during nonworking time and the nonworking time of the person being solicited.  
Nonworking time means time during meals or breaks and before or after work. 
 
 2170.20 Distribution on of Non District Materials:  Employees may 
distribute or circulate non-District written materials to other employees only in nonwork 
areas. 
 
 2170.30 Sale of Goods for ProfitSolicitation/Distribution of Non District 
Literature for Sale of Goods or Services:  Solicitation or distribution in any way 
connected with the sale of any goods or services for profit is strictly prohibited anywhere 
on District property at any time.  Similarly, solicitation or distribution of literature for any 
purpose by non-employees is strictly prohibited on the District's property at any time. 
 
 2170.40 Bulletin Boards:  The District has bulletin boards located 
throughout the facility for the purpose of communication with employees.  Postings on 
these boards are limited to District-related material including statutory and legal notices, 
safety and disciplinary rules, District policies, memos of general interest relating to the 
District, local operating rules, and other items.  All postings require the prior approval of 
the General Manager.  No postings will be permitted for any other purpose. 
 
 21702070.50 Political Advertising:  No political advertising will be allowed on 
District bulletin boards. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2180 NON-FRATERNIZATION 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
2180  







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2180 NON-FRATERNIZATION 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


Policy Title: Non-Fraternization 
Policy Number: 2180 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  __ October 6, 2011_____________ 
 
 
 2180.10 Non Fraternization:  In order to promote the efficient operation of 
the District's business and to avoid misunderstandings, complaints of favoritism, other 
problems of supervision, security, and morale, and possible claims of sexual 
harassment, managers and supervisors are forbidden to date or pursue romantic or 
sexual relationships with employees whom they supervise, directly or indirectly.  
Employees who violate this guidelinePolicy will be subject to discipline, up to and 
including termination of employment. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2190 HARASSMENT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
2190  







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2190 HARASSMENT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


Policy Title: Harassment 
Policy Number: 2190 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  August 3, 2006 (Ord. 32), October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2190.10  Purpose. The purpose of this policy is 


  (1)  To reaffirm Sweetwater Springs Water District’s commitment to 
prohibit and prevent unlawful discrimination and harassment in all workplaces of the 
District; 


  (2)  To define discrimination and harassment prohibited under this policy; 


  (3)  To set forth a procedure for resolving complaints of prohibited 
discrimination and harassment. 


 2190.20  Scope. This policy shall not be construed to create a private or 
independent right of action.  Although this policy is intended to prohibit discrimination 
consistently with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the California Fair Employment 
and Housing Act and California Labor Code Section 1102.1, the District reserves the 
right to interpret and apply this policy to provide greater protection than what is afforded 
under those laws.   


 2190.30  Statement of Policy.  The District is committed to providing an 
environment that is free from harassment and discrimination of any kind, including 
sexual harassment and harassment based on race, color, religion, national origin, 
ancestry, age, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, marital status, and 
sexual orientation. Therefore, it is important that the District maintain an atmosphere 
characterized by mutual respect in order to assure fair, courteous treatment for 
employees and the public.   


  2190.40   The District strongly disapproves of and will not tolerate unlawful 
harassment or discrimination against District employees or applicants by elected or 
appointed officials, managers, supervisors or coworkers.  The District also strongly 
disapproves of unlawful harassment of District employees by persons with whom the 
District has a business, service or professional relationship.   


 2190.50   Unlawful harassment and illegal discrimination are considered 
serious acts of misconduct and will not be tolerated.  Employees who violate this policy 
and engage in acts of unlawful harassment or discrimination of any type, for any 
duration, shall be subject to severe disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  


 2190.60   Retaliation against individuals who complain of prohibited 
harassment or discrimination or who participate in an investigation into allegations of 
harassment or discrimination shall not be tolerated.  Employees who engage in such 
acts of retaliation shall be subject to serious disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination.   







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2190 HARASSMENT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
 2190.70   Definitions 


  2190.7.1 Prohibited discrimination and harassment for purposes of this 
policy, includes but is not limited to: 


   (1)  Verbal conduct such as epithets, derogatory comments or slurs, 
and lewd propositions on the basis of race, sex, religion, national origin, ancestry, 
disability, medical condition, marital status, age, or sexual orientation.  This includes, 
without limitation, inappropriate sex-oriented comments regarding an individual’s 
appearance, including dress or physical features, inappropriate comments of a sexual 
nature, or race or ethnicity-oriented slurs, stories and jokes. 


   (2)  Physical conduct such as assault, impeding or blocking 
movement, offensive touching, or physical interference with normal work or movement 
when directed at an individual on the basis of race, sex, religion, national origin, 
ancestry, disability, medical condition, marital status, age or sexual orientation.  This 
includes pinching, grabbing, patting, propositioning, leering, or making explicit or implied 
threats or promises in return for submission to physical acts. 


   (3)  Visual conduct such as derogatory pictures, posters, cartoons, or 
drawings related to race, sex, religion, national origin, ancestry, disability, medical 
condition, marital status, age, or sexual orientation.  This includes, without limitation, 
sending inappropriate emails of a sexual nature to employees, or viewing pornography 
either in magazines or on the internet in view of other employees, displaying pictures or 
objects depicting nude or scantily-clad or suggestively posed men or women,; circulating 
derogatory or obscene notes, letters, emails or other literature. 


   (4)  Retaliation:  Adverse action taken by an employer against an 
employee or former employee because they exercised their rights under anti-
discrimination laws, spoke out against discrimination, or assisted someone in exercising 
their rights Adverse employment actions carried out in retaliation for an employee’s good 
faith submission of a discrimination or harassment complaint, or good faith participation 
in an investigation made pursuant to this policy. 


   (5)  Discrimination:  Adverse employment actions taken on account of 
sex, race, color, religion, national origin, ancestry, age, physical disability, mental 
disability, medical condition, marital status, or sexual orientation.   


  2190.7.2 Harassment on the basis of sex, race, color, religion, national 
origin, ancestry, age, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, marital 
status, or sexual orientation is prohibited.  Verbal or physical conduct relating to these 
categories constitutes harassment when it: 


   (1)  Has the purpose or effect of creating an intimidating, hostile or 
offensive working environment; 


   (2)  Has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an 
individual’s work performance; or 


   (3)  Otherwise adversely affects an individual’s employment 
opportunities.   







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2190 HARASSMENT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
  2190.7.3 Sexual harassment.   


     2190.7.3.1 Sexual harassment is a form of unlawful sex 
discrimination and will not be tolerated by the District.  Sexual harassment refers to 
conduct that is not welcome, that is offensive, that fails to respect the rights and dignity 
of others, that lowers morale and that, therefore, interferes with work effectiveness.  
Federal and State guidelines provide that unwelcome sexual advances, requests for 
sexual favors and other verbal, visual or physical conduct of a sexual nature constitute 
unlawful harassment when: 


     (1) Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or 
implicitly a term or condition of an individual’s employment,. 


     (2) The submission to or rejection of such conduct by an 
individual is used as the basis for employment decisions affecting such individual,; or 


     (3) Sexual advances, requests for sexual favors or other verbal 
or physical conduct of a sexual nature that has the purpose or effect of unreasonably 
interfering with an employee’s work performance or of creating an intimidating, hostile, or 
offensive work environment. 


     2190.7.3.2 Sexual harassment refers to conduct that is not 
welcome, that is offensive, that fails to respect the rights and dignity of others, that 
lowers morale and that, therefore, interferes with work effectiveness.   


  2190.80   Reporting Unlawful Harassment or Discrimination. 


   2190.8.1 Any employee who believes he or she has been unlawfully 
harassed or discriminated against should promptly report it orally or in writing to the 
employee’s supervisor, a division manager, or the District ManagerGeneral Manager.  
An employee is not required to complain first to a supervisor if that person is the 
individual who is harassing and/or engaging in discriminatory actions against the 
employee.  Instead, the employee may report the harassment/discrimination to any 
member of management. If the complaint involves the District ManagerGeneral 
Manager, the complaint should be referred to the District Counsel. 


  2190.8.2 Any supervisor or manager who receives a complaint of unlawful 
harassment/discrimination, or who observes or otherwise learns about such prohibited 
conduct is required to notify the District ManagerGeneral Manager.  Failure to do so may 
result in disciplinary action. The supervisor or manager shall at all times maintain the 
confidentiality of the complainant and complaint.   


 2190.90   Remedial Action  


  2190.9.1 Employees who believe they have been subjected to prohibited 
harassment or discrimination are encouraged to submit a written complaint as soon as 
possible after the incident occurred.  The complaint should include details of the 
incident(s), name(s) of the individual(s) involved, and name(s) of witness(es). 


  2190.9.2 Upon receiving complaints of discrimination or harassment, the 
District may promptly undertake an investigation of the complaints.  The District may 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2190 HARASSMENT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
retain an outside investigator to conduct the investigation.  Any investigation and 
investigation report prepared relating to the complaint shall be kept confidential except 
as required by law.  If harassment or discrimination is found to have occurred in violation 
of this policy, the District shall take action to ensure or confirm that the harassment or 
discrimination at issue is stopped.  The District may take whatever measures are 
appropriate to ensure its workplaces remain free from unlawful discrimination or 
harassment.   


  2190.9.3 Employees found to have engaged in discrimination or 
harassment covered by this policy may be subject to disciplinary action up to and 
including termination of employment.  First-time violations of this policy, depending on 
the severity of the conduct, may lead to termination.  


     Employees found to have been dishonest or uncooperative during 
an investigation into allegations of unlawful harassment or discrimination may be subject 
to disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment.   


 2190.100  No Retaliation.  Employees should feel free to report valid claims of 
unlawful harassment or discrimination without fear of retaliation of any kind.  The District 
will not retaliate against or tolerate retaliation against employees for making any 
complaint of unlawful harassment or discrimination in good faith, or against any 
employee for cooperating in an investigation.   


 2190.110  Dissemination of Policy.  Copies of the District’s Non-Discrimination 
and Harassment Policy and complaint procedures shall be provided to all employees of 
the District, and to all new employees at the time of hiring.   


 2190.120 Training.   The District may conduct training for its employees to 
assist them in learning how to recognize, avoid and correct conduct prohibited by this 
policy, in accordance with applicable law.  


 2190.130  Complaint to DFEH and EEOC 


  2190.130.1  In addition to notifying the District about unlawful harassment, 
discrimination or retaliation, an affected employee may also direct his or her complaint to 
the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing (“DFEH”), which has the 
authority to conduct investigations of the facts.  The deadline for filing complaints with 
the DFEH is one (1) year from the date of the alleged unlawful conduct.  Employees may 
contact the nearest DFEH office or the Fair Employment & Housing Commission (FEHC) 
at the locations listed in the District’s DFEH poster or by checking with the statement 
government listings in the local telephone directory.   


  2190.130.2  An employee also has the right to direct his or her complaint 
to the federal Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC).   


 2190.140  Obligations of Employees.   


  2190.14.1  Employees are responsible for knowing the District’s policy on 
nondiscrimination and harassment; refraining from discriminatory behavior, including 
harassment; reporting incidents of discrimination and harassment in a timely fashion; 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2190 HARASSMENT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
cooperating in any investigation concerning allegations of discrimination; and 
maintaining confidentiality concerning any investigation that is conducted.   


All employees are also encouraged to communicate with one another to assist co-
employees to avoid harassing, discriminatory, or otherwise offensive behavior.   
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2210 INSPECTIONS AND SEARCHES 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
2200   







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2210 INSPECTIONS AND SEARCHES 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


Policy Title: Conflicts of Interest 
Policy Number: 2200 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  __ October 6, 2011_____________ 
 
 
 2200.10 Policy:  District employees are expected to devote their best 
efforts and attention to the full-time performance of their jobs.  Employees are expected 
to use good judgment, to adhere to high ethical standards, and to avoid situations that 
create an actual or potential conflict between the employee's personal interests and the 
interest of the District.  A conflict of interest exists when the employee's loyalties or 
actions are divided between the District's interests and those of another, such as a 
competitor or supplier.  Both the fact and the appearance of a conflict of interest should 
be avoided.  Employees unsure as to whether a certain transaction, activity, or 
relationship constitutes a conflict of interest should discuss it with their immediate 
supervisor or the General Manager for clarification. 
 
 2200.20 Conflicts Defined:  This guidelinePolicy does not attempt to 
describe all possible conflicts of interest that could develop.  Some of the more common 
conflicts from which employees should refrain, however, include the following: 
 
  (1)  Accepting personal gifts, entertainment or work 
        from suppliers, or potential suppliers; 
  (2)  Using District assets or labor for personal use; 
  (3)  Acquiring any interest in property or assets of 
        any kind for the purpose of selling or leasing it 
        to the District; 
  (4)  Committing the District to give its financial or 
        other support to any outside activity or organization; 
  (5)  Developing a personal relationship with a 
        subordinate employee of the District that might 
        interfere with the exercise of impartial judgment 
        in decisions affecting the District or any 
        employees of the District. 
 
 2200.30 Governing Laws:  Because the District is a public entity, 
employees may be subject to a variety of specific laws governing conflict of interest and 
incompatibility of employment.  These laws are quite technical.  All questions should be 
directed to the General Manager who will refer the matter to District Counsel, if 
necessary. 
 
  2200.31 The primary law is The Political Reform Act (Government 
Code section 81000 et seq.).  This law has two main parts for District employees.  This 
law requires that certain designated employees fill out and file a financial statement and 
refrain from participating in decisions where it is reasonably foreseeable that there may 
be a material impact on an employee’s financial interest. 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2210 INSPECTIONS AND SEARCHES 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
  2200.32 Another law affecting conflicts of interest is Government 
Code SectionSsection 1090 et seq., which prohibits District officers and employees from 
being interestedhaving a financial interest in any contract made by them in their official 
capacity or from being purchasers (at any sale) or sellers (in any purchase) made by 
them in their official capacity. 
 
  2200.33 Finally, Government Code SectionSsection 1126 
authorizes the District to establish guidelinespolicies for employees outside 
employmentregarding outside activities, which areareis incompatible with District 
employment.  No district employee may perform any employment, activity or enterprise if 
it: 
 
  (1)  Involves the use, for private gain or advantage, of 
        District time, facilities, equipment and supplies; 
        or the badge, uniform, prestige, or influence of 
        District office or employment or, 
 
  (2)  Involves receipt or acceptance by the officer or 
        employee of any money or other consideration 
        from anyone other than his or her local agency  
        for the performance of an act which the officer or 
        employee, if not performing such act, would be 
        required or expected to render in the regular 
        course or hours of his or her local agency 
        employment or as a part of his or her duties as a 
        District officer of employee or, 
 
  (3)  Involves the performance of an act in other than  
        his or her capacity as a District officer or 
        employee which act may later be subject directly 
        or indirectly to the control, inspection, review, 
        audit, or enforcement of any other officer or 
        employee or the District, or 
 
  (4)  Involves the time demands as would render 
        performance of his or her duties as District 
        officer or employee less efficient. 
 
 2200.40 Notification:  Employees are advised to notify the General 
Manager of any proposed employment, activity or enterprise which may create an 
incompatibility so as to avoid violating these rules. 
 
 2200.50 Failure to Comply:  Failure to adhere to this these 
guidelinesPolicy, including failure to file the required statement, disclose any conflicts or 
take an appropriate action, will result in discipline, up to and including termination of 
employment.  Employees disciplined under these provisions may appeal the decision of 
the General Manager to the District Board of Directors by filing a written notice of appeal 
with the District within five (5) days after notification of such decision.  The decision of 
the Board of Directors is final. 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2210 INSPECTIONS AND SEARCHES 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


TOC 
2210  







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2210 INSPECTIONS AND SEARCHES 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


Policy Title: Inspections and Searches for Prohibited 
   Materials and for Company Property on 
   Company Premises 
Policy Number: 2210 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  ____ October 6, 2011___________ 
 
 
 2210.10 Purpose of the GuidelinePolicy: 
 
  2210.11 The District believes that maintenance of a workplace that 
is free of drugs, alcohol, and other harmful materials is vital to the health and safety of its 
employees and to the success of the District's purpose.  The District also intends to 
protect against the unauthorized removal of District property and to assure its access at 
all times to District property, records, documents, and files.  Accordingly, the District has 
established this GuidelinePolicy concerning inspections and searches for prohibited 
materials and for District property on District premises.  This GuidelinePolicy applies to 
all employees of the District. 
 
 2210.20 Definitions: 
 
 For purposes of this GuidelinePolicy: 
 
  (1)  "Prohibited materials" means firearms or other 
        weapons; explosives and/or hazardous materials 
        or articles; illegal drugs or other controlled 
        substances as defined in the District's Drug-Free 
        Workplace GuidelinesPolicy; drug-related paraphernalia; 
        and alcoholic beverages of on District property that 
        you are not authorized to have in your possession. 
 
   (2)  "District premises" includes all premises and 
        locations owned or leased by the District or under 
        the control of the District, including parking 
        lots, lockers, and storage areas. 
 
  (3)  "Reasonable suspicion" includes a suspicion that 
        is based on specific personal observations such as 
        an employee’s manner, disposition, muscular 
         movement, appearance, behavior, speech, or breath 
 
         odor; information provided to management by 
        an employee, by law enforcement officials, by a 
        security service, or by other persons believed to 
        be reliable; or a suspicion that is based on other 
        surrounding circumstances. 
 
  (4)  "Possession" means having the substance or 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2210 INSPECTIONS AND SEARCHES 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
        property on one's person or otherwise under one's 
        control. 
 
 2210.30 Inspections and Searches: 
 
   2210.31 Access to Company District  Property 
 
  (1)  In order to assure access at all times to District 
        property, and because employees may not always 
        be available to produce various documents, records, 
        files, or other items of District property that are 
        properly in yourtheir possession when they are needed 
        in the ordinary conduct of the District's business, the 
        District reserves the right to conduct a routine inspection 
        or search at any time for District property. 
 
  (2)  Routine searches or inspections for District property 
        may include an employee’syour office, desk, file cabinet, closet, or 
        similar places where you the employee may place District property, 
        whether or not such places are locked, including 
        company District vehicles. 
 
  (3)  Because even a routine search for District property 
        might result in the discovery of employee’syour personal 
        possessions, theytheyyou are encouraged not to bring into 
        the workplace any item of personal property which 
        you they do not want to reveal to the District.







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2210 INSPECTIONS AND SEARCHES 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
 
 
  2210.32 Prohibited Materials: 
 
  (1)  Inspections or searches for prohibited materials 
        on District premises will be conducted whenever 
        the District has reasonable suspicion to believe 
        that employees may be in possession of such 
        materials in violation of this GuidelinePolicy. 
 
  (2)  Inspections or searches for prohibited materials 
        may be conducted by an independent security 
        service or by the District with its own personnel. 
 
  (3)  Inspections or searches for prohibited materials 
        may include an your employee’s office, desk, file cabinet, 
        closet or similar places where you they may place 
        personal possessions, (whether or not such places 
        are locked), including company vehicles. 
 
  (4)  The District reserves the right to take appropriate 
        action to prevent any employee from removing 
        District property without authorization. 
 
 2210.40 Disciplinary Action 
 
  (1)  If employees are found to be in possession of 
        prohibited materials in violation of this 
        GuidelinePolicy and/or in violation of applicable 
        guidelinesPolicy such as the policyGuidelinePolicy on a Drug-Free 
        Workplace GuidelinePolicy, they will be subject to 
        discipline, up to and including discharge, 
        regardless of the District's reason for conducting 
        the search or inspection. 
 
  (2)  The District will give employees eEmployees will be given a receipt 
for any 
        materials that were found in their possession 
        (or that the District suspected of being in their 
        possession). 
 
  (3)  If, after further investigation, it is determined that 
        the materials collected were not prohibited by the 
        GuidelinePolicy, the District will return the collected materials will be 
returned 
        (except as provided below) and will obtain a receipt. will be 
            obtained.  In cases where it is suspected that the 
        collected materials consist of illegal drugs or other 
        controlled substances, the District will arrange for 
        disposition in accordance with advice from the 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2210 INSPECTIONS AND SEARCHES 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
        Drug Enforcement Administration or other 
        appropriate law enforcement authorities.  In cases 
        where the collected materials consist of (or are 
        suspected of consisting of) firearms or other weapons, 
        explosives, or other hazardous materials or articles, 
        the District reserves the right to dispose of the 
        materials in whatever manner that it deems to be in 
        the interest of safety to its employees or to return the 
        materials at a designated time and location. 
 


TOC 
 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2220 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
2220  







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2220 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


Policy Title: Drug Free Workplace 
Policy Number:    2220 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  _ October 6, 2011______________ 
 
 
 2220.10 Purpose of GuidelinePolicy 
 
  2220.11 It is the intent of the District to maintain a workplace that is 
free of drugs and alcohol and to discourage drug and alcohol abuse by its employees.  
The District has a vital interest in maintaining safe and efficient working conditions for its 
employees.  Substance abuse is incompatible with health, safety, efficiency, and 
success at the District.  Employees who are under the influence of a drug or alcohol on 
the job, endanger their own health and safety and the health and safety of others, and 
can cause a loss of efficiency, productivity, or a disruptive working environment.  It is the 
intent of this thesethis guidelinesPolicy to comply with laws requiring a drug-free 
workplacethe Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, Public Law 100-690. 
 
  2220.12 To further its interest in avoiding accidents, to promote and 
maintain safe and efficient working conditions for its employees, and to protect its 
business, property, and operations, the District has established this GuidelinePolicy 
concerning the use of alcohol and drugs.  As a condition of continued employment with 
the District, employeesemployeesyou must abide by this GuidelinePolicy. 
 
 2220.20 District Consent for Use of Legal Drugs: 
 
  2220.21 Use of Legal Drugs:  The District recognizes that it may 
be necessary for employees to use legal drugs from time to time.  The District also 
recognizes that an employee who is using legal drugs might become impaired by the 
drug such that the employee's ability to perform or to perform safely would be 
compromised.  In order to accommodate employees who might be required to use legal 
drugs, and to help assure that no serious adverse consequences in the workplace result 
from such drug use, employees are required to obtain the District's consent under the 
circumstances listed in Section 2220.22, below. 
 
  2220.22 When Consent is Required:  If employees know or 
should know that their use of legal drugs might endanger them or someone else, pose a 
risk of significant damage to District property, or substantially interfere with your their job 
performance, they must report such drug use to the General Manager and obtain the 
District's consent to continue working.  The District reserves the right to have a District 
physician or an employee's own physician determine whether it is advisable for 
him/herherthem to continue working while taking such drugs. 
 
  2220.23 Duty to Disclose:  If employees operate or are 
responsible in any way for the operation, custody, or care of District property, or for the 
safety of any other person, they have a duty to disclose the nature of their job duties to 
any prescribing physician and/or to a District physician and to inquire of such 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2220 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
physician(s) whether use of the drugs prescribed might result in the dangers, risk, or 
impairment that this GuidelinePolicy is intended to prevent. 
 
  2220.24 Restrictions on Work:  The District may restrict work 
activities while employees are using legal drugs or require that a medical leave of 
absence be taken while under the influence of such drugs. 
 
  2220.25 Duty to refrain from Working if Impaired:  Even iIf the 
District permits employees to work while using legal drugs, affected employees shall 
cannot report for work in any case if they are impaired by the use of the drugs if the 
impairment might endanger their safety or the safety of anyone else, pose a risk of 
significant damage to District property, or substantially interfere with job performance or 
the efficient operation of the District. 
 
 2220.30 Prohibited Conduct 
 
  2220.31 Scope:  The prohibitions of this section apply wherever the 
interest of the District may be adversely affected, including any time employees are: 
 
  (1)  On District premises; 
 
  (2)  Conducting or performing District business, 
        regardless of location; 
 
  (3)  Operating or responsible for the operation, 
        custody, or care of District equipment or other 
        property; or 
 
  (4)  Responsible for the safety of others. 
 
  2220.32 Alcohol:  The following acts are prohibited and may 
subject an employee to discharge or mandatory testing: 
 
  (1)  Unauthorized use, possession, purchase, sale, 
        manufacture, distribution, transportation, or 
        dispensation of alcohol; or 
 
  (2)  Being under the influence of alcohol. 
 
  2220.33 Illegal Drugs:  The following acts are prohibited and may 
subject an employee to discharge or mandatory testing: 
 
  (1)  Use, possession, purchase, sale, manufacture, 
        distribution, transportation, or dispensation of 
        any illegal drug or other controlled substance; or  
 
  (2)  Being under the influence of any illegal drug or 
        other controlled substance. 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2220 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


(3) Being impaired due to legal drugs as described in 2220.30 in any of 
the circumstances set forth in 2220.31 


 
  2220.34 Legal Drugs:  The following acts are prohibited and may 
subject an employee to discharge or mandatory testing: 
 
  (1)  Abuse of any legal drug; 
 
  (2)  Purchase, sale, manufacture, distribution, 
        transportation, dispensation, or possession of any 
        legal prescription drug in a manner inconsistent 
        with law. 
 
  (3)  Being impaired due to use of legal drugs  
 
 
 2220.40 Disciplinary Action 
 
  2220.41 Discharge for Violation of GuidelinesPolicy:  A first 
violation of this GuidelinePolicy may result in immediate discharge. 
 
  2220.42 Discretion Not to Discharge:  The District, in the 
discretion of the General Manager, may choose not to discharge an employee for a first 
violation of this Policy.GuidelinePolicy if the violation did not: 
 
  (1)  Cause an injury to or endanger the employee's 
        safety or the safety of anyone else; 
 
  (2)  Result in significant damage to District property  
        or pose a risk of significant damage; or 
 
  (3)  Involve the possession of illegal drugs or other 
        controlled substances (in quantities greater than 
        the law allows). 
 
 Such a discretionary choice by the District not to discharge is conditioned on the 
employee’s satisfactory completion of an approved drug or alcohol abuse assistance or 
rehabilitation program when recommended by the District.  An employee not discharged 
for a first violation of this Guideline, will receive a final written warning and immediate 
suspension without pay for a period of ten (10) calendar days at the discretion of the 
General Manager. 
 
  2220.43 Effect of Criminal Conviction:  If an employee is 
convicted under a criminal drug statute for a violation occurring in the workplace or 
during any District-related activity or event, they will be deemed to have violated this 
GuidelinePolicy. 
 
  2220.44 Effect of Second Violation:  A second violation of this 
GuidelinePolicy at any time will result in an employee's immediate discharge. 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2220 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
  2220.45 Effect of Discharge on Eligibility for Rehire:  If 
discharged for a violation of this GuidelinePolicy, an employee will not be eligible for 
rehire by the District. 
 
 2220.50 Drug Free Awareness Program 
 
  2220.51 Employee Awareness:  The District has established a 
Drug-Free Awareness Program that is designed to inform employees about the dangers 
of drug abuse in the workplace.  From time to time, the District will provide  current 
information about available programs for counseling and rehabilitation. 
 
  2220.52 Management Awareness:  Managers and supervisors 
should be attentive to the performance and conduct of those who work with them and 
should not permit an employee to work in an impaired condition or otherwise in violation 
of this GuidelinePolicy.  When management has reasonable suspicion to believe an 
employee or employees are working in violation of this GuidelinePolicy, prompt action 
will be taken. 
 
  2220.53 Criminal Convictions:  Employees are required by this 
GuidelinePolicy to notify the District of any conviction under a criminal drug statute for a 
violation occurring in the workplace or during any District-related activity or event not 
later than five (5) days after the conviction is received.  When required by federal law, 
the District will notify any federal agency with which it has a contract of any employee 
who has been convicted under a criminal drug statute for a violation occurring in the 
workplace. 
 
   2220.60 Unregulated or Authorized Conduct: 
 
  2220.61 Customary Use of Over-the-Counter Drugs:  Nothing in 
this Guideline is intended to prohibit the customary and ordinary use of over-the-counter 
drugs, so long as such activity does not violate any law or result in an employeeyou or 
anyone else being under the influence of drugs in violation of this Guideline. 
 
  2220.62 Off-the-Job Conduct:  Nothing in this Guideline is 
intended to regulate conduct off the job, so long as off-the-job use of alcohol or drugs 
does not result in an employee being under the influence of or otherwise impaired by the 
use of alcohol or drugs in violation of this Guideline. 
 
  2220.63 Use of Alcohol or Legal Drugs:  The General Manager 
will maintain a list of circumstances in which the use or possession of certain legal drugs 
or alcohol is authorized (such as certain medicine or drugs in medicine chests or 
alcoholic beverages during certain business meetings or social functions), and will 
communicate the authorization as appropriate.  Changes to the authorization require the 
prior written approval of the General Manager.  If an employee is required to use legal 
drugs, and they know or should know that use of such drugs might result in working 
while impaired by the drugs in violation of this Guideline, they are encouraged to contact 
their own physician and the General Manager to find out whether it is advisable for them 
to work while using those drugs.  In such cases, the District reserves the right to have a 
District physician determine whether it is advisable for an employee to continue working 
while taking the drugs.  Except as otherwise provided in this Guideline, employees may 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2220 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
not assume that their possession, use, purchase, sale, manufacture, distribution, 
transportation, or dispensation of alcohol or drugs is authorized unless they have been 
notified in writing by the General Manager. 
 
 2220.70 Confidentiality.   
 
  2220.71 Disclosures made to the District concerning an individual’s 
use of legal drugs or participation in any drug or alcohol counseling or rehabilitation 
program will be treated as confidentially as possible. 
 
 
 2220.80 Counseling . 
 
  2220.81 If an employee suspects that they may have an alcohol or 
drug problem, even in the early stages, they are encouraged voluntarily to seek 
diagnosis and to follow through with the treatment as prescribed by qualified 
professionals.  The District is committed to providing reasonable accommodation to 
employees whose drug or alcohol problem classifies them as handicapped disabled 
under federal and/or state law.  Employees wishing to voluntarily enter and participate in 
an approved alcohol or drug rehabilitation program, are encouraged to contact the 
General Manager, who will determine whether the District can accommodate them by 
providing unpaid leave for the time necessary to complete participation in the program.  
It should be noted, however, that participation in a rehabilitation program will not 
necessarily shield an employee from discipline the imposition of disciplinary action for a 
violation of this guidelinePolicy, particularly if discipline is imposed for a violation 
occurring before an employee seeks assistance. 
 
 2220.90 Drug Testing 
 
  2220.91 When a supervisor reasonably suspects that an employee 
is intoxicated or under the influence of alcohol and/or drugs as prohibited by this 
GuidelinePolicy, that supervisor must immediately report such suspicion to the General 
Manager who will consider what action to take. 
 
  2220.92 The General Manager may request that an employee 
submit to a drug and/or alcohol test when the General Manger has a reasonable 
suspicion that an employee is intoxicated or under the influence of drugs or alcohol as 
prohibited under this GuidelinePolicy. 
 
  2220.93 “Reasonable Suspicion”  is a belief based on objective 
facts sufficient to lead a reasonable prudent person to suspect that an employee is 
under the influence of drugs or alcohol so that the employee’s ability to perform the 
functions of the job is noticeably impaired or so that the employee’s ability to perform 
his/her job safely is reduced; or where an accident involving District property is coupled 
with one or more of the examples below. 
 
   For example, any of the following, alone or in combination, may 
constitute reasonable suspicion: 
 
   1.  Slurred speech; 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2220 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
   2.  Alcohol odor on breath; 
   3.  Unsteady walking or movement; 
   4.  Extreme unusual behavior; 
   5.  Possession of alcohol or drugs; 


6.  Smell of a drug or alcohol, 
7.  Red or bloodshot eyes, 
8.. Incriminating statements or admissions of the employee, 
9.   69.  Information obtained from a reliable 
person who observed or overheard or had reason to know of any 
of the conduct described in 1-8 above.Information obtained from a 
reliable person 


        relative to any conduct exhibited by an 
                                     individual under items 1-5 above. 
 
  2220.94 When the General Manager requests that an employee 
submit to a drug and/or alcohol test, he or she shall document in writing the facts 
constituting reasonable suspicion that the employee in question is intoxicated or under 
the influence of alcohol and/or drugs. 
 
  2220.95 If an employee refuses any proper order request to submit 
to a drug and or alcohol analysis upon request, good cause shall exist for the General 
Manager to apply the disciplinary provisions under section 2220.40 may be applied by 
the General Manager, including immediate discharge. 
 
  2220.96 The General Manager should make reasonable effort to 
provide for safe transportation to the testing facility or home when there is a reasonable 
suspicion that an employee is intoxicated or under the influence of alcohol or drugs. 
 


2220.97   2220.97 The drug/alcohol test 
samples will be taken at a laboratory certified by the State 
Department of Health and selected by the District which 
uses basic forensic standards and followsfollowing strict 
chain of custody procedures.  Strict confidentiality shall be 
maintained relative to the names and circumstances 
involved with regard to requests for drug/alcohol testing.  


 
  


2220.98  The initial test will generally utilize immunoassay 
techniques of the urine sample.  To insure against false 
positives, all specimens identified as positives shall be 
confirmed utilizing gas chromatography/mas opectrometry 
(GC/MS) technique.  The following standards shall be used 
to determine what levels of detected substances shall be 
considered as positive: 


 
SUBSTANCE        SCREENING TEST        CONFIRMATION 
 
 
Amphetamines           500 ng/ml amphetamine         500 ng/ml GC-MS 
Cocaine                     300 ng/ml metabolite             300 ng/ml GC-MS 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2220 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
Opiates                      300 ng/ml morphine              300 ng/ml GC-MS 
Phencyclidine             75 ng/ml                              75 ng/ml GC-MS 
Marijuana                   50 ng/ml                              50 ng/ml GC-MS 
                                                                               (Delta 9-THC) 
Barbiturates                300 ng/ml                              300 ng/ml GC-MS 
Benzodiazapines         300 ng/ml                              300 ng/ml GC-MS 
Ethyl Alcohol                0.04%                                      0.04% 
 
  2220.98 The initial test will generally utilize immunoassay 
techniques of the urine sample.  To insure against false positives, all specimens 
identified as positives shall be confirmed utilizing gas chromatography/mas opectrometry 
(GC/MS) technique. 
 
  2220.99 Retesting of original specimens shall be permitted at the 
request of the employee/applicant and at the requesting person’s expense, if the request 
for retesting is received within twenty-four (24) hours of receiving notification of his/her 
results.  Retesting shall correspond exactly with the initial testing methods and 
procedures.







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2220 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


TOC 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2230 PROOF OF RIGHT TO WORK 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2230  Policy Title: Proof of Right to Work 
Policy Number: 2230 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  ___ October 6, 2011____________ 
 
 
 2230.10 General Rule:  Under federal law, aAll new hires must produce 
original documentation establishing their identity and right to work in the United States, 
and complete INS Form I-9, swearing that they have a right to work in the United States.  
Documentation must be produced within three (3) business days of hire, or on the first 
day of any employment that is less than three (3) business days.  Required 
documentation must be presented to the General Manager who will be responsible for 
processing the documents.  If appropriate documentation is not received within this time, 
the employment relationship will be terminated.   
 
 2230.20 Documentation:  Documents that may be used to establish identity 
and employment eligibility are listed on INS Form I-9.  This form can be obtained from 
the US Citizenship and Immigration Services website www.uscis.gov/files/form/i-9.pdf. 
Any one of the following documents may be used to establish both identity and 
employment eligibility: 
 
  (1)  United States passport (current or expired); 
  (2)  Certificate of United States Citizenship; 
  (3)  Certificate of Naturalization; 
  (4)  Unexpired foreign passport with employment 
        authorization stamped in the passport or with 
        employment authorization stamped on INS 
        Form I-94 attached to the passport; 
  (5)  Alien Registration Receipt Card or Resident Alien 
        card ("Green Card"), with photograph; 
  (6)  Temporary Resident Card (INS Form I-688); or 
  (7)  Employment Authorization Card (INS Form I-688A). 
 
 2230.30 Alternative Proof:  If applicant cannot produce one of the 
documents listed above, two (2) documents are required:  one to prove identity, and 
another to prove employment eligibility. 
 
 2230.40 Eligibility:  The following documents are acceptable to establish 
employment eligibility (but not identity); 
 
  (1)  Social Security card (other than one that has "not 
        valid for employment purposes" printed on its 
        face); 
  (2)  Birth certificate bearing a seal or other certification  
        from any state, county, or city or from the U.S. 
        Department of State; 
  (3)  Unexpired INS employment authorization; 
  (4)  Native American tribal document; or 
  (5)  Other INS documents indicating authorization 



http://www.uscis.gov/files/form/i-9.pdf�





Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2230 PROOF OF RIGHT TO WORK 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
        to work, including Citizen Identification Card 
        (INS Form I-197), unexpired INS Refugee Travel 
        Document (INS Form I-571), or unexpired INS 
        Re-Entry Permit (INS Form I-327). 
 
 2230.50 Identity:  The following documents are acceptable as proof of 
identity (but not employment eligibility) 
 
  (1)  State-issued drivers license or I.D. card with 
        photograph; 
  (2)  Canadian drivers license; 
  (3)  School I.D. card with photograph; 
  (4)  Voter's registration card; 
  (5)  U.S. military card or military dependent's 
        identification card; 
  (6)  I.D. card issued by federal, state or local 
        government agencies or entities; or 
  (7)  Native American tribal document. 
 
 2230.6030 Maintenance of Record:  Authorization documents will be copied 
and placed with the employee's Form I-9 in a special file separate from the employee's 
Personnel File. 
 


TOC 
 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2240 TRAVEL / EDUCATIONAL REIMBURSEMENT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
2240  







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2240 TRAVEL / EDUCATIONAL REIMBURSEMENT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


Policy Title: Travel / /Educational Reimbursement 
Policy Number: 2240 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  June 5, 2008, October 6, 2011______________ 
Date Revised: June 5, 2008 
 
 
 2240.10 Policy:  The District will reimbursepurpose of this policy is to 
establish guidelinesPolicy for reimbursement of expenses of employees while on District 
authorized business in accordance with this Policy.  (Director travel/educational 
reimbursement is addressed in Section 4070 of these Policies and Procedurespolicies 
and procedures.) 
 
 2240.20 Mileage Reimbursement:  When personal autos are used on 
approved District business, the District will reimburse for mileage in accord with the 
current Union contract MOU (currently the IRS standard mileage rate).  A 
Reimbursement Form must be submitted to substantiate travel. 
 
 2240.30 Travel allowance:  The District may grantgrants a monthly travel 
allowance to the General Manager and the Field Manager for mileage incurred in 
conducting District business.  Supporting documentation for the monthly travel 
allowance, including: 


(1) Date 
(2) Distance traveled, and 
(3) Nature of business 


shall be submitted to and approved by the General Manager on a quarterly basis (March 
31, June 30, September 30, and December 31).  Travel allowance paid in excess of the 
supporting documentation shall be calculated using the accepted IRS mileage rate shall 
be calculated and reported on an annual basis on the employee’s W-2 form in 
accordance with the applicable IRS rules. 
 
 2240.40 Reimbursement for Seminars/Other Functions:  If an employee is 
attending a function on behalf of the District and costs are incurred, such costs shall be 
subject to reimbursement on the following conditions: 
 
  2240.41 Attendance and overnightovernightte accommodations 
areareis pre-authorized by the General Manager.  Payment for tuition for educational 
programs, overnite overnight accommodations and transportation costs should be 
separately identified. 
 
  2240.42 The most economical mode and class of transportation 
reasonably consistent with scheduling needs and space requirements must be used, 
using the most direct and time-efficient route.  Government and group rates must be 
used when available. 
 
  2240.43 Reimbursement for meals shall not exceed the regular 
federal Meals and Incidental Expenses (M&IE) per diem rate established for Santa 
Rosa, California, unless appropriate receipts documenting the expenses are presented 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2240 TRAVEL / EDUCATIONAL REIMBURSEMENT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
with the reimbursement request.  As of July, 2011the date of the adoption of this 
ordinance, the rates are as follows (see www.gsa.gov/mie ): 
 
  Breakfast: $1012, including gratuities 
  Lunch:  $1518, including gratuities 
  Dinner:  $31, including gratuities 
 
  2240.44 A Reimbursement Form must be completed with 
appropriate receipts attached. 
 
 2240.50 Expenses Not Reimbursed: The District will specifically not 
reimburse for any personal expenses including any of the following: 
 
  (1)  Alcoholic beverages consumed, while attending 
        functions authorized under this policy. 
  (2)  The cost of any expenses incurred by spouses, registered domestic 
        partners, children or friends. 
  (3)  Items of a personal or long term nature not relative 
        to district business such as clothing, materials not  
        related to water district business or entertainment. 
  (4)  Mechanical repairs to private vehicles used in traveling 
        to and from the destination. 
  (5)  Any personal items lost or stolen while at approved 
        functions. 
 
 2240.60  Educational Assistance: Reimbursement for approved 
courses of study shall be in accord with the current Union MOUcontract. 
 
 2240.70 Licensing/Certification. Reimbursement of costs for the 
State Department of Health licenses, certifications, and exams shall be in accord with 
the current Union contractMOU. 
 


TOC 
 



http://www.gsa.gov/mie�





Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2250 ADVANCEMENT OF WAGES 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
2250   







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2250 ADVANCEMENT OF WAGES 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


Policy Title: Advancement of Wages 
Policy Number: 2250 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  __ October 6, 2011_____________ 
 
 
 2250.10 Policy:  Advancement of wages prior to a regular pay day is not a 
privilege which an employee may use at his/her discretion, but may be authorized by the 
General Manager at their his/her discretion only.  
 
 2250.20 Request:  Employees requesting payment of wages in advance of 
regular pay days shall submit said request to the General Manager. 
 
 2250.30 Authorization:  The General Manager may authorize the requested 
advancement of wages to the extent the amount requested does not exceed the wages 
accrued (excluding applicable deductions) by the employee to the date of said request. 
 
 2250.40 Frequency:  Requests for advancement of wages may be 
submitted only once in any pay period, and frequent requests shall be grounds for denial 
of authorization. 
 


TOC 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2260 CONTINUITY OF SERVICE AND RE-EMPLOYMENT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
2260  







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2260 CONTINUITY OF SERVICE AND RE-EMPLOYMENT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


Policy Title: Continuity of Service and Employment 
Policy Number: 2260 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  __ October 6, 2011_____________ 
 
 
 2260.10 Policy:  For full-time employees in all classifications, length of 
continuous service with the District will be used as the basis for determining benefits 
such as sick leave and vacation time.  Length of continuous service will also be one of 
the considerations in promotions, demotions.  and layoff, and re-employment.  
"Continuous service" means service that is uninterrupted by termination of employment 
and subsequent rehire by the District.  . 
 
 2260.20 Accumulation:  Continuous service with the District will start with 
the commencement of employment and will continue until an employee is discharged for 
cause; voluntarily terminates his/her employment; or is laid off. 
 
 2260.30 Continuity:  Continuity of an employee's service will not be broken 
by absence for the following reasons, and his/her length of service will accrue for the 
period of such absence during an industrial disability; while on authorized absence 
without pay for less than thirty (30) days in a calendar year; or while such absence is 
governed by applicable state and/or federal laws such as military, National Guard, or 
Fire service. 
 
 2260.40 Re-Employment List:  A re-employment list shall be maintained by 
the District.  The re-employment list shall be used to determine the order in which part-
time and temporary employees shall be employed when other than full-time work is 
available and additional employees are needed.  The list shall be arranged on the basis 
of seniority.  An individual is considered to have seniority if his/her length of service, as 
defined above is greater than that of another individual on the list.  An individual on the 
re-employment list may be rehired in order of seniority to fill a vacant position within a 
specific job classification if he/she was previously employed within said job classification 
or within a job classification requiring higher qualifications, and/or satisfies the 
qualifications as specified in the job description for said vacant position; and. 
 
 2260.50 Availability to Work:  When an individual on the re-employment list 
is called to work and is unavailable to work, the next person on the list having seniority 
and satisfying the conditions listed in Section 23702260.40 (should be 2260.40?) above, 
shall be called.  If an individual is called to work three (3) times without being available to 
work, his/her name may be removed from the re-employment list.  An individual shall be 
removed from the re-employment list when he/she notifies the District that he/she has 
taken a permanent position elsewhere and is unavailable to work for the District. 
 
 2260.60 Eligibility for List:  Full-time employees who are laid off will be 
placed on the re-employment list and shall receive seniority based on previously earned 
length-of-service. 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2260 CONTINUITY OF SERVICE AND RE-EMPLOYMENT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
 2260.70 Maintenance of Records:  Previous full-time employees who were 
laid off and called back for work not being full-time in nature will have their employment 
service records maintained so that they accumulate length of service as they work on an 
"hour-for-hour" basis. 
 
 2260.80 Part-time Employees.  For regular part-time employees i.e. 
employees who work a minimum of twenty (20) hours per week, vacation and sick leave 
accrue on a pro rataratia basis based upon length of continuous service as described by 
Sections 2260.20 and 2260.30. 
 


TOC 
 
 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2270 EMPLOYER - EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


Section 2000 P&P, Draft, July 3Ordinance Introduction, September 1, 2011  4 


2270   







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2270 EMPLOYER - EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


Section 2000 P&P, Draft, July 3Ordinance Introduction, September 1, 2011  5 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


Policy Title: Employer - Employee Relations 
 Policy Number: 2270 
Date Approved: December 22, 1992 
Date Revised:  May 11, 1994, October 6, 20114 
 
 
 2270.10 Purpose.  The purpose of thisIt is the  policy of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District  is to to follow State Law in Employer – Employee Relations by 
implementing Chapter 10, Division 4, Title l of the Government Code of the State of 
California (Sections 3500 et seq.) captioned “Public Employee Organizations,” by 
providing orderly procedures for the administration of employer-employee relations 
between the District and its employee organizations and for resolving disputes regarding 
wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment. 
 
TOC 2270.20 Definitions.  As used in this policy, the following terms shall have 


the meanings indicated: 
 
  (l) “Appropriate unit” means a unit established pursuant to Section 
2270.100. 
 
  (2) “Board of Directors” means the Board of Directors of 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, a public entity. 
 
  (3) “Consult or Consultation in Good Faith” means to communicate 
verbally or in writing for the purpose of presenting and obtaining views or advising of 
intended actions. 
 
  (4) “District” means the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER 
DISTRICT, a public corporation, and where appropriate herein, “District” refers to the 
Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, the governing 
body of the District., or any duly authorized management employee as herein defined, 
 
  (5) “Employee” means any person regularly employed by the District, 
except those persons elected by popular vote. 
 
  (6) “Employee, Confidential” means an employee who is privy to 
decisions of District management affecting employer-employee relations. 
 
  (7) “Employee, Management” means: 
 
   a. Any employee having significant responsibilities for 
formulation and administering District policies and programs, including, but not limited to, 
the General Manager and Assistant General Manager; and 
 
   b. Any employee having authority to exercise independent 
judgment to hire, transfer, suspend, lay off, recall, promote, discharge, assign, reward or 
discipline other employees, or having the responsibility to direct them, or to adjust their 
grievances, or effectively to recommend such action if in connection with the foregoing, 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2270 EMPLOYER - EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


Section 2000 P&P, Draft, July 3Ordinance Introduction, September 1, 2011  6 


the exercise of such authority being not of a merely routine or clerical nature, but 
requiring the use of independent judgment. 
 
  (8) “Employee, Professional” means employees engaged in work 
requiring specialized knowledge and skills attained through completion of a recognized 
course of instruction, including but not limited to, attorneys, engineers, architects, and 
various types of physical, chemical and biological scientists. 
 
  (9) “Employee Organization” means any organization which elects to 
represent employees in their employment relations with the District. 
 
  (10) “Employee Relations Officer” means the General Manager, the 
District’s representative in all matters of employer-employee relations official designated 
pursuant to Section 2270.120, or his or her duly authorized representative. 
 
  (11) “Employer-Employee Relations” means the relationship between 
the District and its employees and their employee organization, or when used in a 
general sense, the relationship between District management and employees or 
employee organizations. 
 
  (12) “Impasse” means: 
 
   a. A deadlock in the annual (or periodic) discussions between 
a majority representative and the district over any matters concerning which they are 
required to meet and confer in good faith, or over the scope of such subject matter; or 
 
   b. Any unresolved complaint by an affected employee 
organization, advanced in good faith, concerning a decision of the employee relations 
officer made pursuant to Sections 2270.80, 2270.90, 2270.100 or 2270.110. 
 
 
  (13) “Mediation or Conciliation” means the efforts of an impartial third 
person, or persons, functioning as intermediaries, to assist the parties in reaching a 
voluntary resolution to an impasse, through interpretation, suggestion and advice.  
Mediation and conciliation are interchangeable terms. 
 
  (14) “Meet and Confer in Good Faith” (sometimes referred to herein as 
“meet and confer” or “meeting and conferring”) means performance by duly authorized 
District representatives and duly authorized representatives of an employee organization 
recognized as the majority representative of their mutual obligation to meet at 
reasonable times and to confer in good faith regarding matters within the scope of 
representation, including wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment, 
in an effort to: 
 
   a. Reach agreement on those matters within the authority of 
such representatives; and 
 
   b. Reach agreement on what will be recommended to the 
Board of Directors on those matters within the decision-making authority of the Board of 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2270 EMPLOYER - EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


Section 2000 P&P, Draft, July 3Ordinance Introduction, September 1, 2011  7 


Directors. This does not require either party to agree to a proposal or to make a 
concession. 
 
  (15) “Recognized Employee Organization” means an employee 
organization which has been certified by the employee relations officer as an employee 
organization that represents a majority of employees of the District. 
   
  (16) “Scope of Representation” means all matters relating to 
employment conditions and employer-employee relations, including but not limited to 
wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment.  District rights (Section 
2270.40) and preempted subjects (Section 2270.50 b) are excluded from the scope of 
representation. 
 
 2270.30 Employee Rights.  Employees of the District shall have the right to 
form, join and participate in the activities of employee organizations of their own 
choosing for the purpose of representation on all matters of employer-employee 
relations including but not limited to wages, hours and other terms and conditions of 
employment.  Employees of the District also shall have the right to refuse to join or 
participate in the activities of employee organizations and shall have the right to 
represent themselves individually in their employment relations with the District.  No 
employee shall be interfered with, intimidated, restrained, coerced or discriminated 
against by the District or by any employee organization because of his or her  exercise 
of these rights. 
 
 2270.40 District Rights.  The rights of the District include, but are not 
limited to, the exclusive right to determine the mission of its constituent departments, 
commissions and boards; set standards of service; determine the procedures and 
standards of selection for employment and promotion; direct its employees; take 
disciplinary action; relieve its employees from duty because of lack of work or for other 
legitimate reasons; maintain the efficiency of governmental operations; determine the 
methods, means and personnel by which government operations are to be conducted; 
determine the content of job classifications; take all necessary actions to carry out its 
mission in emergencies; and exercise complete control and discretion over the 
organization and technology of performing its work. 
 
 2270.50 Meet and Confer in Good Faith--Scope. 
 
  The District, through its representatives, shall meet and confer in good 
faith with representatives of recognized employee organization regarding matters within 
the scope of representation including wages, hours and other terms and conditions of 
employment within the  appropriate unit.  The District shall not be required to meet and 
confer in good faith on any subject preempted by federal or state law, nor shall it be 
required to meet and confer in good faith on employee or District rights as defined in 
Section 2270.30 and 2270.40.  Proposed amendments to this policy are excluded from 
the scope of meeting and conferring. 
 
 2270.60 Additional Rights of Recognized Employee Organizations. 
 
  A recognized employee organization shall be afforded the following rights 
and privileges subject to managerial review: 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2270 EMPLOYER - EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


Section 2000 P&P, Draft, July 3Ordinance Introduction, September 1, 2011  8 


 
  (l) The right to have regular membership costs and dues of its 
members, who so request, collected by payroll deductions pursuant to procedures 
prescribed by the General Manager provided such deductions are mutually agreed to by 
the employer and employee organization. 
 
  (2) The reasonable use of space on District bulletin boards at  places 
of employee gathering. 
 
  (3) The right to contact District employees during their duty period, 
provided that the General Manager is notified of such activities and such contact does 
not interfere with public service, District security or safety requirements. 
 
  (4) The right to distribute information to District employees and, when 
practicable, to use District channels for such distribution. 
 
 2270.70 Advance Notice.  Reasonable written notice shall be given to each 
recognized employee organization affected by any ordinance, rule, resolution or 
regulation directly relating to matters within the scope of representation proposed to be 
adopted by the Board of Directors, and such organization shall be given the opportunity 
to meet with the Board prior to adoption. 
 
 In cases of emergency when the District determines that an ordinance, rule, 
resolution or regulation must be adopted immediately without prior notice or meeting with 
a recognized employee organization, the District shall provide notice and opportunity to 
meet at the earliest practicable time following the adoption of such ordinance, rule, 
resolution or regulation. 
 
 2270.80 Petition for Recognition:  An employee organization that seeks 
recognition for purposes of meeting and conferring in good faith as the majority 
representative of employees in an appropriate unit shall file a petition with the Employee 
Relations Officer containing the following information and documentation: 
 
   a. Name and address of the employee organization; 
 
   b. Names and titles of its officers; 
 
   c. Names of employee organization representatives who are 
authorized to speak on behalf of its members; 
 
   d. A statement that the employee organization has, as one of 
its primary purposes, representing employees in their employment relations with the 
District; 
 
   e. A statement whether the employee organization is a 
chapter or local of, or affiliated directly or indirectly  in any manner with, a regional or 
state, or national or international organization, and, if so, the name and address of each 
such regional, state or international organization; 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2270 EMPLOYER - EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


Section 2000 P&P, Draft, July 3Ordinance Introduction, September 1, 2011  9 


   f. Certified copies of the employee organizations constitution 
and by-laws; 
 
   g. A designation of those persons, not exceeding two in 
number, and their addresses, to who notice sent by regular United States mail will be 
deemed sufficient notice on the employee organization for any purpose; 
 
   h. A statement that the employee organization recognizes 
that the provisions of Section 923 of the California Labor Code are not applicable to 
District employees; 
 
   i. A statement that the employee organization has no 
restriction on membership based on race, color, creed, sex, national origin, religion, 
sexual preference, or other  prohibited basis. 
 
   j. The job classifications or titles of employees in the unit 
claimed to be appropriate and the approximate number of member employees therein; 
 
   k. A statement that the employee organization has in its 
possession written proof, dated within six months of the date upon which the petition is 
filed, to establish that employees in the unit claimed to be appropriate have designated 
the employee organization to represent them in their employment relations with the 
District.  Such written proof shall be submitted for confirmation to the employee relations 
officers or to a mutually agreed upon disinterested third party; 
 
   l. A request that the District recognize the employee 
organization as the exclusive representative of the employees in the unit claimed to be 
appropriate for the purpose of meeting and conferring in good faith on all matters within 
the scope of representation. 
 
  The petition, including all accompanying documents shall be verified, 
under oath, by the executive officer and secretary of the organization that the statements 
are true.  All changes in such information shall be filed forthwith in like manner. 
 
 
 2270.90 Appropriate Unit.          
  (1) The Employee Relations Officer, after reviewing the petition filed 
by an employee organization seeking formal recognition as majority representative, shall 
determine whether the proposed unit is an appropriate unit.  The Employee Relations 
Officer shall seek to identify as an appropriate unit the largest feasible grouping of 
District employees who have a community of interest.    The following factors, among 
others, are to be considered in making such determination:  
 
   a. Which unit will assure employees the fullest freedom in the 
exercise of rights set forth under this chapter; 
 
   b. The history of employee relations: 
 
    (1) In the unit, 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2270 EMPLOYER - EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


Section 2000 P&P, Draft, July 3Ordinance Introduction, September 1, 2011  10 


    (2) Among other employees of the District, if   
    any, and 
    (3) In similar public employment; 
 
   c. The effect of the unit on the efficient operation of the 
District and sound employer-employee relations; 
 
   d. The extent to which employees have common skills, 
working conditions, job duties or similar educational requirements; 
 
   e. The effect on the existing classification structure of dividing 
a single classification among two or more units.  Provided, however, no unit shall be 
established solely on the basis of the extent to which employees in the proposed unit 
have organized. 
 
  (2) In the establishment of appropriate units: 
 
   a. Professional employees shall not be denied the right to be 
represented separately from nonprofessional employees; and 
   
   b. Management and confidential employees who are included 
in the same unit with non management or non confidential employees may not represent 
such employees on matters within the scope of representation. 
 
 2270.100 Recognition of Employee Organizations as Exclusive 
Representative. 
 
  (1) The District Board of Directors shall: 
 
   a. Determine the exclusive representative of District 
employees in an appropriate unit if any by arranging for a secret ballot election or by any 
other reasonable method which is based upon written proof, and is designed to 
ascertain the free choice of a majority of such employees.  The employee organization 
found to represent a  majority of the employees in an appropriate unit shall be granted 
exclusive recognition and is the only employee organization entitled to meet and confer 
in good faith on matters within the scope of representation for employees in such unit.  
This shall not preclude individual employees, from consulting with management  
representatives on employer-employee relations matters of concern to them.   
 
   b. Revoke the recognition rights of an exclusive 
representative which has been found by secret ballot election no longer to be the 
majority representative. 
 
  (2) A decision certifying a exclusive representative, establishing a unit 
or discussing a claim shall not be subject to challenge for a period of twelve months 
following the date of such decision. 
 
 2270.110 Modification of Established Unit and Decertification.   A petition for 
modification of a unit and/or decertification may be filed with Employee Relations Officer 
after the initial twelve month period, but no more than ninety nor less than sixty days 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2270 EMPLOYER - EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


Section 2000 P&P, Draft, July 3Ordinance Introduction, September 1, 2011  11 


prior to the expiration or renewal date of a Memorandum of Understanding between the 
recognized employee organization and the District.  Such petition may be filed by: 
 
  (1) The recognized employee organization as a disavowal of interest; 
 
  (2) Another employee organization, provided the petition  is 
accompanied by authorization cards signed by at least thirty percent of all employees in 
the currently recognized unit. 
 
  (3) Any group of employees consisting of at least ten percent of all 
employees in a unit; 
 
  (4) The General Manager, for reasons related to structural changes in 
District functions, organizational structure or job classifications. 
 
 2270.120 Designation of Employee Relations Officer.  The Board of 
Directors may designate an Employee Relations Officer who shall be the District’s 
principal representative in all matters of employer-employee relations, with authority to 
meet and confer in good faith on matters within the scope of representation, including 
wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment.  In absence of such 
designation, the General Manager shall act as the Employee Relations Officer. 
 
 2270.130 Resolution of Impasses. 
 
  (1) Impasse procedures may be invoked only after the possibility of 
settlement by direct discussion has been exhausted. 
 
  (2) The impasse procedures are as follows: 
 
   a. Mediation or conciliation (defined in subsection (14) of 
Section 2270.20).  All mediation proceedings shall be private.  The mediator shall make 
no public recommendation nor take any public position concerning the issues; 
 
   b. A determination by the Board of Directors after a hearing 
on the merits of the dispute; 
 
   c. Any other dispute resolving procedures to which the 
parties mutually agree or which the Board of Directors may order. 
 
  (3) Any party may initiate the impasse procedure by filing with the 
other party (or parties) affected a written request for an impasse meeting together with a 
statement of its position on all disputed issues.  An impasse meeting shall then be 
scheduled by the Employee Relations Officer forthwith after the date of filing of the 
written request for such meeting, with written notice to all parties affected.  The purpose 
of such impasse meeting is twofold: 
 
   a. To permit a review of the position of all parties in a final 
effort to reach agreement on the disputed issues; and 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2270 EMPLOYER - EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


Section 2000 P&P, Draft, July 3Ordinance Introduction, September 1, 2011  12 


   b. If agreement is not concluded, to mutually select the 
specific impasse procedure to which the dispute shall be submitted;   
 
 In the event the parties are unable to agree on a or b above, the matter shall be 
referred to the Board of Directors, which may, after declaring impasse, take such actions 
as it deems advisable including, but not limited to, unilateral imposition of the last offer. 
 
  (4) The fees and expenses, if any, of mediators or of any other 
impasse procedure, shall be payable one-half by the District and one-half by the 
employee organization or employee organizations. 
 
 2270.140 Memorandum of Understanding.  When the meeting and 
conferring process is concluded between the District and a recognized employee 
organization,  all agreed upon matters shall be incorporated in a written memorandum of 
understanding signed by the duly authorized District and exclusive representatives. 
 
 As to those matters within the authority of the Board of Directors, the 
memorandum of understanding shall be submitted to the Board of Directors for 
determination. 
 
 2270.150 Rules and Regulations.  The Board of Directors may adopt such 
rules and regulations necessary or convenient to implement the provisions of this policy 
and Chapter 10, Division 4, Title 1 of the Government Code of the State of California. 
 
 2270.160 Construction. 
 
  (1) Nothing in this policy shall be construed to deny any person or 
employee the rights granted by federal and state laws. 
 
  (2) The rights, powers and authority of the Board of Directors in all 
matters, including the right to maintain any legal action, shall not be modified or 
restricted by this policy. 
 
  (3) The provisions of this policy are not intended to conflict with the 
provisions of Chapter 10, Division 4, Title 1 of the Government Code of the State of 
California. 
 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2270 EMPLOYER - EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


Section 2000 P&P, Draft, July 3Ordinance Introduction, September 1, 2011  13 


 
 





		Policy Title:     Executive Officer

		Policy Title:     Personnel Policy Review and Ratification

		Policy Title: Employee Classifications / /Compensation

		Policy Title:     Hours of Work and Overtime

		Policy Title:     Vacation

		Policy Title:     Holidays

		Policy Title: Sick Leave

		Policy Title: Leaves of Absence

		2060  Insurance and Retirement Benefits

		2070  Open Door

		2080  Internal Complaint Review

		Termination, Discipline, and Rules of Conduct 

		Smoking / /Dress / /Grooming / /Health Standards

		Employment of Relatives

		Safety Program

		Security / /Confidential Information

		   Workplace

		2170  Solicitation, Distribution and Bulletin Boards

		Policy Title: Non-Fraternization

		Policy Title: Harassment

		Policy Title: Conflicts of Interest

		Policy Title: Inspections and Searches for Prohibited

		Policy Title: Drug Free Workplace

		2230  Policy Title: Proof of Right to Work

		Policy Title: Travel / /Educational Reimbursement

		Policy Title: Advancement of Wages

		Policy Title: Continuity of Service and Employment

		Policy Title: Employer - Employee Relations






Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 2000 - 2999 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
 
 SECTIONS 
 


2000  Executive Officer 
2001  Personnel Policy Review and Ratification 
2005  Employee Classifications / Compensation 
2010  Hours of Work and Overtime 
2020  Vacation 
2030  Holidays 
2040  Sick Leave 
2050  Leaves of Absence 
2060  Insurance and Retirement Benefits 
2070  Open Door 
2080  Internal Complaint Review 
2090  Termination, Discipline, and Rules of Conduct 
2100  Personnel Records 
2110  Smoking / Dress / Grooming / Health Standards 
2120  Employment of Relatives 
2130  Safety Program 
2140  Security / Confidential Information 
2150  AIDS and AIDS-Related Conditions in the Workplace 
2170  Solicitation, Distribution and Bulletin Boards 
2180  Non-Fraternization 
2190  Harassment 
2200  Conflicts of Interest 
2210  Inspections and Searches 
2220  Drug Free Workplace 
2230  Proof of Right to Work 
2240  Travel / Educational Reimbursement 
2250  Advancement of Wages 
2260  Continuity of Service and Employment 
2270  Employer - Employee Relations 


 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2000 EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2000  Executive Officer 
Date Approved:     December 8, 1992 
Date Revised:        October 6, 2011 
 
 2000.10 The General Manager shall be the Executive Officer of the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District. 
 
 2000.20 The terms and conditions of the General Manager's employment 
shall be specified in the agreement of employment established between the General 
Manager and the Board of Directors.  The General Manager shall serve at the pleasure 
of the Board of Directors. 
 
 2000.30 Whenever the agreement of employment established between the 
General Manager and the Board of Directors is in conflict with any District policy, said 
agreement of employment shall prevail. 
 
 2000.40 The duties of the General Manager shall include all those duties 
outlined in the State of California Water Code Section 30580 and 30581 incorporated 
herein by reference.  Additionally, the General Manager or his /her designee shall serve 
as the clerk of the Board. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2001 PERSONNEL POLICY REVIEW AND RATIFICATION 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2001  Personnel Policy Review and Ratification 
Date Approved: July 6, 2005 (Ordinance 28) 
Date Revised:  October 6, 2011 
 
 2001 Sections 2001 to 3000 of the District Policies and Procedures Manual 
(Personnel Policy) shall be reviewed periodically by District staff and District Counsel, at 
least as often as directly after the Board of Directors’ approval of a Memorandum of 
Understanding with the designated Employee Organization representing District 
employees. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2005 EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATIONS / COMPENSATION 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2005  Employee Classifications / Compensation 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised: __3/14/02 (Resolution 02-10), October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2005.10 This policy shall apply to all District employees. 
 
 2005.20 Employee Classifications: 
 
  2005.21 By Number of Hours Worked 
 
   (1)  Full-Time Employees:  Full-time employees are all those 
having a regular work schedule of forty (40) hours per week. 
 
   (2)  Part-Time Employees:  Part-time employees are all those 
having a regular work schedule of less than forty (40) hours per week. 
 
  2005.22 By Length of Employment 
 
   (1)  Temporary Employees:  Temporary employees are all those 
hired under special assignment with the specific understanding that such work will be 
completed within a short period of time. 
 
   (2)  Regular Employees:  Regular employees are all others. 
 
  2005.23 By Method of Payment 
 
   (1)  Salaried Employees:  Salaried employees are all those who 
are paid a fixed salary and not by the hour.  These positions are usually 
management/supervisorial positions. 
 
   (2)  Hourly Employees:  Hourly employees are all those whose 
wages are paid by the hour and fluctuate according to the number of hours worked. 
 
  2005.24 By Eligibility for Overtime 
 
   (1)  Nonexempt Employees:  Nonexempt employees are all 
those who are eligible to be paid for overtime work in accordance with the provisions of 
applicable wage and hour laws. 
 
   (2)  Exempt Employees:  Exempt employees are all those who 
are not eligible for overtime pay. 
 
 2005.30 Compensation 
 
  2005.31  Salary ranges:  Salaries for each position shall be within the 
salary range that is assigned to the position based on the position's duties and 
responsibilities, according to a salary schedule approved by resolution of the Board of 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2005 EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATIONS / COMPENSATION 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
Directors.  Salary ranges for all positions are evaluated on a periodic basis, at least as 
frequently as the approval of a Memorandum of Understanding with the Employee 
Organization.  
 
  2005.32 Compensation at Hiring:  Unless authorized by a majority 
vote of the Board of Directors, all newly appointed employees shall be paid at the first 
step of the salary range for the position to which the employee is appointed.  
 
  2005.33 Merit Advancement Within Range:  Merit advancement 
increases are provided when, in the opinion of the Supervisor and/or General Manager 
an employee's performance warrants an adjustment in salary.  Merit increases are 
based on job performance, evaluations, and observation of an employee's work and can 
be affected by attitude, special training or educational courses.  In the field positions, 
merit increases may be awarded when an employee receives certification from the State 
of California for Graded Water Treatment Operator licenses.  Salary review on an 
individual basis will be scheduled at least once each year and more frequently if 
warranted. 
 
 2005.40 Promotion 
 
  2005.41 It shall be the policy of the District to promote from within 
whenever possible, and to encourage employees to apply for all positions for which they 
are qualified.  A recruitment will take place for all vacancies within a classification and a 
hiring list shall be maintained for a reasonable period of time and may be extended for 
up to one year by the General Manger. 
 
 2005.50 Performance Development Program 
 
  2005.51 Employees receive performance reviews after the first six 
(6) months of employment and annually thereafter.  More frequent performance review 
schedules may be established for specific employees.   
 
  2005.52 The purpose of the review is to evaluate the current level 
of performance of an employee and to examine the progress made since the last review 
as well as establish goals for the next review.  Performance reviews should not be 
confused with salary increases.  While performance reviews may affect the salary 
increases, they are separate issues and a satisfactory performance review does not 
always indicate an increase in salary, and likewise, an increase in salary can be 
awarded without a performance review. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2010 HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2010  Hours of Work and Overtime 
 
Date Approved: November 17, 1992 (Reso. No. 104) 
Date Revised: July 1, 1993; November 30, 1995; September 2, 2004, July 6, 2005, 
October 6, 2011 
 
 2010.10 This policy shall apply to all employees. 
 
 2010.15 Timesheet Documentation.  All employees must submit and sign a 
bi-weekly timecard certifying the accuracy of all time recorded for compensation.  All 
timecards must be approved with a supervisor’s signature.  Any revisions to a timecard 
shall be crossed out, versus erased or “whited” out.  Any revisions must be initialed by 
either the employee or the supervisor approving that employee’s timecard. 
 
 2010.20 Hours of Work:  District office hours are from 8:00 A.M. to 4:30 
P.M., Monday through Friday,. Regular field operation is from 7:30 A.M. to 4:00 P.M. 
Monday through Friday.  All staff shall be provided one-half (1/2) hour for lunch.  All 
employees receive two fifteen (15) minute breaks, one in the morning and one in the 
afternoon.  All employees work eight (8) hours per day and are compensated for their 
break periods.  Employees are not compensated for lunch periods. 
 
 2010.30 Overtime Definition and Rates of Pay: 
 
  2010.31 All nonexempt employees who work more than eight (8) 
hours in one work day or more than forty (40) hours in one work week will receive 
overtime pay as computed for employees in accordance with the Memorandum of 
Understanding with the designated Employee Organization representing District 
Employees. 
 
  All salaried positions within the District shall be designated as 
"Management Positions" and as such are not compensated for overtime. 
 
  2010.32 Pre-Authorization - No nonexempt employee may work 
overtime without the express prior approval of his or her supervisor. 
 
 2010.40 On Call - On call/shift differential:  Operations employees 
scheduled for on-call duty shall be reimbursed and follow other provisions of On Call 
duties according to the relevant sections of the Memorandum of Understanding with the 
designated Employee Organization representing District Employees. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2020 VACATION 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2020  Vacation 
Date Approved: November 17, 1992 (Reso. No. 104) 
Date Revised:  October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2020.10 The District has established a vacation plan to provide eligible 
employees with a period of rest and relaxation without loss of pay or benefits. 
 
  2020.11 Eligibility - All regular full-time employees begin accruing 
vacation benefits upon commencement of employment.  Regular part-time employees 
working a minimum of twenty (20) hours per week accrue vacation on a pro-rata basis.  
Temporary employees and employees who work less than twenty (20) hours per week 
do not accrue vacation benefits.  Employees moving from a part-time position to a full-
time position shall have their vacation pay entitlement calculated from the date of 
becoming eligible in accordance with the Memorandum of Understanding with the 
designated Employee Organization representing District Employees. 
 
  2020.12 Accrual - Employees are entitled to vacation as follows: 
 
Commencement of Employment 
through First Year:    7/12 of one day for 
      each full month 
      worked up to a maximum 
      of seven (7) days for 
      the first year. 
 
Second year through Fifth Year:  10/12 of one day  
      for each full month 
      worked up to a maximum 
      of 10 days per year. 
 
Sixth year through Tenth Year:  15/12 of one day for 
      each full month worked 
      up to a maximum of 15 
      days per year. 
 
Eleventh year and Thereafter:  20/12 of one day for 
       each full month worked 
      up to a maximum of 20 
      days per year. 
 
 2020.13 Administration: 
 
  (1) Maximum Accrual:  Vacation accruals may not exceed twice an 
employee’s current annual entitlement (for example, 30 days for an employee with more 
than five years of service).  Once this maximum is reached, all further accruals will 
cease.  Vacation accruals will recommence after the employee has taken vacation and 
the accrued vacation has dropped below the maximum accrual. 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2020 VACATION 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
  (2)  Vacation Use:  Employees may take their vacation time all at once, 
or gradually, with the prior approval of their supervisor. 
  (3)  Vacation Advances:  Employees may not take vacation before they 
have earned it, without the express authorization of the General Manager. 
 
  (4)  Approval:  All vacations must be approved in advance by the 
employee’s supervisor. 
 
  (5)  Scheduling Conflicts:  Each January, vacations may be scheduled 
according to seniority.  Thereafter, scheduling of vacation will be done on a first come, 
first served basis at the discretion of the General Manager and should be scheduled at 
least one month in advance. 
 
  (6)  Vacation Pay on Termination:  On termination of employment, an 
employee will be paid all accrued but unused vacation. 
 
  (7)  Holidays:  A holiday that falls during a vacation period will be treated 
as a holiday and not as a day of vacation taken. 
 
  (8)  Vacation Accrual During Leaves of Absence:  If an employee 
takes an unpaid leave of absence, he or she will not earn vacation during the leave.  
Vacation accruals will recommence when the employee returns to work. 
 
  (9)  Salaried employees will receive an additional five (5) days of vacation 
each year to compensate for the loss of paid overtime. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2030 HOLIDAYS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2030  Holidays 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2030.10 Paid Holidays:  The District provides full-time employees the 
following paid holidays each year: 
 
NEW YEARS DAY - MARTIN LUTHER KING'S BIRTHDAY - PRESIDENTS' DAY - 
MEMORIAL DAY - INDEPENDENCE DAY - LABOR DAY - VETERAN'S DAY 
THANKSGIVING DAY - FRIDAY AFTER THANKSGIVING DAY and CHRISTMAS DAY 
 
  2030.11 In addition to the above listed holidays, each employee will 
be entitled to two (2) floating holidays to be scheduled by the General Manager on 
January 1st of each year.  If not scheduled by the General Manager, floating holidays 
are taken at the discretion of the employee, but must be taken within the business year.   
 
  2030.12 For each recognized holiday, eligible employees will 
receive a day off with pay. 
 
 2030.20 Pay in Lieu of Time Off:  The District may, in its discretion, require 
employees to work on scheduled holidays and provide pay in lieu of time off. 
 
 2030.40 Weekends and Vacations:  When a scheduled holiday falls on a 
Sunday, it will be observed on the following Monday.  When a scheduled holiday falls on 
a Saturday, it will be observed on the preceding Friday.  Holidays that occur during an 
employee’s vacation will not be counted as vacation days. 
 
 2030.50 Eligibility:  Part-time and temporary employees are ineligible for 
holiday benefits.  All employees are ineligible for holiday benefits that accrue while on 
leave of absence or during a disciplinary time off without pay situation. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2040 SICK LEAVE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2040  Sick Leave 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2040.10 In order to help prevent loss of earnings that may be caused by 
accident or illness, the District has established paid sick leave. 
 
 2040.20 Eligibility:  All regular full-time employees begin accruing sick 
leave benefits upon commencement of employment at the rate of one day for each full 
month worked cumulative to a maximum of twelve (12) days sick leave per calendar 
year.  Eligible regular part-time employees accrue sick leave on a pro-rata basis.  
Temporary employees are ineligible to earn or receive sick leave benefits. 
 
 2040.30 Use: 
 
  2040.31 Sick leave may be taken for personal illness or disability in 
the employee's immediate family.  "Immediate family" is defined as the employee's 
registered domestic partner, spouse, employee’s, registered domestic partner’s or 
spouse’s children, or parents.   Registered Domestic Partner is defined in Family Code 
Section 297.  During each calendar year employees may use up to one-half of their 
annual allotment of sick leave to attend to illness or disability in the employee’s 
immediate family.  
 
  2040.32 Hours absent for medical and dental appointments will be 
treated as sick leave. 
 
  2040.33 The District retains the right to request verification from a 
licensed medical practitioner for any absence due to illness or disability.  Sick pay may 
be withheld if satisfactory verification is not received. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2050 LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2050  Leaves of Absence 
Date Approved: November 17, 1992 
Date Revised:  August 3, 2006 (Ordinance 25) 
   January 3, 2008 (Ordinance 34) 
   March 5, 2009 (Ordinance 37) 
   October 6, 2011 
 


2050.10 Scope:   Section 2050 covers:  
 
Leave Without Pay (Personal Leave).  Any employee who needs unpaid time 


off because vacation leave accumulations have been exhausted may be considered 
eligible for leave without pay (2050.20 et seq). 


 
Medical Disability Leave.  Any employee who, as a result of a medical disability, 


becomes unable to perform the essential functions of his or her position, and any 
employee who becomes disabled on account of pregnancy, may be considered eligible 
for a medical disability leave (2050.30 et seq). 


 
Paid Family Leave.  Any employee who needs to attend to the birth, adoption, or 


serious illness of a child, or to care for a parent, spouse or registered domestic partner 
with a serious health condition may be considered eligible for paid family leave (2050.40 
et seq). 


 
Industrial Leave (Worker’s Compensation).  Any employee who, as a result of 


an injury at work, is temporarily unable to work at the District in any capacity on the 
medical advice of the worker’s compensation doctor of record, will be considered on 
industrial leave (2050.50 et seq). 


 
 


2050.20 Leave Without Pay (Personal Leave): 
 


2050.21  The General Manager may grant employees a leave of absence without 
pay for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days.  No leave shall be granted except upon 
written request of the employee.  Such requests shall be submitted to the General 
Manager.  Such leaves shall normally be granted to permit the employee to engage in 
activities that will increase his or her value to the District upon return, or because of 
personal hardship.  Employees may not be granted a leave of absence until all accrued 
vacation is taken.  Failure on the part of an employee on leave to report promptly at its 
expiration may result in dismissal of the employee. Vacation and sick leave credits shall 
not accrue to an employee on leave of absence.  The decision of the General Manager 
on granting or refusing to grant a leave of absence or extension thereof shall be final. 


 
2050.22   Medical Insurance Contribution during Leave Without Pay. In situations 


when an employee has exhausted all eligible leave and the employee is on a leave 
without pay, the employee shall be required to contribute one-half of the monthly 
premium for health, dental and vision insurance prior to the District making its 
contribution. 
 
 2050.30 Medical Disability Leave: 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2050 LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
 
  2050.30.5 Introduction: Any regular full-time employee who, as a 
result of a medical disability, becomes unable to perform the essential functions of his or 
her position, and any employee who becomes disabled on account of pregnancy, may 
be eligible for placement on medical leave of absence.  Such medical leave of absence 
will be considered paid leave until exhaustion of the employee’s earned paid time off, 
(which includes accumulated sick leave, vacation, any unused floating holidays, 
administrative leave, or compensatory time), except that the employee shall have the 
option of leaving up to five (5) earned vacation days unexhausted for use following his or 
her return to work.  All other paid time off shall be exhausted at the beginning of the 
leave, with the remainder of the medical leave considered unpaid leave. 
 
  2050.31 Duration of Disability Leave:  The leave shall continue so 
long as the employee remains unable to perform the essential functions of the 
employee’s position and there remains a reasonable basis to believe the employee will 
be able to resume performance of the essential functions at the end of the leave, up to a 
maximum of 120 business days.  Additional extensions of leave time beyond 120 
business days may be granted upon written request of the employee at the sole 
discretion of the General Manager, or, if the General Manager is unavailable or is 
requesting the leave, the Board of Directors. 
 
  2050.32 Verification of Disability:  The District reserves the right 
to request at any time that an employee confirm the existence and anticipated duration 
of his or her disability with written verification from a licensed physician.   
 
  2050.33 Sick Leave Accrual, Vacation Accrual, Holiday Pay, 
and Continuation of Paid Benefits:   
 


2050.33.1 Fully paid disability leave: During any period of 
fully paid absence relative to disability leave, the employee shall accrue 
paid time off and paid benefits. 


 
2050.33.2 Partially paid, or part-time, disability leave:  


During any period of part-time absence relative to disability leave, the 
employee shall accrue pro-rated paid time off and pro-rated retirement 
benefits.  For the first sixty (60) business days of the any part-time 
absence due to disability leave, medical, dental, and other District paid 
insurance benefits will continue to be paid by the District in accordance 
with the District’s normal share for the employee.  After the first sixty (60) 
days of partially paid or part-time disability leave, medical, dental, and 
other District-paid insurance benefits will continue for a maximum of an 
additional sixty (60) business days of disability leave so long as the 
employee pays the lesser of fifty percent (50%) or his or her pro-rated 
share of the District’s normal share for the employee for such insurance, 
in addition to the full employee’s normal share of such insurance. 


 
2050.33.3 Unpaid disability leave: Neither sick leave nor 


vacation shall accrue during any period of unpaid absence relative to 
disability leave.  Employees on unpaid leave also do not receive holiday 
pay.  Medical, dental, and other District-paid insurance benefits will 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2050 LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


continue to be paid by the District in accordance with the District’s normal 
share for the employee for the first sixty (60) business days of any unpaid  
and/or partially paid disability leave.  After the first sixty (60) days of 
unpaid and/or partially paid disability leave, medical, dental, and other 
insurance benefits will continue for a maximum of an additional sixty (60) 
business days of disability leave so long as the employee pays fifty 
percent (50%) of the District’s normal share for the employee for such 
insurance, in addition to the full employee’s normal share of such 
insurance.   


 
Additional extensions of benefit time beyond 120 business days may be granted, 


upon written request by the employee, at the sole discretion of the General Manager, or, 
if the General Manager is unavailable or is requesting the leave, the Board of Directors. 
 
  2050.34 Notice of Leave:  Employees whose disability leaves can 
be anticipated (i.e., leave for scheduled surgery or leave for pregnancy) are required to 
provide two weeks' advance written notice of the anticipated start of their period of 
disability. 
 
  2050.35 Verification of Ability to Return:  The District reserves 
the right to require written verification from a licensed physician that an employee is 
physically fit to return to duty before permitting the employee to return to work. 
 
  2050.36 Return to Part-Time Work:  An employee who has not 
fully recovered from his or her medical disability may request a return to work on a part-
time basis.  Such request must be accompanied by a written release from a licensed 
physician indicating that the employee is capable of performing work on a part-time 
basis.  Such request may be granted at the sole discretion of the General Manager (or, if 
the General Manager is unavailable or is requesting the part-time work, the Board of 
Directors) based upon the needs of the District and the likelihood of, and the time frame 
in which, the employee will return to full-time work.  If the request can be 
accommodated, the employee will be compensated according to his or her part-time 
work schedule (and will cease to be covered by the District's salary continuation policy 
for short-term disabilities).  District paid benefits will be paid in accordance with Section 
2050.33 above. 
 
  2050.37 Subsequent Leave for the Same Disability:  If an 
employee returns to work from an approved disability leave of absence before the lapse 
of the maximum leave period of 120 business days and thereafter is granted one or 
more additional leaves for the same disability, the additional leaves may continue only 
until the employee has spent a combined total of 120 business days absent from work 
due to disability.  After the lapse of 120 business days of absence for the same 
disability, the District will consider medical separation or disability retirement as 
applicable, as discussed further in Paragraph 2050.38 below. Whether or not additional 
leave is for the “same disability” is the decision of the General Manager, or if the General 
Manager is unavailable or is requesting the leave, the Board of Directors. 
 
  2050.38 Holding of Positions/Termination:  To the extent 
feasible, the District will return the employee to the same position or a comparable 
position for which the employee is qualified at the end of the employee's disability leave.  







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2050 LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
If no such positions are available, the District will place the employee on administrative 
leave (paid unless the employee has further paid leave balances), during which time the 
employee will be given a right of first recall to an opening in his or her same position or 
to an opening in a comparable position for which he or she is qualified.  The 
administrative leave, however, will last only until the combined period of absence due to 
disability and absence due to administrative leave totals 120 business days.  After the 
lapse of this period, the employee may be medically separated from the District, as 
determined by the General Manager (or, if the General Manager is unavailable or the 
one on leave, the Board of Directors). 
 
 2050.40 Paid Family Leave: 
 
  2050.41 Eligibility:  Employees who are covered by State Disability 
Insurance (SDI) are eligible for Family Temporary Disability Insurance (FTDI) benefits 
while taking care of family member(s) in accordance with state law.  These benefits are 
paid by the State Employment Development Department.  There is no requirement that 
the employee have worked for the District any particular length of time before being 
entitled to this leave.  However, no employee can receive more FTDI benefits than he or 
she earned in wages during the base period for calculating benefits.  Employees are not 
eligible if they are receiving State Disability insurance (SDI), workers’ compensation or 
private insurance payments in lieu of such payments. 
 
Employees are eligible for this leave under the following circumstances: 
 
   (1) For the birth and care of a newborn child, or the placement 
and initial care of an adopted or foster care child, or 


   (2) To care for an employee’s spouse, child, parent or 
registered domestic partner with a serious health condition.  However, an employee is 
not eligible to receive FTDI benefits for any day that another family member is able and 
available for the same period of time that the employee is providing care.  For example, 
the District may deny a Paid Family Leave request to care for a child where the child’s 
other parent is already taking family leave or is unemployed.  
 
  2050.42 Definitions of all applicable terms will be in accordance 
with state law relating to Family Temporary Disability Insurance (California 
Unemployment Insurance Code section 3300 et seq.). 
 
  2050.43 Request for Leave.  Requests for paid family leave must 
be approved in advance by the employee’s supervisor and General Manager. The 
employee must provide a certification from the health care provider which states: 
 
   a. Date of commencement of the serious health 


condition 
     
   b. Probable duration of the condition 
 
   c. Estimated amount of time the health care provider 


will provide care 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2050 LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
   d. Confirmation that the serious health condition 


warrants participation of a family member 
 
  2050.44 Duration of Paid Family Leave.  Employees are entitled 
to a maximum of six (6) weeks paid family leave in a twelve-(12) month period.  An 
employee is not entitled to more than a maximum of two (2) months leave in a twelve 
(12) month period to care for a family member. 
 
  2050.45 Compensation During Leave.  Employees are entitled to 
be paid FTDI benefits while on family leave, replacing approximately fifty-five percent 
(55%) of an employee’s wages.  Payment for these benefits is funded through employee 
contributions to SDI.  The employee is solely responsible to apply for this compensation 
from the State Employment Development Department (EDD).  The District has no 
obligation to ensure that employees receive FTDI payments. 
 
  2050.46 Waiting Period and Use of Vacation.  There will be a 
seven (7) day “waiting period” before an employee on family leave may begin receiving 
FTDI payments.  If available, employees must use two (2) weeks of earned and unused 
vacation before receiving FTDI benefits.  The first week of vacation shall count as the 
“waiting period” before the employee may begin receiving FTDI payments. 
 
 2050.50 Industrial Disability Leave (Worker’s Compensation) 
 
 Any employee who, as a result of an injury at work, is temporarily unable to work 
at the District in any capacity on the medical advice of the worker’s compensation doctor 
of record, will be considered on industrial leave. 
 


It is the intent of the District to attempt to have available light duty work for 
employees with an open worker’s compensation claim.  However, should an employee’s 
injuries require a period of part-time or full-time industrial disability leave, the provisions 
below shall apply: 
 
  2050.51 Compensation during Leave.  Employees who are 
entitled to temporary disability indemnity (TDI) will receive compensation to replace 
approximately sixty-seven (67%) of their wages. (Labor Code Section 4654.)  The 
District has no obligation to ensure that employees receive TDI payments. 
 
  2050.52 Waiting Period and Use of Sick Leave.  Labor Code 
Section 4652, as it is currently written, requires that there be a three (3) calendar day 
“waiting period” before an employee may begin receiving TDI payments.  If an employee 
misses work during these 3 days, employees must use available sick leave.  However, if 
the employee misses more than 3 calendar days and requests and receives TDI for the 
initial 3-day period, he or she must reimburse the District for any sick leave 
compensation received during that 3-day period.  The sick leave time reimbursed will be 
credited back to the employee’s time-off accruals.  
 
When an employee is receiving full or partial TDI they will have the option of 
supplementing his or her TDI payment with sick or vacation leave equaling 25% of the 
hours missed on a pay-period to pay-period basis. 


 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2050 LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


 Example 1: An employee who misses a full 80-hour payroll period would 
have the option of using 20 hours of sick or vacation accruals to 
supplement his or her TDI check;  


 
 Example 2: An employee who misses 40 hours of an 80-hour payroll 


period would have the option of using 10 hours of sick or vacation 
accruals to supplement his or her TDI check.) 


 
Employees who are working at the District but have an open worker’s compensation 
claim must use their sick leave (or other available leave if their sick leave is exhausted) 
for any claim-related doctor appointments. 


 
  2050.53 Accrual of benefits/time off.  Employees with an open 
worker’s compensation claim shall continue to receive the District-provided share for 
health care, whether they are working at the District during the claim or are on industrial 
leave.  Employees shall remain responsible for the employee share of health benefits.   
 
 Employees with an open worker’s compensation claim shall receive pro-rated 
retirement contributions in accordance with the number of hours worked each pay 
period. 
 


Employees with an open worker’s compensation claim shall continue to receive 
full time off accruals (sick, vacation, administrative leave), whether or not they are 
working at the District during the claim or are on industrial leave. (Labor Code Section 
132a)  


 
Employees who have an open worker’s compensation claim will be paid pro-


rated holiday pay in accordance with the number of hours worked during that holiday 
pay period. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2060 INSURANCE AND RETIREMENT BENEFITS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2060  Insurance and Retirement Benefits 
Date Approved: November 17, 1992 (Reso. No. 104) 
Date Revised:  July 1, 1993, October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2060.10 The District provides benefits for its regular full-time eligible 
employees.  The District reserves the right to eliminate or modify any of its benefits at 
any time. 
 
 2060.20 Insurance Benefits 
 
  2060.22 Medical, Dental and Vision Insurance:  All regular full-
time employees and their dependents are eligible to participate in the District's health, 
dental, and vision insurance plan starting the first day of the month following 
commencement of employment.  The terms of this participation shall be defined by the 
Memorandum of Understanding with the designated Employee Organization 
representing District Employees.   
 
  2060.24 Conversion/Post Employment Insurance Options:  
Pursuant to the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA), 
eligible employees and their dependents may be entitled to continue insurance coverage 
after employment with the District ceases. 
 
  2060.25 Insurance Coverage Information:  Eligibility requirements 
and further information concerning insurance coverage are fully explained in information 
available from the General Manager. 
 
 2060.30 Retirement Plans 
 
  2060.31 Deferred Compensation.  All employees are eligible to 
participate in the District’s adopted deferred compensation plans at commencement of 
employment.  This is an optional employee benefit to which the District does not 
contribute.  Further information concerning the features and requirements of this plan 
are explained in information available from the General Manager. 
 
  2060.32 Pension Plan.  The District participates in the CalPERS 
retirement program.  All regular full time employees are eligible as well as permanent 
part-time employees who work more that 20 hours per week for a year or more than 
1000 hours in a year.  The District may contribute a percentage of an employee’s base 
salary.   
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2070 OPEN DOOR 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2070  Open Door 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2070.10 The Purpose of the Open Door policy is to encourage employees 
to raise their work-related concerns informally with their supervisors and the General 
Manager.  The District will attempt to keep all such expressions of concern, their 
investigation, and the terms of their resolution confidential, recognizing, however, that in 
the course of investigating and resolving the concerns some dissemination of 
information to others may be appropriate. 
 
 2070.20 Employees are encouraged to raise work-related concerns with 
their immediate supervisor as soon as possible after the event that causes the concern.  
After discussion with their supervisor, if the problem is still not resolved, the concern 
should be taken to the General Manager who may schedule a meeting with the 
supervisor and employee to further discuss the matter. 
 
  2070.21 Employees are encouraged to pursue discussion of work-
related concerns until the matter is fully resolved.  It may not always be possible to 
achieve the result the employee desires, but if not, the District will attempt in each case 
to explain why.  The District believes that employee concerns are best addressed 
through informal and open communication.  No employee will be disciplined or otherwise 
penalized for raising a good-faith concern.  If an employee feels that his/her work-related 
concern should be brought to the attention of the District by written complaint and formal 
investigation, the "Internal Complaint Review" policy should be followed  (Section 2080).  
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2080 INTERNAL COMPLAINT REVIEW 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2080  Internal Complaint Review 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  May 5, 2005. October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2080.10 Purpose and Scope:  The purpose of Internal Complaint Review is 
to afford all employees of the District the opportunity to seek internal resolution of their 
work-related complaints.  For purposes of this provision, a “work-related complaint” is 
defined as any violation of the District’s Personnel Rules (but does not include 
complaints or grievances related to disciplinary actions).  The “Internal Complaint 
Review Policy" is intended to supplement the Open Door Policy described under Section 
2070, which states the philosophy of the District that all employees have free access to 
their immediate supervisor and to the General Manager to informally express their work-
related concerns.  The District will attempt to treat all internal complaints and their 
investigation as confidential, recognizing, however, that in the course of investigating 
and resolving internal complaints some dissemination to others may be appropriate.  
The provisions of this policy are applicable to those employees not covered by a 
Memorandum of Understanding containing a grievance procedure. 
 
 2080.20 Procedure 
 
  2080.21 Filing of Complaint:  Complaints should be filed within 
seven (7) days after the date of the events that the employee knew, or reasonably 
should have known, gave rise to the alleged violation of the District’s Personnel Rules by 
completing a Complaint Form available from the General Manager.  Complaint Forms 
must be filled out completely and must set forth in detail the basis for an employee's 
complaint or violation of the District’s Personnel Rules.  The original of the Complaint 
Form should then be given to the General Manager.  If an employee does not present 
the grievance, or does not appeal the decision rendered regarding the grievance within 
the time limits specified above, the grievance shall be considered resolved.   
 
  2080.22 Investigation:  The General Manager will date and log all 
Complaint Forms and provide an acknowledgment of receipt to the employee submitting 
the complaint stating that the complaint is under review.  All complaints will be reviewed 
within ten (10) working days of submission. 
 
  2080.23 The General Manager or his/her designee will investigate 
the allegations of the complaint by meeting separately with the employee filing the 
complaint and others who either are named in the complaint or who may have 
knowledge of the facts set forth therein. 
 
  2080.24 On completion of its investigation, the General Manager 
will report the conclusions to the employee who filed the complaint.  A copy of all formal 
grievance decisions shall be placed in the employee's permanent personnel file. 
 


2080.25. If the complaint involves the General Manager, the 
complaint shall be given to the Board President.  The Board President shall follow the 
procedure contained in this section.   
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2080 INTERNAL COMPLAINT REVIEW 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
 2080.30 Appeal:  If an employee is not satisfied with the decision of the 
General Manager, regarding the complaint, the employee may seek review of the matter 
by the District Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall, as soon as possible, 
agendize the complaint for consideration.  The District Board of Directors shall determine 
whether the complaint states a violation of the Personnel Rules, and if so, what shall be 
the remedy.  The decision of the District Board of Directors shall be final.  
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2090 TERMINATION, DISCIPLINE, AND RULES OF CONDUCT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2090  Termination, Discipline, and Rules of Conduct  
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  September 1, 2005 (Ord. 27), October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2090.10 Termination: 
 
  2090.11 Voluntary Termination:  The District will consider an 
employee to have voluntarily terminated his or her employment if an employee does any 
of the following: 
 


(1) Elects to resign from the District; 
(2) Fails to return from an approved leave of absence on the 


date specified by the District; or 
(3) Fails to report for work for three consecutive days without 


notice to the District. 
 
  2090.12 Involuntary Termination:  An employee may be 
terminated involuntarily for reasons that may include poor performance, misconduct, or 
other violations of the District's rules of conduct as set forth below.  Notwithstanding this 
list of rules, the District reserves the right to discharge with or without cause and with or 
without prior notice. 
 
  2090.13 Termination Due to Reorganization, Economics, or 
Lack of Work:  From time to time, the District may need to terminate an employee as a 
consequence of reorganization, job eliminations, lack of work, changed business 
conditions, or other factors unrelated to an employee’s performance.  Termination for 
any of the foregoing reasons shall be deemed to be “for cause”.  Should the District 
consider such termination’s necessary, the District is committed to providing all affected 
employees with advance notice when practical.  Layoff benefits associated with such 
terminations, if any, will be as specified in the notice. 
 
 2090.20 Discipline and Rules of Conduct 
 
  2090.21 Policy:  Employees are expected to observe certain 
standards of job performance and good conduct.  When performance or conduct do not 
meet District standards, the District will endeavor when it deems appropriate to provide 
the employee a reasonable opportunity to correct the deficiency.  If, however, the 
employee fails to make the correction, he or she will be subject to discipline including 
termination. 
 
 The rules set forth below are intended to provide employees with fair notice of 
what is expected of them.  Necessarily, however, such rules cannot identify every type of 
unacceptable conduct and performance.  Therefore, employees should be aware that 
conduct not specifically listed below but which adversely affects or is otherwise 
detrimental to the interests of the District, other employees, or customers, may also 
result in disciplinary action. 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2090 TERMINATION, DISCIPLINE, AND RULES OF CONDUCT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
  2090.22 Job Performance: Employees may be disciplined for poor 
job performance, including but not limited to the following: 
 


1. Below average work quality or quantity; 
2. Poor attitude (for example, rudeness or lack of cooperation 


demonstrated with supervisors, management staff or fellow 
employees); 


3. Excessive absenteeism, tardiness, or abuse of break and 
lunch privileges; 


4. Failure to follow instruction or District procedures; or 
5. Failure to follow established safety regulations. 


 
  2090.23 Misconduct:  Employees may be disciplined for 
misconduct, including but not limited to the following: 
 


1. Insubordination; 
2. Dishonesty; 
3. Theft; 
4. Discourtesy; 
5. Misuse of or destroying District property or the property of 


another on District premises; 
6. Violating Conflict of Interest rules; 
7. Disclosing or using confidential or proprietary information 


without authorization; 
8. Falsifying or altering District records, including the 


application for employment; 
9. Interfering with the work performance of others; 
10. Altercations; 
11. Harassing, including sexually harassing, employees or 


customers; 
12. Being under the influence of, using, or possessing alcohol or 


illegal or controlled substances on District property or while 
conducting District business; 


13. Gambling on District premises or while conducting District 
business; 


14. Sleeping on the job or leaving the job without authorization; 
15. Possessing a firearm or other dangerous weapon on District 


property or while conducting district business; 
16. Being convicted of a crime that indicates unfitness for the job 


or raises a threat to the safety or well being of the District, its 
employees, customers, or property; 


17. Failing to report to the District, within five (5) days, any 
conviction under any criminal drug statute for a violation 
occurring in the workplace; and 


18. Misuse of or falsifying overtime or on-call compensation. 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2090 TERMINATION, DISCIPLINE, AND RULES OF CONDUCT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
 
  2090.24 Attendance:  In addition to the general rules stated above, 
employees may be disciplined for failing to observe the following specific requirements 
relating to attendance: 
 


1. Reporting to work on time, observing the time limits for rest 
and lunch periods, and obtaining approval to leave work 
early; and 


2. Notifying the supervisor in advance of anticipated tardiness 
or absence. 


 
  2090.25 Discipline Procedure:  Except as set forth below, 
discharge for poor performance ordinarily will be preceded by an oral or written warning, 
or a suspension without pay, such prior step(s) being preferred or recommended, but not 
required.  The General Manager has the right to proceed directly to a written warning or 
to termination for misconduct or performance deficiency, without resort to prior 
disciplinary steps, when in the General Manager’s judgment such action is appropriate. 
 


  2090.25.1 For employees who are not “at-will”, who have “for 
cause” rights, and who are not covered by a discipline process in an MOU, the following 
procedures shall apply.   
 


  2090.25.2 Minor Disciplinary Action:  In cases involving oral or 
written reprimands or suspensions of five (5) days or less, the General Manager or 
supervisor shall issue a written notice of discipline, describing the discipline, the basis 
for the discipline, and attaching any documents upon which the discipline is based.  The 
affected employee may respond by submitting a rebuttal to be lodged in the employee’s 
personnel file, but no further appeal shall be permitted. 
 


  2090.25.3 Major Disciplinary Action:  In cases involving 
suspensions of more than five (5) days, demotions, or termination, the General Manager 
or supervisor shall first issue a notice of intent to discipline, describing the intended 
discipline, the basis for the discipline, and attaching any documents upon which the 
discipline is based.  The affected employee shall have a right to respond, orally or in 
writing, to this notice before the discipline is imposed.   
 


  2090.25.3.1 The General Manager, or designee, shall 
give notice and convene a meeting to review the employee’s response and 
position before imposing discipline.The General Manager shall set the meeting 
approximately one (1) week from the date of the notice, unless a different time 
and date is set by mutual agreement.    The employee shall be entitled to a 
representative of his/her choice; provided, however, that the inability of a 
particular representative to attend the meeting shall not be a cause requiring a 
continuance of the meeting.  At the meeting, the employee shall be provided the 
opportunity to respond and to present any new information for consideration by 
the District. 
 


  2090.25.3.2 At some reasonable time after the employee 
has been provided an opportunity to respond to the charges, the District shall 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2090 TERMINATION, DISCIPLINE, AND RULES OF CONDUCT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


issue a final notice of discipline.  The notice shall include the final decision, the 
effective date of the discipline and the facts upon which the discipline is based. 
 


  2090.25.3.3 Appeal of Major Disciplinary Action:  
Employees who have “for cause” rights have the right to appeal the final decision 
imposing major disciplinary actions.  The notice of appeal must be received 
within seven (7) calendar days from the date of the final notice of discipline, or 
the right to appeal is waived and the discipline shall become final. 


 
  Upon receipt of a notice of appeal, the General Manager 


shall inform the Board of Directors of the proposed disciplinary action and the 
fact that the employee who is the subject of such action has requested an appeal 
of the proposed action. 
 


  The appeal shall be heard by an independent hearing 
officer to be selected by the General Manager from a list of hearing officers that 
has been pre-approved by the District Board of Directors. 


 
  The General Manager shall select two (2) proposed 


hearing officers from the District’s pre-approved list to serve as a hearing officer 
for the particular appeal.  The selection of proposed hearing officers shall be 
given to the employee who will then have the right to “strike” one of the hearing 
officers submitted by the General Manager.  The employee shall provide written 
notice to the General Manager of his/her election to have one of the hearing 
officers stricken, such notice to be provided no later than seven (7) calendar days 
from being given the names of the proposed hearing officers.  Any hearing officer 
who is not “stricken” will be eligible to serve as the hearing officer for the appeal. 
 


  The costs of the hearing officer shall be borne by the 
District.  Either party may request that the matter be transcribed, and the 
requesting party shall bear the expense of the transcript. 
 
   The hearing officer shall have the authority to convene the 
hearing, receive evidence through testimony and documents and make findings 
of fact and conclusions about the discipline.  The hearing officer may recommend 
an outcome, but the final authority rests with the General Manager.  The hearing 
officer shall serve a recommended decision on the District, including each Board 
member of the District, and the employee.  The General Manager shall issue a 
final decision.  The General Manager’s decision is reviewable by administrative 
writ of mandamus. 


 
  2090.26 Exit Interview:  Employees who leave the District for any 
reason may be asked to participate in an exit interview.  This interview is intended to 
permit terminating employees the opportunity to communicate their views regarding their 
work with the District, including job duties, job training, job supervision, and job benefits.  
At the time of the interview, employees are expected to return all District-furnished 
property, such as uniforms, tools, equipment, I.D. cards, keys, credit cards, documents, 
and handbooks.  Arrangements for clearing any outstanding debts with the District 
and/or receiving final pay will be made at this time. 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2090 TERMINATION, DISCIPLINE, AND RULES OF CONDUCT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
 2090.30 Employment at Will:  Nothing in this Policy is intended to alter the 
at-will status of employment with the District.  Any at-will employee or the District may 
terminate the employment relationship at any time with or without cause and with or 
without prior notice.  The District reserves its right to terminate any employment 
relationship without resort to the above disciplinary procedures.  Only the  District Board 
of Directors has the authority to alter this arrangement, to enter into an agreement for 
employment for a specified period of time, or to make any agreement contrary to this 
policy.  Furthermore, any such agreement must be in writing and signed by the General 
Manager of the District after Board authorization.  Changes in the at-will employment 
structure of the Sweetwater Springs Water District may only be made by a majority vote 
of the Board of Directors at a public meeting. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2100 PERSONNEL RECORDS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2100  Personnel Records 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2100.10 District personnel files will contain current information regarding 
each employee.    Employees shall inform the General Manager immediately whenever 
there are changes in his/her personal data such as address, telephone number, marital 
status, number of dependents, and person(s) to notify in case of emergency.  
Employees will report any pending court action which may affect an employee's ability to 
perform the duties for which they were hired. 
 
 2100.20 Employees have the right to inspect personnel files at reasonable 
times on reasonable notice.  Copies of any document in personnel files may be provided 
to employees upon request.  Personnel files are the property of the District and 
information contained in them will not be duplicated or forwarded without notification to 
the affected employee.  All personnel information and records are to be considered as 
confidential to the extent allowed by Federal or State law.  The District policy is to 
require all personnel files to be maintained in a secure and private condition and to have 
all employees manage personnel information in that manner.  
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2110 SMOKING / DRESS / GROOMING / HEALTH STANDARDS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2110  Smoking / Dress / Grooming / Health Standards 
Date Approved: November 17, 1992 
Date Revised:  May 11, 1994 (Resolution No. 155), October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2110.10 Smoking:  Smoking shall be prohibited in all enclosed facilities 
within the place of employment without exception.  This includes common work areas, 
classrooms, conference and meeting rooms, private offices, hallways, employee 
lounges, stairs, restrooms, vehicles and all other enclosed facilities.  The smoking policy 
shall be communicated to all employees at least annually and the General Manager shall 
supply a written copy of the smoking policy to any existing or prospective employees. 
 
 2110.20 Dress Code & Grooming Standards:  It is in the District's best 
interest to present a professional image to customers and the public.  Accordingly, while 
the District has no formal dress code, it is expected that all employees will dress in a 
manner consistent with good hygiene, safety, and good taste.  Employees whose jobs 
require them to come in contact with the public are expected to wear apparel consistent 
with that worn by persons dealing with the public in the community in similar capacities.  
Field crew will be expected to wear the uniform provided to them and keep their hair at a 
length which will be consistent with safety standards.  This policy applies to facial hair as 
well.  Field crew are expected to wear pants that are clean and without holes. 
 
 2110.30 Allowances:   Employees will be provided boot allowances and 
uniforms as negotiated in the current Union Memorandum of Understanding and 
employee contracts. 
 
 2110.40 Health:  Employees are expected to report to work fit to perform 
their assigned tasks.  Employees who report to work but whose state of health may not 
permit them to satisfactorily complete assigned tasks or who may create a danger to 
themselves or others may be referred to a doctor for a determination as to fitness for 
work.  Upon affirmative recommendation from the doctor, the District may take any 
appropriate action including placing an employee on sick leave, or leave without pay if 
the sick leave balance is exhausted, until such time as the employee is fit for duty. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2120 EMPLOYMENT OF RELATIVES 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2120  Employment of Relatives 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2120.10 Employment:  Employment of relatives of employees is 
discouraged.  Relatives of present employees may be hired by the District only if (1) the 
individuals concerned will not work in a direct supervisory relationship, and (2) the 
employment will not pose difficulties for supervision, security, safety or morale.  
Relatives are defined as spouse, registered domestic partners, children, sisters, 
brothers, mothers, or fathers, and persons related by marriage. 
 
 2120.20 Present Employees:  Present employees who marry or who 
become related by marriage, will be permitted to continue employment with the District 
only if they do not work in a direct supervisory relationship with one another, or 
otherwise pose difficulties for supervision, security, safety or morale.  If employees who 
marry, or who become related by marriage, do work in a direct supervisory relationship 
with one another, the District will attempt to reassign one of the employees to another 
position for which he or she is qualified, if such a position is available.  If no such 
position is available, then one of the employees will be required to leave the District 
unless the General Manager recommends a waiver of this provision and this decision is 
confirmed by the Board of Directors.  
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2130 SAFETY PROGRAM 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2130  Safety Program 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2130.10 General:  The District strives to maintain safe working conditions.  
The success of our safety program depends on the cooperation of everyone.  
Employees are asked to learn the safety rules and observe them at all times, and to 
immediately report any potential safety hazards, injuries or accidents to their Supervisor 
or the General Manager.  The location of the nearest doctor and/or medical facility is 
posted on the bulletin board. 
 
 2130.20 OSHA Binder:  The District maintains a current OSHA safety 
binder which is available to all field crew employees.  Field crew employees are required 
to review the binder and sign an acknowledgment which indicates their understanding of 
the material contained therein. 
 
 2130.30 Periodic Meetings:  Periodic safety meetings and inservice 
programs are provided during weekly staff meetings to allow time within the work 
schedule to address areas of concern and promote the education of employees relative 
to on the job safety. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2140 SECURITY / CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2140  Security / Confidential Information 
 Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2140.10 General:  The security of employees, employee property, and 
District property is of vital importance to the District.  All employees share responsibility 
to ensure that proper security is maintained.  Any breach of security should be reported 
promptly to the General Manager. 
 
 2140.20 Confidentiality:  District property includes not only tangible 
property, like desks and typewriters, but also intangible property such as information.  
Employees or Directors may not disclose or use confidential information except as the 
law requires.  Anyone who violates this policy will be subject to discipline and possible 
legal recourse.  
 


2140.30  Records Requests:  All inquiries for records should be directed to 
the General Manager.  As a public entity the District is subject to the California 
Constitution and the California Public Records Act. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2150 AIDS AND AIDS-RELATED CONDITIONS IN THE WORKPLACE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2150  AIDS and AIDS-Related Conditions in the Workplace 
 Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2150.10 General:  The District recognizes that Acquired Immune 
Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS), related conditions such as AIDS Related Complex (ARC), 
and persons with seropositive test results pose significant concerns for employees in the 
workplace.  Accordingly, we have established the following Policy for handling issues 
that may arise when an employee is affected by this potentially fatal disease. 
 
 2150.20 Safety:  The District is committed to maintaining a safe and 
healthy work environment for all employees. 
 
 2150.30 Treatment by District:  Consistent with this commitment, the 
District will treat AIDS the same as other illnesses in terms of employee policies and 
benefits, group health and life insurance, disability leaves of absence, and other 
disability benefits which the District provides. 
 
 2150.40 Continuation of Employment:  Based on overwhelming medical 
evidence and scientific opinions, including statements from the U.S. Public Health 
Service Center for Disease Control, the AIDS virus is not casually transmitted in ordinary 
social or occupational settings or conditions.  Therefore, subject to changes in available 
medical information, District employees with AIDS or any of its related conditions may 
continue to work as long as they are able.  The District will provide AIDS afflicted 
employees with reasonable accommodation as long as they are medically and physically 
able to perform the duties of their position.  Co-workers may not refuse to work or 
withhold their services for fear of contracting AIDS by working with an AIDS afflicted 
person, and may not harass or otherwise discriminate against an AIDS afflicted 
employee.  Employees who engage in such behavior by refusing to work, or by 
harassing or otherwise discriminating against any AIDS afflicted employee will be 
subject to discipline and possible termination. 
 
 2150.50 Information:  Recognizing the need for employees to be accurately 
informed about AIDS, the District will provide information regarding the facts about this 
disease, how it is transmitted, and how best to prevent it from spreading.  Employees 
who would like this information should contact the General Manager. 
 
 2150.60 Notification:   Employees with AIDS or any of its related 
conditions or who are concerned about AIDS are encouraged to contact the General 
Manager to obtain additional information. 
 
 2150.70 Confidentiality:  The District will treat all medical information 
obtained from employees with AIDS or any of its related conditions confidentially as 
required by law.  If employees have any questions about this Policy or its interpretation 
or the information on which it is based, employees should contact the General Manager. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2170 SOLICITATION, DISTRIBUTION AND BULLETIN BOARDS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2170  Solicitation, Distribution and Bulletin Boards 
 Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2170.10 Solicitation:  Employees may engage in solicitation (distributing 
fliers and/or other information to advertise and/or entice business) on District premises 
only during nonworking time and the nonworking time of the person being solicited.  
Nonworking time means time during meals or breaks and before or after work. 
 
 2170.20 Distribution of Non District Materials:  Employees may distribute or 
circulate non-District written materials to other employees only in nonwork areas. 
 
 2170.30 Solicitation/Distribution of Non District Literature for Sale of Goods 
or Services:  Solicitation or distribution in any way connected with the sale of any goods 
or services for profit is strictly prohibited anywhere on District property at any time.  
Similarly, solicitation or distribution of literature for any purpose by non-employees is 
strictly prohibited on the District's property at any time. 
 
 2170.40 Bulletin Boards:  The District has bulletin boards located 
throughout the facility for the purpose of communication with employees.  Postings on 
these boards are limited to District-related material including statutory and legal notices, 
safety and disciplinary rules, District policies, memos of general interest relating to the 
District, local operating rules, and other items.  All postings require the prior approval of 
the General Manager.  No postings will be permitted for any other purpose. 
 
 2170.50 Political Advertising:  No political advertising will be allowed on 
District bulletin boards. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2180 NON-FRATERNIZATION 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2180  Non-Fraternization 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2180.10 Non Fraternization:  In order to promote the efficient operation of 
the District's business and to avoid misunderstandings, complaints of favoritism, other 
problems of supervision, security, and morale, and possible claims of sexual 
harassment, managers and supervisors are forbidden to date or pursue romantic or 
sexual relationships with employees whom they supervise, directly or indirectly.  
Employees who violate this Policy will be subject to discipline, up to and including 
termination of employment. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2190 HARASSMENT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2190  Harassment 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  August 3, 2006 (Ord. 32), October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2190.10  Purpose. The purpose of this policy is 


  (1)  To reaffirm Sweetwater Springs Water District’s commitment to 
prohibit and prevent unlawful discrimination and harassment in all workplaces of the 
District; 


  (2)  To define discrimination and harassment prohibited under this policy; 


  (3)  To set forth a procedure for resolving complaints of prohibited 
discrimination and harassment. 


 2190.20  Scope. This policy shall not be construed to create a private or 
independent right of action.  Although this policy is intended to prohibit discrimination 
consistently with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the California Fair Employment 
and Housing Act and California Labor Code Section 1102.1, the District reserves the 
right to interpret and apply this policy to provide greater protection than what is afforded 
under those laws.   


 2190.30  Statement of Policy.  The District is committed to providing an 
environment that is free from harassment and discrimination of any kind, including 
sexual harassment and harassment based on race, color, religion, national origin, 
ancestry, age, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, marital status, and 
sexual orientation. Therefore, it is important that the District maintain an atmosphere 
characterized by mutual respect in order to assure fair, courteous treatment for 
employees and the public.   


 2190.40   The District strongly disapproves of and will not tolerate unlawful 
harassment or discrimination against District employees or applicants by elected or 
appointed officials, managers, supervisors or coworkers.  The District also strongly 
disapproves of unlawful harassment of District employees by persons with whom the 
District has a business, service or professional relationship.   


 2190.50   Unlawful harassment and illegal discrimination are considered 
serious acts of misconduct and will not be tolerated.  Employees who violate this policy 
and engage in acts of unlawful harassment or discrimination of any type, for any 
duration, shall be subject to severe disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  


 2190.60   Retaliation against individuals who complain of prohibited 
harassment or discrimination or who participate in an investigation into allegations of 
harassment or discrimination shall not be tolerated.  Employees who engage in such 
acts of retaliation shall be subject to serious disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination.   


 2190.70   Definitions 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2190 HARASSMENT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
  2190.71 Prohibited discrimination and harassment for purposes of this 
policy, includes but is not limited to: 


   (1)  Verbal conduct such as epithets, derogatory comments or slurs, 
and lewd propositions on the basis of race, sex, religion, national origin, ancestry, 
disability, medical condition, marital status, age, or sexual orientation.  This includes, 
without limitation, inappropriate sex-oriented comments regarding an individual’s 
appearance, including dress or physical features, inappropriate comments of a sexual 
nature, or race or ethnicity-oriented slurs, stories and jokes. 


   (2)  Physical conduct such as assault, impeding or blocking 
movement, offensive touching, or physical interference with normal work or movement 
when directed at an individual on the basis of race, sex, religion, national origin, 
ancestry, disability, medical condition, marital status, age or sexual orientation.  This 
includes pinching, grabbing, patting, propositioning, leering, or making explicit or implied 
threats or promises in return for submission to physical acts. 


   (3)  Visual conduct such as derogatory pictures, posters, cartoons, or 
drawings related to race, sex, religion, national origin, ancestry, disability, medical 
condition, marital status, age, or sexual orientation.  This includes, without limitation, 
sending inappropriate emails of a sexual nature to employees, or viewing pornography 
either in magazines or on the internet in view of other employees, displaying pictures or 
objects depicting nude or scantily-clad or suggestively posed men or women, circulating 
derogatory or obscene notes, letters, emails or other literature. 


   (4)  Retaliation:  Adverse action taken by an employer against an 
employees or former employees because they exercised their rights under anti-
discrimination laws, spoke out against discrimination, or assisted someone in exercising 
their rights. 


   (5)  Discrimination:  Adverse employment actions taken on account of 
sex, race, color, religion, national origin, ancestry, age, physical disability, mental 
disability, medical condition, marital status, or sexual orientation.   


  2190.72 Harassment on the basis of sex, race, color, religion, national 
origin, ancestry, age, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, marital 
status, or sexual orientation is prohibited.  Verbal or physical conduct relating to these 
categories constitutes harassment when it: 


   (1)  Has the purpose or effect of creating an intimidating, hostile or 
offensive working environment; 


   (2)  Has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an 
individual’s work performance; or 


   (3)  Otherwise adversely affects an individual’s employment 
opportunities.   


  2190.73 Sexual harassment.  Sexual harassment is a form of unlawful sex 
discrimination and will not be tolerated by the District.  Sexual harassment refers to 
conduct that is not welcome, that is offensive, that fails to respect the rights and dignity 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2190 HARASSMENT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
of others, that lowers morale and that, therefore, interferes with work effectiveness.  
Federal and State guidelines provide that unwelcome sexual advances, requests for 
sexual favors and other verbal, visual or physical conduct of a sexual nature constitute 
unlawful harassment when: 


     (1) Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or 
implicitly a term or condition of an individual’s employment, 


     (2) The submission to or rejection of such conduct by an 
individual is used as the basis for employment decisions affecting such individual, or 


     (3) Sexual advances, requests for sexual favors or other verbal 
or physical conduct of a sexual nature has the purpose or effect of unreasonably 
interfering with an employee’s work performance or of creating an intimidating, hostile, or 
offensive work environment. 


  2190.80   Reporting Unlawful Harassment or Discrimination. 


   2190.81  Any employee who believes he or she has been unlawfully 
harassed or discriminated against should promptly report it orally or in writing to the 
employee’s supervisor, a division manager, or the General Manager.  An employee is 
not required to complain first to a supervisor if that person is the individual who is 
harassing and/or engaging in discriminatory actions against the employee.  Instead, the 
employee may report the harassment/discrimination to any member of management. If 
the complaint involves the General Manager, the complaint should be referred to the 
District Counsel. 


  2190.82 Any supervisor or manager who receives a complaint of unlawful 
harassment/discrimination, or who observes or otherwise learns about such prohibited 
conduct is required to notify the General Manager.  Failure to do so may result in 
disciplinary action. The supervisor or manager shall at all times maintain the 
confidentiality of the complainant and complaint.   


 2190.90   Remedial Action  


  2190.91 Employees who believe they have been subjected to prohibited 
harassment or discrimination are encouraged to submit a written complaint as soon as 
possible after the incident occurred.  The complaint should include details of the 
incident(s), name(s) of the individual(s) involved, and name(s) of witness(es). 


  2190.92 Upon receiving complaints of discrimination or harassment, the 
District may promptly undertake an investigation of the complaints.  The District may 
retain an outside investigator to conduct the investigation.  Any investigation and 
investigation report prepared relating to the complaint shall be kept confidential except 
as required by law.  If harassment or discrimination is found to have occurred in violation 
of this policy, the District shall take action to ensure or confirm that the harassment or 
discrimination at issue is stopped.  The District may take whatever measures are 
appropriate to ensure its workplaces remain free from unlawful discrimination or 
harassment.   







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2190 HARASSMENT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
  2190.93 Employees found to have engaged in discrimination or 
harassment covered by this policy may be subject to disciplinary action up to and 
including termination of employment.  First-time violations of this policy, depending on 
the severity of the conduct, may lead to termination.  


     Employees found to have been dishonest or uncooperative during 
an investigation into allegations of unlawful harassment or discrimination may be subject 
to disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment.   


 2190.100  No Retaliation.  Employees should feel free to report valid claims of 
unlawful harassment or discrimination without fear of retaliation of any kind.  The District 
will not retaliate against or tolerate retaliation against employees for making any 
complaint of unlawful harassment or discrimination in good faith, or against any 
employee for cooperating in an investigation.   


 2190.110  Dissemination of Policy.  Copies of the District’s Non-Discrimination 
and Harassment Policy and complaint procedures shall be provided to all employees of 
the District and to all new employees at the time of hiring.   


 2190.120 Training.   The District may conduct training for its employees to 
assist them in learning how to recognize, avoid and correct conduct prohibited by this 
policy, in accordance with applicable law.  


 2190.130  Complaint to DFEH and EEOC 


  2190.130.1  In addition to notifying the District about unlawful harassment, 
discrimination or retaliation, an affected employee may also direct his or her complaint to 
the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing (“DFEH”), which has the 
authority to conduct investigations of the facts.  The deadline for filing complaints with 
the DFEH is one (1) year from the date of the alleged unlawful conduct.  Employees may 
contact the nearest DFEH office or the Fair Employment & Housing Commission (FEHC) 
at the locations listed in the District’s DFEH poster or by checking with the statement 
government listings in the local telephone directory.   


  2190.130.2  An employee also has the right to direct his or her complaint 
to the federal Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC).   


 2190.140  Obligations of Employees.  Employees are responsible for knowing 
the District’s policy on nondiscrimination and harassment; refraining from discriminatory 
behavior, including harassment; reporting incidents of discrimination and harassment in 
a timely fashion; cooperating in any investigation concerning allegations of 
discrimination; and maintaining confidentiality concerning any investigation that is 
conducted.   


All employees are also encouraged to communicate with one another to assist co-
employees to avoid harassing, discriminatory, or otherwise offensive behavior.   
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2210 INSPECTIONS AND SEARCHES 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2200  Conflicts of Interest 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2200.10 Policy:  District employees are expected to devote their best 
efforts and attention to the full-time performance of their jobs.  Employees are expected 
to use good judgment, to adhere to high ethical standards, and to avoid situations that 
create an actual or potential conflict between the employee's personal interests and the 
interest of the District.  A conflict of interest exists when the employee's loyalties or 
actions are divided between the District's interests and those of another, such as a 
competitor or supplier.  Both the fact and the appearance of a conflict of interest should 
be avoided.  Employees unsure as to whether a certain transaction, activity, or 
relationship constitutes a conflict of interest should discuss it with their immediate 
supervisor or the General Manager for clarification. 
 
 2200.20 Conflicts Defined:  This Policy does not attempt to describe all 
possible conflicts of interest that could develop.  Some of the more common conflicts 
from which employees should refrain, however, include the following: 
 
  (1)  Accepting personal gifts, entertainment or work 
        from suppliers, or potential suppliers; 
  (2)  Using District assets or labor for personal use; 
  (3)  Acquiring any interest in property or assets of 
        any kind for the purpose of selling or leasing it 
        to the District; 
  (4)  Committing the District to give its financial or 
        other support to any outside activity or organization; 
  (5)  Developing a personal relationship with a 
        subordinate employee of the District that might 
        interfere with the exercise of impartial judgment 
        in decisions affecting the District or any 
        employees of the District. 
 
 2200.30 Governing Laws:  Because the District is a public entity, 
employees may be subject to a variety of specific laws governing conflict of interest and 
incompatibility of employment.  These laws are quite technical.  All questions should be 
directed to the General Manager who will refer the matter to District Counsel, if 
necessary. 
 
  2200.31 The primary law is The Political Reform Act (Government 
Code section 81000 et seq.).  This law has two main parts for District employees.  This 
law requires that certain designated employees fill out and file a financial statement and 
refrain from participating in decisions where it is reasonably foreseeable that there may 
be a material impact on an employee’s financial interest. 
 
  2200.32 Another law affecting conflicts of interest is Government 
Code Section 1090 et seq., which prohibits District officers and employees from having a 
financial interest in any contract made by them in their official capacity or from being 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2210 INSPECTIONS AND SEARCHES 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
purchasers (at any sale) or sellers (in any purchase) made by them in their official 
capacity. 
 
  2200.33 Government Code Section 1126 authorizes the District to 
establish policies for employees regarding outside activities, which are incompatible with 
District employment.  No district employee may perform any employment, activity or 
enterprise if it: 
 
  (1)  Involves the use, for private gain or advantage, of 
        District time, facilities, equipment and supplies; 
        or the badge, uniform, prestige, or influence of 
        District office or employment or, 
 
  (2)  Involves receipt or acceptance by the officer or 
        employee of any money or other consideration 
        from anyone other than his or her local agency  
        for the performance of an act which the officer or 
        employee, if not performing such act, would be 
        required or expected to render in the regular 
        course or hours of his or her local agency 
        employment or as a part of his or her duties as a 
        District officer of employee or, 
 
  (3)  Involves the performance of an act in other than  
        his or her capacity as a District officer or 
        employee which act may later be subject directly 
        or indirectly to the control, inspection, review, 
        audit, or enforcement of any other officer or 
        employee or the District, or 
 
  (4)  Involves the time demands as would render 
        performance of his or her duties as District 
        officer or employee less efficient. 
 
 2200.40 Notification:  Employees are advised to notify the General 
Manager of any proposed employment, activity or enterprise which may create an 
incompatibility so as to avoid violating these rules. 
 
 2200.50 Failure to Comply:  Failure to adhere to this Policy, including 
failure to file the required statement, disclose any conflicts or take an appropriate action, 
will result in discipline, up to and including termination of employment.  Employees 
disciplined under these provisions may appeal the decision of the General Manager to 
the District Board of Directors by filing a written notice of appeal with the District within 
five (5) days after notification of such decision.  The decision of the Board of Directors is 
final. 
 


TOC 


2210  Inspections and Searches 
Date Approved: _______________ 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2210 INSPECTIONS AND SEARCHES 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
Date Revised:  October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2210.10 Purpose of the Policy: 
 
  2210.11 The District believes that maintenance of a workplace that 
is free of drugs, alcohol, and other harmful materials is vital to the health and safety of its 
employees and to the success of the District's purpose.  The District also intends to 
protect against the unauthorized removal of District property and to assure its access at 
all times to District property, records, documents, and files.  Accordingly, the District has 
established this Policy concerning inspections and searches for prohibited materials and 
for District property on District premises.  This Policy applies to all employees of the 
District. 
 
 2210.20 Definitions: 
 
 For purposes of this Policy: 
 
  (1)  "Prohibited materials" means firearms or other 
        weapons; explosives and/or hazardous materials 
        or articles; illegal drugs or other controlled 
        substances as defined in the District's Drug-Free 
        Workplace Policy; drug-related paraphernalia; 
        and alcoholic beverages on District property that 
        you are not authorized to have in your possession. 
 
   (2)  "District premises" includes all premises and 
        locations owned or leased by the District or under 
        the control of the District, including parking 
        lots, lockers, and storage areas. 
 
  (3)  "Reasonable suspicion" includes a suspicion that 
        is based on specific personal observations such as 
        an employee’s manner, disposition, muscular 
 movement, appearance, behavior, speech, or breath         


odor; information provided to management by 
        an employee, by law enforcement officials, by a 
        security service, or by other persons believed to 
        be reliable; or a suspicion that is based on other 
        surrounding circumstances. 
 
  (4)  "Possession" means having the substance or 
        property on one's person or otherwise under one's 
        control. 
 
 2210.30 Inspections and Searches: 
 
   2210.31 Access to District  Property 
 
  (1)  In order to assure access at all times to District 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2210 INSPECTIONS AND SEARCHES 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
        property, and because employees may not always 
        be available to produce various documents, records, 
        files, or other items of District property that are 
        properly in their possession when they are needed 
        in the ordinary conduct of the District's business, the 
        District reserves the right to conduct a routine inspection 
        or search at any time for District property. 
 
  (2)  Routine searches or inspections for District property 
        may include an employee’s office, desk, file cabinet, closet, or 
        similar places where the employee may place District property, 
        whether or not such places are locked, including 
        District vehicles. 
 
  (3)  Because even a routine search for District property 
        might result in the discovery of employee’s personal 
        possessions, they are encouraged not to bring into 
        the workplace any item of personal property which 
        they do not want to reveal to the District. 
 
  2210.32 Prohibited Materials: 
 
  (1)  Inspections or searches for prohibited materials 
        on District premises will be conducted whenever 
        the District has reasonable suspicion to believe 
        that employees may be in possession of such 
        materials in violation of this Policy. 
 
  (2)  Inspections or searches for prohibited materials 
        may be conducted by an independent security 
        service or by the District with its own personnel. 
 
  (3)  Inspections or searches for prohibited materials 
        may include an employee’s office, desk, file cabinet, 
        closet or similar places where the employee may place 
        personal possessions, (whether or not such places 
        are locked), including company vehicles. 
 
  (4)  The District reserves the right to take appropriate 
        action to prevent any employee from removing 
        District property without authorization. 
 
 2210.40 Disciplinary Action 
 
  (1)  If employees are found to be in possession of 
        prohibited materials in violation of this 
        Policy and/or in violation of applicable 
        Policy such as the policy on a Drug-Free 
        Workplace, they will be subject to 
        discipline, up to and including discharge, 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2210 INSPECTIONS AND SEARCHES 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
        regardless of the District's reason for conducting 
        the search or inspection. 
 
  (2)  The District will give employees  a receipt for any 
        materials that were found in their possession 
        (or that the District suspected of being in their 
        possession). 
 
  (3)  If, after further investigation, it is determined that 
        the materials collected were not prohibited by the 
        Policy, the District will return the collected materials  
        (except as provided below) and will obtain a receipt. 
        In cases where it is suspected that the 
        collected materials consist of illegal drugs or other 
        controlled substances, the District will arrange for 
        disposition in accordance with advice from the 
        Drug Enforcement Administration or other 
        appropriate law enforcement authorities.  In cases 
        where the collected materials consist of (or are 
        suspected of consisting of) firearms or other weapons, 
        explosives, or other hazardous materials or articles, 
        the District reserves the right to dispose of the 
        materials in whatever manner that it deems to be in 
        the interest of safety to its employees or to return the 
        materials at a designated time and location. 
 


TOC 
 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2220 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2220  Drug Free Workplace 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2220.10 Purpose of Policy 
 
  2220.11 It is the intent of the District to maintain a workplace that is 
free of drugs and alcohol and to discourage drug and alcohol abuse by its employees.  
The District has a vital interest in maintaining safe and efficient working conditions for its 
employees.  Substance abuse is incompatible with health, safety, efficiency, and 
success at the District.  Employees who are under the influence of a drug or alcohol on 
the job, endanger their own health and safety and the health and safety of others, and 
can cause a loss of efficiency, productivity, or a disruptive working environment.  It is the 
intent of this Policy to comply with laws requiring a drug-free workplace. 
 
  2220.12 To further its interest in avoiding accidents, to promote and 
maintain safe and efficient working conditions for its employees, and to protect its 
business, property, and operations, the District has established this Policy concerning 
the use of alcohol and drugs.  As a condition of continued employment with the District, 
employees must abide by this Policy. 
 
 2220.20 District Consent for Use of Legal Drugs: 
 
  2220.21 Use of Legal Drugs:  The District recognizes that it may 
be necessary for employees to use legal drugs from time to time.  The District also 
recognizes that an employee who is using legal drugs might become impaired by the 
drug such that the employee's ability to perform or to perform safely would be 
compromised.  In order to accommodate employees who might be required to use legal 
drugs, and to help assure that no serious adverse consequences in the workplace result 
from such drug use, employees are required to obtain the District's consent under the 
circumstances listed in Section 2220.22, below. 
 
  2220.22 When Consent is Required:  If employees know or 
should know that their use of legal drugs might endanger them or someone else, pose a 
risk of significant damage to District property, or substantially interfere with their job 
performance, they must report such drug use to the General Manager and obtain the 
District's consent to continue working.  The District reserves the right to have a District 
physician or an employee's own physician determine whether it is advisable for him/her 
to continue working while taking such drugs. 
 
  2220.23 Duty to Disclose:  If employees operate or are 
responsible in any way for the operation, custody, or care of District property, or for the 
safety of any other person, they have a duty to disclose the nature of their job duties to 
any prescribing physician and/or to a District physician and to inquire of such 
physician(s) whether use of the drugs prescribed might result in the dangers, risk, or 
impairment that this Policy is intended to prevent. 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2220 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
  2220.24 Restrictions on Work:  The District may restrict work 
activities while employees are using legal drugs or require that a medical leave of 
absence be taken while under the influence of such drugs. 
 
  2220.25 Duty to refrain from Working if Impaired:  Even if the 
District permits employees to work while using legal drugs, affected employees shall not 
report for work if they are impaired by the use of the drugs if the impairment might 
endanger their safety or the safety of anyone else, pose a risk of significant damage to 
District property, or substantially interfere with job performance or the efficient operation 
of the District. 
 
 2220.30 Prohibited Conduct 
 
  2220.31 Scope:  The prohibitions of this section apply wherever the 
interest of the District may be adversely affected, including any time employees are: 
 
  (1)  On District premises; 
 
  (2)  Conducting or performing District business, 
        regardless of location; 
 
  (3)  Operating or responsible for the operation, 
        custody, or care of District equipment or other 
        property; or 
 
  (4)  Responsible for the safety of others. 
 
  2220.32 Alcohol:  The following acts are prohibited and may 
subject an employee to discharge or mandatory testing: 
 
  (1)  Unauthorized use, possession, purchase, sale, 
        manufacture, distribution, transportation, or 
        dispensation of alcohol; or 
 
  (2)  Being under the influence of alcohol. 
 
  2220.33 Illegal Drugs:  The following acts are prohibited and may 
subject an employee to discharge or mandatory testing: 
 
  (1)  Use, possession, purchase, sale, manufacture, 
        distribution, transportation, or dispensation of 
        any illegal drug or other controlled substance; or  
 
  (2)  Being under the influence of any illegal drug or 
        other controlled substance. 
 
 
  2220.34 Legal Drugs:  The following acts are prohibited and may 
subject an employee to discharge or mandatory testing: 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2220 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
  (1)  Abuse of any legal drug; 
 
  (2)  Purchase, sale, manufacture, distribution, 
        transportation, dispensation, or possession of any 
        legal prescription drug in a manner inconsistent 
        with law; 
 
  (3)  Being impaired due to use of legal drugs.  
 
 
 2220.40 Disciplinary Action 
 
  2220.41 Discharge for Violation of Policy:  A first violation of this 
Policy may result in immediate discharge. 
 
  2220.42 Discretion Not to Discharge:  The District, in the 
discretion of the General Manager, may choose not to discharge an employee for a first 
violation of this Policy. 
 
  2220.43 Effect of Criminal Conviction:  If an employee is 
convicted under a criminal drug statute for a violation occurring in the workplace or 
during any District-related activity or event, the employee will be deemed to have 
violated this Policy. 
 
  2220.44 Effect of Second Violation:  A second violation of this 
Policy at any time will result in an employee's immediate discharge. 
 
  2220.45 Effect of Discharge on Eligibility for Rehire:  If 
discharged for a violation of this Policy, an employee will not be eligible for rehire by the 
District. 
 
 2220.50 Drug Free Awareness Program 
 
  2220.51 Employee Awareness:  The District has established a 
Drug-Free Awareness Program that is designed to inform employees about the dangers 
of drug abuse in the workplace.  From time to time, the District will provide current 
information about available programs for counseling and rehabilitation. 
 
  2220.52 Management Awareness:  Managers and supervisors 
should be attentive to the performance and conduct of those who work with them and 
should not permit an employee to work in an impaired condition or otherwise in violation 
of this Policy.  When management has reasonable suspicion to believe an employee or 
employees are working in violation of this Policy, prompt action will be taken. 
 
  2220.53 Criminal Convictions:  Employees are required by this 
Policy to notify the District of any conviction under a criminal drug statute for a violation 
occurring in the workplace or during any District-related activity or event not later than 
five (5) days after the conviction is received.  When required by federal law, the District 
will notify any federal agency with which it has a contract of any employee who has been 
convicted under a criminal drug statute for a violation occurring in the workplace. 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2220 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2220.70 Confidentiality.   Disclosures made to the District concerning 
an individual’s use of legal drugs or participation in any drug or alcohol counseling or 
rehabilitation program will be treated as confidentially as possible. 
 
 
 2220.80 Counseling. If an employee suspects that he or she may have 
an alcohol or drug problem, even in the early stages, such employee is encouraged 
voluntarily to seek diagnosis and to follow through with the treatment as prescribed by 
qualified professionals.  The District is committed to providing reasonable 
accommodation to employees whose drug or alcohol problem classifies them as 
disabled under federal and/or state law.  Employees wishing to voluntarily enter and 
participate in an approved alcohol or drug rehabilitation program, are encouraged to 
contact the General Manager, who will determine whether the District can accommodate 
them by providing unpaid leave for the time necessary to complete participation in the 
program.  It should be noted, however, that participation in a rehabilitation program will 
not necessarily shield an employee from discipline for a violation of this Policy, 
particularly if discipline is imposed for a violation occurring before an employee seeks 
assistance. 
 
 2220.90 Drug Testing 
 
  2220.91 When a supervisor reasonably suspects that an employee 
is intoxicated or under the influence of alcohol and/or drugs as prohibited by this Policy, 
that supervisor must immediately report such suspicion to the General Manager who will 
consider what action to take. 
 
  2220.92 The General Manager may request that an employee 
submit to a drug and/or alcohol test when the General Manger has a reasonable 
suspicion that an employee is intoxicated or under the influence of drugs or alcohol as 
prohibited under this Policy. 
 
  2220.93 “Reasonable Suspicion” is a belief based on objective facts 
sufficient to lead a reasonable prudent person to suspect that an employee is under the 
influence of drugs or alcohol so that the employee’s ability to perform the functions of the 
job is noticeably impaired or so that the employee’s ability to perform his/her job safely is 
reduced; or where an accident involving District property is coupled with one or more of 
the examples below. 
 
   For example, any of the following, alone or in combination, may 
constitute reasonable suspicion: 
 
   1.  Slurred speech; 
   2.  Alcohol odor on breath; 
   3.  Unsteady walking or movement; 
   4.  Extreme unusual behavior; 
   5.  Possession of alcohol or drugs; 


6.  Smell of a drug or alcohol, 
7.  Red or bloodshot eyes, 
8.. Incriminating statements or admissions of the employee, 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2220 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


9. Information obtained from a reliable person who observed or 
overheard or had reason to know of any of the conduct described 
in 1-8 above. 


 
  2220.94 When the General Manager requests that an employee 
submit to a drug and/or alcohol test, he or she shall document in writing the facts 
constituting reasonable suspicion that the employee in question is intoxicated or under 
the influence of alcohol and/or drugs. 
 
  2220.95 If an employee refuses any proper request to submit to a 
drug and or alcohol analysis, good cause shall exist for the General Manager to apply 
the disciplinary provisions under section 2220.40, including  discharge. 
 
  2220.96 The General Manager should make reasonable effort to 
provide for safe transportation to the testing facility or home when there is a reasonable 
suspicion that an employee is intoxicated or under the influence of alcohol or drugs. 
 


2220.97 The drug/alcohol test samples will be taken at a laboratory 
certified by the State Department of Health and selected by the District which uses basic 
forensic standards and follows strict chain of custody procedures.  Strict confidentiality 
shall be maintained relative to the names and circumstances involved with regard to 
requests for drug/alcohol testing.  


 
 
2220.98  The initial test will generally utilize immunoassay 


techniques of the urine sample.  To insure against false positives, all specimens 
identified as positives shall be confirmed utilizing gas chromatography/mas opectrometry 
(GC/MS) technique.  The following standards shall be used to determine what levels of 
detected substances shall be considered as positive: 
 
SUBSTANCE        SCREENING TEST        CONFIRMATION 
 
 
Amphetamines           500 ng/ml amphetamine         500 ng/ml GC-MS 
Cocaine                     300 ng/ml metabolite             300 ng/ml GC-MS 
Opiates                      300 ng/ml morphine              300 ng/ml GC-MS 
Phencyclidine             75 ng/ml                              75 ng/ml GC-MS 
Marijuana                   50 ng/ml                              50 ng/ml GC-MS 
                                                                               (Delta 9-THC) 
Barbiturates                300 ng/ml                              300 ng/ml GC-MS 
Benzodiazapines         300 ng/ml                              300 ng/ml GC-MS 
Ethyl Alcohol                0.04%                                      0.04% 
 
  2220.99 Retesting of original specimens shall be permitted at the 
request of the employee/applicant and at the requesting person’s expense, if the request 
for retesting is received within twenty-four (24) hours of receiving notification of his/her 
results.  Retesting shall correspond exactly with the initial testing methods and 
procedures. 
 


TOC 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2220 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2230 PROOF OF RIGHT TO WORK 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2230  Proof of Right to Work 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2230.10 General Rule:  All new hires must produce original documentation 
establishing their identity and right to work in the United States, and complete INS Form 
I-9, swearing that they have a right to work in the United States.  Documentation must be 
produced within three (3) business days of hire, or on the first day of any employment 
that is less than three (3) business days.  Required documentation must be presented to 
the General Manager who will be responsible for processing the documents.  If 
appropriate documentation is not received within this time, the employment relationship 
will be terminated.   
 
 2230.20 Documentation:  Documents that may be used to establish identity 
and employment eligibility are listed on INS Form I-9.  This form can be obtained from 
the US Citizenship and Immigration Services website www.uscis.gov/files/form/i-9.pdf.  
 
 2230.30 Maintenance of Record:  Authorization documents will be copied 
and placed with the employee's Form I-9 in a special file separate from the employee's 
Personnel File. 
 


TOC 
 
 



http://www.uscis.gov/files/form/i-9.pdf





Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2240 TRAVEL / EDUCATIONAL REIMBURSEMENT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2240  Travel / Educational Reimbursement 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  June 5, 2008, October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2240.10 Policy:  The District will reimburse expenses of employees while 
on District authorized business in accordance with this Policy.  (Director 
travel/educational reimbursement is addressed in Section 4070 of these Policies and 
Procedures.) 
 
 2240.20 Mileage Reimbursement:  When personal autos are used on 
approved District business, the District will reimburse for mileage in accord with the 
current Union MOU (currently the IRS standard mileage rate).  A Reimbursement Form 
must be submitted to substantiate travel. 
 
 2240.30 Travel allowance:  The District may grant a monthly travel 
allowance to the General Manager and the Field Manager for mileage incurred in 
conducting District business.  Supporting documentation for the monthly travel 
allowance, including: 


(1) Date 
(2) Distance traveled, and 
(3) Nature of business 


shall be submitted to and approved by the General Manager on a quarterly basis (March 
31, June 30, September 30, and December 31).  Travel allowance paid in excess of the 
supporting documentation shall be calculated using the accepted IRS mileage rate and 
reported on an annual basis on the employee’s W-2 form in accordance with the 
applicable IRS rules. 
 
 2240.40 Reimbursement for Seminars/Other Functions:  If an employee is 
attending a function on behalf of the District and costs are incurred, such costs shall be 
subject to reimbursement on the following conditions: 
 
  2240.41 Attendance and overnight accommodations are pre-
authorized by the General Manager.  Payment for tuition for educational programs, 
overnight accommodations and transportation costs should be separately identified. 
 
  2240.42 The most economical mode and class of transportation 
reasonably consistent with scheduling needs and space requirements must be used, 
using the most direct and time-efficient route.  Government and group rates must be 
used when available. 
 
  2240.43 Reimbursement for meals shall not exceed the regular 
federal Meals and Incidental Expenses (M&IE) per diem rate established for Santa 
Rosa, California, unless appropriate receipts documenting the expenses are presented 
with the reimbursement request.  As of July, 2011, the rates are as follows (see 
www.gsa.gov/mie ): 
 
  Breakfast: $10, including gratuities 
  Lunch:  $15, including gratuities 



http://www.gsa.gov/mie





Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2240 TRAVEL / EDUCATIONAL REIMBURSEMENT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
  Dinner:  $31, including gratuities 
 
  2240.44 A Reimbursement Form must be completed with 
appropriate receipts attached. 
 
 2240.50 Expenses Not Reimbursed: The District will specifically not 
reimburse for personal expenses including any of the following: 
 
  (1)  Alcoholic beverages consumed, while attending 
        functions authorized under this policy. 
  (2)  The cost of any expenses incurred by spouses, registered domestic 
        partners, children or friends. 
  (3)  Items of a personal or long term nature not relative 
        to District business such as clothing, materials not  
        related to District business, or entertainment. 
  (4)  Mechanical repairs to private vehicles used in traveling 
        to and from the destination. 
  (5)  Any personal items lost or stolen while at approved 
        functions. 
 
 2240.60  Educational Assistance: Reimbursement for approved 
courses of study shall be in accord with the current Union MOU. 
 
 2240.70 Licensing/Certification. Reimbursement of costs for the 
State Department of Health licenses, certifications, and exams shall be in accord with 
the current Union MOU. 
 


TOC 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2250 ADVANCEMENT OF WAGES 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2250  Advancement of Wages 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2250.10 Policy:  Advancement of wages prior to a regular pay day is not a 
privilege which an employee may use at his/her discretion, but may be authorized by the 
General Manager at his/her discretion only.  
 
 2250.20 Request:  Employees requesting payment of wages in advance of 
regular pay days shall submit said request to the General Manager. 
 
 2250.30 Authorization:  The General Manager may authorize the requested 
advancement of wages to the extent the amount requested does not exceed the wages 
accrued (excluding applicable deductions) by the employee to the date of said request. 
 
 2250.40 Frequency:  Requests for advancement of wages may be 
submitted only once in any pay period, and frequent requests shall be grounds for denial 
of authorization. 
 


TOC 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2260 CONTINUITY OF SERVICE AND RE-EMPLOYMENT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


2260  Continuity of Service and Employment 
Date Approved: _______________ 
Date Revised:  October 6, 2011 
 
 
 2260.10 Policy:  For full-time employees in all classifications, length of 
continuous service with the District will be used as the basis for determining benefits 
such as sick leave and vacation time.  Length of continuous service will also be one of 
the considerations in promotions, demotions. layoff, and re-employment.  "Continuous 
service" means service that is uninterrupted by termination of employment and 
subsequent rehire by the District.   
 
 2260.20 Accumulation:  Continuous service with the District will start with 
the commencement of employment and will continue until an employee is discharged for 
cause; voluntarily terminates his/her employment; or is laid off. 
 
 2260.30 Continuity:  Continuity of an employee's service will not be broken 
by absence for the following reasons, and his/her length of service will accrue for the 
period of such absence during an industrial disability; while on authorized absence 
without pay for less than thirty (30) days in a calendar year; or while such absence is 
governed by applicable state and/or federal laws such as military, National Guard, or 
Fire service. 
 
 2260.40 Re-Employment List:  A re-employment list shall be maintained by 
the District.  The re-employment list shall be used to determine the order in which part-
time and temporary employees shall be employed when other than full-time work is 
available and additional employees are needed.  The list shall be arranged on the basis 
of seniority.  An individual is considered to have seniority if his/her length of service, as 
defined above is greater than that of another individual on the list.  An individual on the 
re-employment list may be rehired in order of seniority to fill a vacant position within a 
specific job classification if he or she was previously employed within said job 
classification or within a job classification requiring higher qualifications, and/or satisfies 
the qualifications as specified in the job description for said vacant position. 
 
 2260.50 Availability to Work:  When an individual on the re-employment list 
is called to work and is unavailable to work, the next person on the list having seniority 
and satisfying the conditions listed in Section 2260.40 above, shall be called.  If an 
individual is called to work three (3) times without being available to work, his/her name 
may be removed from the re-employment list.  An individual shall be removed from the 
re-employment list when he or she notifies the District that he or she has taken a 
permanent position elsewhere and is unavailable to work for the District. 
 
 2260.60 Eligibility for List:  Full-time employees who are laid off will be 
placed on the re-employment list and shall receive seniority based on previously earned 
length-of-service. 
 
 2260.70 Maintenance of Records:  Previous full-time employees who were 
laid off and called back for work not being full-time in nature will have their employment 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2260 CONTINUITY OF SERVICE AND RE-EMPLOYMENT 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 
service records maintained so that they accumulate length of service as they work on an 
"hour-for-hour" basis. 
 
 2260.80 Part-time Employees.  For regular part-time employees i.e. 
employees who work a minimum of twenty (20) hours per week, vacation and sick leave 
accrue on a pro rata basis based upon length of continuous service as described by 
Sections 2260.20 and 2260.30. 
 


TOC 
 
 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Policies And Procedures 
2270 EMPLOYER - EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
Date: October 6, 2011 
 


Section 2000 P&P, Draft, July 31, 2011  3 


2270  Employer - Employee Relations 
 Date Approved: December 22, 1992 
Date Revised:  May 11, 199, October 6, 20114 
 
 
 2270.10 Purpose.  It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water District  
to to follow State Law in Employer – Employee Relations by implementing Chapter 10, 
Division 4, Title l of the Government Code of the State of California (Sections 3500 et 
seq.) captioned “Public Employee Organizations,” by providing orderly procedures for 
the administration of employer-employee relations between the District and its employee 
organizations and for resolving disputes regarding wages, hours, and other terms and 
conditions of employment. 
 


TOC 
 





		2000  Executive Officer

		2001  Personnel Policy Review and Ratification

		2005  Employee Classifications / Compensation

		2010  Hours of Work and Overtime

		2020  Vacation

		2030  Holidays

		2040  Sick Leave

		2050  Leaves of Absence

		2060  Insurance and Retirement Benefits

		2070  Open Door

		2080  Internal Complaint Review

		2090  Termination, Discipline, and Rules of Conduct 

		2100  Personnel Records

		2110  Smoking / Dress / Grooming / Health Standards

		2120  Employment of Relatives

		2130  Safety Program

		2140  Security / Confidential Information

		2150  AIDS and AIDS-Related Conditions in the Workplace

		2170  Solicitation, Distribution and Bulletin Boards

		2180  Non-Fraternization

		2190  Harassment

		2200  Conflicts of Interest

		2210  Inspections and Searches

		2220  Drug Free Workplace

		2230  Proof of Right to Work

		2240  Travel / Educational Reimbursement

		2250  Advancement of Wages

		2260  Continuity of Service and Employment

		2270  Employer - Employee Relations






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: October 6, 2011  
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 11-25 ADOPTING THE 2010 
URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN AND METHOD 1 OF THE WATER 
CONSERVATION ACT OF 2009 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 11-25 which adopts the 2010 Urban 


Water Management Plan (UWMP) and Method 1 of the Water Conservation Act of 
2009 (SBx7-7)    


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none   


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Sweetwater Springs Water District is tasked with updating its UWMP for the 2010 
cycle.  The UWMP update is a State-mandated process that occurs every five years 
and this is the 2010 update.  As such we need to follow certain rules and plan 
format.    But the UWMP is also an important planning document for the District and 
includes information that is useful to our service area residents and cooperating 
public agencies and groups.   
 
We have discussed elements of the 2010 UWMP at prior meetings.  At the August 
meeting staff discussed population and water supply projections including the use of 
Method 1, the gallons per capita per day (gpcd) approach, to report on and measure 
meeting the 20% water use reduction goal of the SBx7-7.    
 
A major element of the 2010 UWMP is incorporation of the 20% water use reduction 
into the District’s water supply planning.  The four methods allowed by SBx7-7 
include: 
 
• Method 1: 80% of Base Daily Per Capita Water Use  
• Method 2: Performance Standards  
• Method 3: 95% of Regional Target  
• Method 4: Water Savings  
 
Method 1 is the simplest, most direct calculation and has been used for the 2010 
UWMP.  District customers have relatively low water use, District water use per 
capita has lowered since the baseline period and the District can meet the Method 1 
approach target through doing what we want to do regardless of State directives – 
reduce system leakage.  Method 2 requires substantial record keeping following a 







Resolution 11-25 Adopting the 2010 Urban Water Management Plan  2 
October 6, 2011 


range of water conservation best management practices, we can meet the target 
through Method 3 but that requires more calculations than Method 1, and Method 4 
is very complicated (I haven’t tried to figure it out) and was developed and included 
for water agencies who cannot meet the targets via the first 3 methods.  I believe 
the local cities are using Method 3. 
 
At the September meeting staff discussed water shortage contingency planning.  
Because the District relies 100% on groundwater that is underflow of the Russian 
River and the Russian River has minimum flow requirements, the District fairly 
immune to physical droughts.  There may be regulatory actions that require 
reductions in District water use and that is discussed in the 2010 UWMP.  Also, there 
are other events, such as floods and earthquakes, that could result in interruptions 
in the District’s ability to deliver potable water.  The District has an Emergency 
Preparedness Response and Recovery Plan which is updated annually to respond to 
these events.   
 
Presented at this meeting is the completed draft UWMP.  It is organized into the 
following chapters: 
 


• Chapter 1 Introduction – provides background information on the Plan, an 
overview of coordination with other agencies, a description of public 
participation and Plan adoption, and the general organization of the Plan.  


• Chapter 2 Description of Existing Water System – provides a description of 
the service area, climate, water supplies, and water supply facilities and 
distribution system.  The District’s water supplies are 100% groundwater 
from two well fields.  Water use in 2010 was 827 acre feet (AF).   


• Chapter 3 Historical and Projected Water Use – presents historical and 
projected water use.  Based on Census results, the 2010 District 
population was 7,493, a decrease of approximately 800 from the 2000 
Census.  The Plan projects that water use will continue a declining trend 
and be at 803 AF in 2020.  As discussed above, the UWMP includes Method 
1, the Gallons Per Capita Per Day (GPCD) approach, to meet the State’s 
(SBx7-7) 20% water use reduction target by 2020.  The 20% GPCD 
reduction results in a target of 90.2 GPCD by 2020.   


• Chapter 4 Water Conservation – addresses water conservation, including 
the District’s participation in the California Urban Water Conservation 
Coalition (CUWCC), the District’s participation in CUWCC Best Management 
Practices (BMP’s), and the relationship of the BMP’s to UWMP required 
Demand Management Measures (DMM’s). 


• Chapter 5 Water Supply Reliability and Water Shortage Contingency 
Planning – provides a comparison of future water supply to demand, 
including water shortage conditions.  The District’s water supplies can meet 
projected demand, including likely drought year water shortage scenarios. 


The draft UWMP has been available for review on the District’s website and hard 
copies of the draft have been available for viewing at the District office  and the 
Guerneville Branch of the Sonoma County Public Library.     


 







Resolution 11-25 Adopting the 2010 Urban Water Management Plan  3 
October 6, 2011 


 


 
There are not substantial differences from the prior UWMP’s (which were done for 2000 
and 2005).  A major addition is the incorporation of the 20% water use reduction target 
for 2020.  Of interest is the population data – the 2010 UWMP has substantially 
different population estimates than the prior UWMP’s – approximately 2,000 fewer 
people - and this difference is supported by the 2000 and 2010 Census data.  With 
these changes the 2010 UWMP provides good updated information on the water supply 
planning for the District and meets the requirements of the UWMP guidelines.   
 
Staff recommend approval of Resolution 11-25.  This will enable staff to forward the 
2010 UWMP to the California Department of Water Resources for their review.   
 
 







 
Resolution No. 11-25 


 
A RESOLUTION OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS ADOPTING THE 2010 URBAN WATER 
MANAGEMENT PLAN  AND ADOPTING METHOD 1, GALLONS PER 


CAPITA PER DAY APPROACH, FOR MEETING THE WATER 
CONSERVATION TARGETS OF THE WATER CONSERVATION ACT OF 


2009 (SBX7-7)   


 WHEREAS, the Urban Water Management Planning Act (UWMP Act), which is 
codified at California Water Code 10610 et seq, requires that every urban water supplier 
which provides 3,000 acre feet or more of water annually (AFY) or which directly or 
indirectly supplies water for municipal purposes to more than 3,000 customers shall 
prepare an Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP), the primary objective of which is 
to plan for the conservation and efficient use of water; and 


WHEREAS, the Water Conservation Act of 2009 (SBx7-7), which is codified at 
California Water Code 10608 et seq, has the general goal of a 20 percent reduction in 
water use Statewide, and requires each urban retail water supplier to develop urban 
water use targets and an interim urban water use target, in accordance with specified 
requirements and report those targets in its 2010 UWMP; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Sweetwater Springs Water District (District) supplies less than 1,000 
AFY but has more than 3,500 customers and thus must comply with both Acts; and 


WHEREAS, SBx7-7 requires that the urban water supplier adopt one of four 
methods to report on achieving the 20% reduction in individual water supplier water use 
by 2020 and the targets shall be reported in the 2010 UWMP and 


WHEREAS, staff have determined that Method 1, the gallons per capita per day 
approach (Method 1), is the most sensible approach for developing water use targets 
under SBx7-7 because it is easiest to calculate and understand approach to 
demonstrate that the District is meeting the 20% reduction target, and has reported 
such targets in the 2010 UWMP; and 


WHEREAS, the District has prepared a 2010 UWMP covering the District to 
meet the requirements of the UWMP Act; and 


WHEREAS, the 2010 UWMP and the method used to comply with SBx7-7 water 
use reduction targets must be adopted after public review and a public hearing by the 
District Board of Directors and must be filed with the California Department of Water 
Resources; and 


WHEREAS, the District has prepared a 2010 UWMP covering the District to 
meet the requirements of the Urban Water Management Planning Act; and 


WHEREAS, on September 16, 2011, the District circulated for public review a 
draft of the 2010 UWMP, in compliance with the requirements of the UWMP Act, and a 







Resolution 11-25, Adoption of 2010 UWMP      2 
October 6, 2011 


duly noticed public hearing was held on October 6, 2011, by the District Board of 
Directors in accordance with said notice; and 


WHEREAS, the District use of Method 1 to comply with SBx7-7 and the targets 
associated with meeting the requirements of SBx7-7 are included in the District’s 2010 
UWMP, and were the subject of a duly noticed public hearing held on October 6, 2011, 
by the District in accordance with said notice; and 


WHEREAS, the District coordinated preparation of the 2010 UWMP with other 
appropriate agencies in the area; provided notices to the County of Sonoma and the 
Sonoma County Water Agency; and encouraged the active involvement of diverse 
social, cultural, and economic elements of the population within the service area prior to 
and during the preparation of the plan as more fully described in the 2010 UWMP, in 
compliance with the requirements of the UWMP Act; and 


WHEREAS, a copy of the draft 2010 UWMP was made available for public 
inspection at the District’s office and on the District’s website on September 16, 2010 
and at the Guerneville Branch of the County of Sonoma Public Library on September 
21, 2011; and 


WHEREAS, on October 6, 2011, the District Board of Directors held a public 
hearing on the 2010 UWMP and on the adoption of Method 1 of SBx7-7, notice of the 
time and place of which was published in the Sonoma West Times, a newspaper of 
general circulation on September 21, 2011 and September 28, 2011; and 


WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors have reviewed and considered all 
comments received on the adoption of Method 1 and the draft 2010 UWMP. 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 


 1. Method 1 of SBx7-7 is the appropriate approach for the District use to  
report its compliance with meeting the water use reduction targets of SBx7-7 and the 
targets developed shall be included in the 2010 UWMP.  


2. The District’s 2010 UWMP is based on substantial evidence, include 
reasonable assumptions about future conditions, and meets all requirements of the 
Urban Water Management Planning Act. 


3.   Method 1 and the 2010 UWMP are hereby approved and adopted. 


 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on 
October 6, 2011, by the following vote: 
 
 







Resolution 11-25, Adoption of 2010 UWMP      3 
October 6, 2011 


 
 


           
      Jim Quigley 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Jim Quigley        
Gaylord Schaap       
Richard Holmer       
Victoria Wikle        







 


Sweetwater Springs Water District 
October 2011  DRAFT 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 







 


Table Of Contents 
Chapter 1. Introduction 


1.1 Urban Water Management Planning Act .......................................................................................... 1 


1.2 Resource Maximization and Import Minimization ............................................................................. 1 


1.3 Coordination ..................................................................................................................................... 1 


1.4 Public Participation and Plan Adoption............................................................................................. 2 


1.5 Plan Organization ............................................................................................................................. 3 


Chapter 2. Description of Existing Water System 
2.1 Description of Service Area and Customer Types............................................................................ 4 


2.2 Climate.............................................................................................................................................. 4 


2.3 Water Supply Sources ...................................................................................................................... 7 


2.3.1 Groundwater............................................................................................................................ 7 


Chapter 3. Historical and Projected Water Use 
3.1 Population - Historic, Current and Projected .................................................................................... 9 


3.2 Historical and Future Water Use..................................................................................................... 10 
3.2.1 Historical Water Use by Customer Type and Unaccounted For Water ................................. 10 
3.2.2 SBx7-7 Compliance and Future Water Use .......................................................................... 11 
3.2.3 Unaccounted-for Water and Additional Water Use ............................................................... 12 
3.2.4 Total Projected Water Use .................................................................................................... 13 
3.2.5 Water Sales to Other Agencies ............................................................................................. 14 
3.2.6  Projected Water Demand of Lower Income Households ..................................................... 14 
3.2.7  Recycled Water ................................................................................................................... 14 


Chapter 4. Water Conservation 
4.1 Introduction ..................................................................................................................................... 16 


4.2 Demand Management Measures Implementation.......................................................................... 19 
4.2.1 Foundational BMPs............................................................................................................... 19 


BMP 1. Utility Operations Programs ........................................................................................ 19 
BMP 1.1.1 Conservation Coordinator ............................................................................... 19 
BMP 1.1.2 Water Waste Prevention ................................................................................. 19 
BMP 1.1.3 Wholesale Agency Assistance Programs........................................................ 19 
BMP 1.2 Water Loss Control............................................................................................. 19 
BMP 1.3 Metering with Commodity Rates for All New Connections and 


Retrofit of Existing Connections........................................................................ 20 
BMP 1.4 Retail Conservation Pricing ................................................................................ 20 


BMP 2. Education Programs ................................................................................................... 20 
BMP 2.1 Public Information Programs .............................................................................. 20 
BMP 2.2 School Education Programs............................................................................... 20 


4.2.2 Programmatic BMPs ............................................................................................................. 21 
BMP 3. Residential .................................................................................................................. 21 


    iii







 


BMP 3.1 Residential Assistance Program ........................................................................ 21 
BMP 3.2 Landscape Water Survey ................................................................................... 21 
BMP 3.3 High-Efficiency Clothes Washers ....................................................................... 21 
BMP 3.4 WaterSense Specification Toilets....................................................................... 21 
BMP 3.5 WaterSense Specification for Residential Development .................................... 21 


BMP 4. Commercial, Industrial, and Institutional ..................................................................... 22 
BMP 5. Landscape .................................................................................................................. 22 


BMP 5.1 Accounts with Dedicated Irrigation Meters ......................................................... 22 
BMP 5.2 Commercial/Industrial/Institutional Accounts with Mixed-Use Meters ................ 22 


Chapter 5. Water Supply Reliability and Water Shortage Contingency Planning 
5.1 Frequency and Magnitude of Supplyl Deficiencies......................................................................... 23 


5.2 Water Supply Reliability.................................................................................................................. 23 


5.3 Water Shortage Contingency Plan ................................................................................................. 24 


5.4 Water Quality .................................................................................................................................. 25 


5.5 Drought Planning ............................................................................................................................ 25 


5.6 Transfer or Exchange Opportunities and New Water Supply Projects ........................................... 27 
 


List of Tables 
 


Table 1-1. UWMP Coordination  (DWR Table 1).................................................................................... 2 


Table 2-1. Summary of District’s Water System Customer Types.......................................................... 4 


Table 2-2. Climate (DWR Table 3) ......................................................................................................... 7 


Table 2-3  Current and Projected Water Supply Sources....................................................................... 8 


Table 2-4. Amount of Groundwater Projected to Be Pumped ................................................................ 8 


Table 3-1. Population – Current and Projected (DWR Table 2) ........................................................... 10 


Table 3-2. Historical and Current Water Use (DWR Tables 3,4) .......................................................... 11 


Table 3-3. CUWCC SBx7-7 Compliance/Targets................................................................................. 12 


Table 3-4. GPCD Targets ..................................................................................................................... 12 


Table 3-5. Water Deliveries and Unaccounted for Water – Projected, 2015 and 2020 (DWR Tables 5, 
6)........................................................................................................................................................... 13 


Table 3-6. Water Water Deliveries and Unaccounted for Water – Projected, 2025, 2030 and 2035 
(DWR Table 7)...................................................................................................................................... 14 


Table 4-1. Demand Management Measures and California Urban Water Conservation 
Council BMP Names........................................................................................................... 18 


Table 5-1. Basis of Water Year Data (DWR Table 27) ......................................................................... 24 


Table 5-2. Supply Reliability – Historic Conditions, AFY (DWR Table 28) ........................................... 24 


Table 5-3. Description of the Factors in Inconsistency of Supply (DWR Table 29) .............................. 24 


Table 5-4. Current Supply Reliability, AFY (DWR Table 31) ................................................................ 25 


Table 5-5. Projected Normal Water Supply and Demand Comparison, AFY (DWR Table 32) ............ 26 


Table 5-6. Supply and Demand Comparison – Single Dry Year, AFY (DWR Table 33) ...................... 26 


    iv







 


    v


Table 5-7. Supply and Demand Comparison – Multiple Dry Year, AFY (DWR Table 34) .................... 27 


 
List of Figures 


FIGURE 2-1 – LAND USE MAP – SOUTHERN PORTION OF DISTRICT ..........................................5 
 


FIGURE 2-2 – LAND USE MAP – NORTHERN PORTION OF DISTRICT..........................................6 


 
Appendices 


 
APPENDIX A – WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN....................................................... 29 
APPENDIX B – RESOLUTION OF ADOPTION OF THE URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN .................. 34 
APPENDIX C – REGIONAL COORDINATION ...................................................................... 35 
APPENDIX D – DRAFT WATER SHORTAGE ORDINANCE........................................................ 36 
APPENDIX E – URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN CHECKLIST ............................................... 38 
 


 
 
 
 


 


  







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    1


 
Chapter 1.  Introduction 
 
This Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP or Plan) addresses the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District (District) water system and includes a description of the 
water supply sources, historical and projected water use, and a comparison of water 
supply to water demands during normal, single-dry, and multiple-dry years. The 
District receives its water from two well fields, El Bonita and Monte Rio, which draw 
from  Russian River underflow in accordance with the District’s water rights (License 
13791).   
 
This section provides background information on the Plan, an overview of 
coordination with other agencies, and a description of public participation and Plan 
adoption. 
 
1.1  Urban Water Management Planning Act 


The District Plan has been prepared in accordance with the Urban Water 
Management Planning Act (Act) as amended, California Water Code Sections 10610 
through 10657. The Act requires every urban water supplier that provides water for 
municipal purposes to more than 3,000 connections, or supplying more than 3,000 
acre-feet (ac-ft) of water annually, to adopt and submit a plan ever five years to the 
California Department of Water Resources (DWR). This plan serves as a long-range 
planning document of the District’s water supply.  
 
In 2010, the District supplied 827 AF of potable water to approximately 3559 
customers within the District’s service area located in an unincorporated area of 
Sonoma County. Therefore the District is subject to the requirements of the Urban 
Water Management Planning Act. The District prepared its first UWMP in 2000; the 
UWMP was then updated in 2005. 
 
1.2  Resource Maximization and Import Minimization 


The District imports no water from other sources and makes a great effort to 
maximize its available water resources.  In particular, in the last 3 years the District 
has embarked on an aggressive Capital Improvement Program costing 
approximately $4.6 Million to reduce leaks and improve system water quality to 
District customers.   


1.3  Coordination 


The Act requires the District to coordinate the preparation of its Plan with other 
appropriate agencies in the area, including other water suppliers that share a 
common source, water management agencies, and relevant public agencies. The 
District coordinated the preparation of its Plan with the Sonoma County Agency 
(which is the parent agency of the Russian River County Sanitation District), and 
the County of Sonoma. Table 1-1 provides a summary of the District’s coordination 
with the appropriate agencies. In addition, the District based the water demand 
projections in this Plan with the Sonoma County General Plan which uses the 
Association of Bay Area Government’s (ABAG) demographic projections.  
 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    2


 


County Agencies 
Wastewater 


Agency   
Table 1-1.  UWMP 


Coordination 


Sonoma 
County 


Sonoma 
County 
Water 


Agency 


Russian 
River County 


Sanitation 
District 


Public 
Involvement 


Participated in developing the Plan     
Commented on the draft      


Attended public meetings      
Was contacted for assistance      


Was sent a copy of the draft Plan      
Was sent a notice of intention to 
adopt              


Not involved/No information      
 


1.4  Public Participation and Plan Adoption  


The District encouraged community and public interest involvement in the Plan 
update through public hearings and review/comment of the draft document.  The 
District sent a press release announcing preparation of the Plan to local 
neighborhood associations, the local chambers of commerce, and local newspapers, 
and posted a notice on its website.  Public hearing notifications were published in 
the Sonoma West Times. A copy of the published Notice of Public Hearing is 
included in Appendix B. The District’s Board meeting on August 4, 2011 which 
discussed the population and water supply projections and the Board meeting on 
September 1, 2011, which discussed supply reliability, and the public hearing on 
October 6, 2011, provided opportunities for all residents in the service area to learn 
and ask questions about their water supply and the District’s plans for providing a 
reliable, safe, high-quality water supply. Copies of the draft Plan were made 
available for public inspection at the District’s Office and the Guerneville Branch of 
the Sonoma County Library System, and online at the District’s website at 
www.sweetwatersprings.com.    
 
This Plan was adopted by the District Board of Directors on October 6, 2011. A copy 
of the adopted resolution is provided in Appendix B. The District will submit the 
updated UWMP to the Department of Water Resources Sonoma County, and the 
California State Library within 30 days after its adoption, as required by Section 
10644 of the UWMP Act. This updated UWMP contains information required by the 
UWMP Act, which is necessary to plan for the efficient use of urban water supplies 
within the District's service area. Prior to its adoption, the updated UWMP was 
reviewed by the District's Board of Directors and the public. The adopted UWMP will 
be made available for public review within 60 days after submission of the adopted 
UWMP. 
 
In accordance with the requirements of SBx7-7, Water Code section 10608.26, a 
public hearing was held on October 6, 2011, to discuss and receive public 
comments on the District’s proposed per capita water use targets for 2015 and 
2020. At this District Board of Directors’ meeting, after receiving public 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    3


input/comments, the Board of Directors adopted staff’s recommendation to move 
forward with using Method 1, the GPCD approach, to establish the District’s interim 
2015 and final 2020 gpcd target goals.  
 
The District is committed to the implementation of the programs discussed in this 
2010 UWMP. In particular, the District will implement the conservation programs 
outlined in the District’s Conservation Plan (as summarized in Chapter 6) to reduce 
per capita water use and meet the District’s SBx7-7 per capita water use targets for 
2015 and 2020. 


1.3  Plan Organization 


The UWMP is organized into the following sections: 
 


• Chapter 2 Description of Existing Water System – provides a description of 
the service area, climate, water supplies, and water supply facilities and 
distribution system 


• Chapter 3 Historical and Projected Water Use – presents historical and 
projected water use 


• Chapter 4 Water Conservation – addresses water conservation 


• Chapter 5 Water Supply Reliability and Water Shortage Contingency 
Planning – provides a comparison of future water supply to demand, 
including water shortage conditions.  


 
 
 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    4


Chapter 2.  Description of Existing Water System 
 
2.1 Description of Service Area 
The Sweetwater Springs Water District is located in the lower Russian River Basin of Sonoma 
County with its’ southern service area approximately eight (8) miles from the Pacific Ocean.  
The District occupies an area of about two thousand (2000) acres.  Service area maps of the 
southern and northern portions of the District are provided as Figures 1 and 2 below. 
 
The District was formed in 1988 for purposes of purchasing the water supply and distribution 
system from a private utility.  The purchase from Citizen Utilities, Inc. took place in April 1992.  
Water service is provided to all residential, commercial, industrial and agricultural customers, 
and for environmental and fire protection uses.    
 
As of December 2010 the District had 3,027 single-family residential connections, 346 multi-
family connections and 143 commercial and 23 public facility connections (Table 2-1).  These 
customers are served through two (2) separate water supply and distribution systems.  The 
southern system serves the Monte Rio area and consists of two (2) wells, a filtration plant, eight 
(8) storage tanks with a total storage capacity of 580,000 gallons and five (5) pressure zones.  
The northern system serves the Guerneville, Guernewood Park, Vacation Beach, and Rio Nido 
areas and consists of three (3) wells, eighteen (18) storage tanks with a total storage capacity of 
1,245,000 gallons and five (5) pressure zones.  
 


Table 2-1. Summary of District’s Water System Customer Types(a) 


Customer Type Number of Meters Percent of Total Meters 
Single Family Residential 3027 85 
Multi-Family Residential 346 10 
Commercial 143 4 
Institutional 23 1 
Other (Firelines) 20 1 


Total 3,559 100 
(a) Source:  Sweetwater Springs Water District, Number of Meters as of December 2010. 


 


2.2 Climate 
The Sweetwater Springs Water District is located approximately seventy-five (75) miles north of 
San Francisco and can be characterized as a northern coastal climate.  Summers are warm and 
generally rain-free and winters are cool, with an annual average of fifty-five inches (55”) of 
precipitation.  The source of the District’s water supply, the Russian River watershed, is 
influenced by its proximity to the Pacific Ocean. In common with much of the California coastal 
area, the year is divided into wet and dry seasons. Over 90 percent of the annual precipitation 
normally falls during the wet season, October to May, with a large percentage of the rainfall 
typically occurring during three to five major winter storms. Winters are cool, and below-freezing 
temperatures seldom occur.  Summers are warm and the frost-free season is fairly long. A 
significant part of the region is subject to marine influence and fog intrusion. The region is 
subject to wide variations in annual precipitation with some years exceeding eighty inches (80”). 
 Table 2-1 summarizes monthly average evapotranspiration rates  (ETo) and temperature at the 
Santa Rosa CIMIS station, and monthly average rainfall at the Guerneville Fire Station.







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


Figure 2.  Map of Southern System (Monte Rio) 


 


        5







        6


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


 


Figure 2.  Map of Northern System (Guerneville) 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    7


 
Table 2-2. Climate (DWR Table 3)   


   
  Jan Feb March April May June   


Standard Average EToa 1.1 1.6 3.1 4.4 5.5 6.2   
Average Rainfallb 10.5 9.3 6.8 3.4 0.38 0.13   
Average Temperaturea 45.4 47.7 50.3 52.5 56.8 61.0   
         


 Table 2-2 (continued)  
  


  July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Annual  
Average ETo 6.4 5.9 4.5 3.2 1.5 1.0 44.3 
Average Rainfall 0.26 0.22 0.87 4.0 9.4 9.9 55.1 
Average Temperature 62.5 62.5 60.7 56.6 49.8 44.4 54.2 
 


aData represents the monthly ETo average from January 2000 to February 2011 and was recorded from Santa Rosa 
CIMIS 
Station 83. 
bU.S. National Weather Service, Guerneville Fire Station, 1971-2000  
ETo, or evapotranspiration, is the loss of water from evaporation and transpiration from plants. 


 
 
 


2.3 Water Supply Sources 


The Sweetwater Springs Water District has reliable water supply which is 100 percent supplied 
by groundwater which is underflow from the Russian River.  
 
2.3.1 Groundwater 


The District operates three (3) wells in the Guerneville system and two (2) wells in the Monte 
Rio system.  No other users in the area affect these wells.  However, summer water flows in the 
Russian River are provided through discharges from Lake Mendocino (Coyote Dam and Lake 
Sonoma (Warm Springs Dam).   
 
In 2010 the District obtained approximately 614 acre-feet per year (AFY) from three (3) wells in 
the Guerneville System and approximately 213 AFY from two wells in the Monte Rio System.  
This 74/36% split in production has stayed very consistent over the history of production from 
these two well fields.   
 
The wells’ average depths are approximately 100 feet.  The El Bonita Well Field has a pumping 
capacity of approximately 1100 gallons per minute (gpm).  If run at that rate for an entire year, 
the El Bonita location would produce approximately 1770 af.  The Monte Rio Well Field has a 
pumping capacity of approximately 550 gpm which equates to approximately 885 AFY.  The 
District has a water rights license for Russian River underflow of 1,137 AFY (License 13971) 
which is below the production capacity of the two well fields, therefore the current and future 
limit to the District’s water supply is its water rights license as shown in Table 2-3.  Also shown 
in Table 2-3 is the 2010 actual production from the two well fields.     
 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    8


 


Table 2-3. Current and Projected 
Water Supply Sources 


2010 
Production 


2010 
Supply* 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 


Guerneville Wells (3) 
El Bonita well field 614 841 841 841 841 841 841 


Monte Rio Wells (2) 213 296 296 296 296 296 296 


Total 827 1,137 1,137 1,137 1,137 1,137 1,137 


Units of Measure: Acre-feet/Year;  
() Denotes the number of wells  
* Pro rata shares based on the District’s water rights license for up to 1,137 acre/feet per year from the two 
well fields. 


 
 
 


Table 2-4      
Amount of Groundwater Projected to Be Pumped - AFY     


Basin Name(s) 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 
Lower Russian River  827  821 803 781 810 837 
% of Total Water Supply* 73% 72% 71% 69% 71% 74% 
* % of total water supply based on water rights license of 1137 AFY; 100% 
of water produced by District is groundwater. 


 
Water usage has been trending down due to the significant replacement of leaking 
infrastructure and the regional water conservation effort.  We expect this trend to 
continue as shown in Table 2.4.   







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    9


Chapter 3.  Historical and Projected Water Use 
 
3.1   Population - Historic, Current and Projected  
The lower Russian River area, what is currently the service area of the District, 
developed in the early twentieth century as a summer tourist area for people in the 
Bay Area, up into the 1930’s.  During this period numerous hotels and resorts 
served the tourist population that arrived by train.  A transition took place during 
the 1940’s thru the 1960’s when small cabins were constructed for weekend and 
summer vacation use.  Much of the housing constructed was of poor quality and on 
small lots.  Many of these lots were on steep slopes and subject to winter flooding 
(and still are). 
 
The service area is now undergoing another transition.  In the decade prior to 2010 
home and rental prices escalated in other parts of Sonoma County encouraging 
more people to move to the Guerneville- Monte Rio area.  The 2008 economic 
collapse has changed this dynamic and burst the housing price bubble in the District 
service area as well as the other parts of Sonoma County.  It appears that housing 
sales are now (2010) being driven by foreclosure sales and many of those sales are 
for second homes.  The District service area has seen a decline in population of 
approximately 800 between the last two censuses (2000 and 2010) and the 
prevailing opinion is that this decline is due to the economic collapse.   
 
There is substantial uncertainty regarding population trends over the next twenty-
five years:  
 


• What will be the response to the economic collapse?  Will the service area 
return to the trend of being a bedroom community for Santa Rosa because of 
lower housing costs?  Will the activities of the Sonoma County Russian River 
Redevelopment Area be successful attracting greater economic development 
in the area?  Will the efforts to develop an ecotourism-based economy be 
successful? 


 
• Will a wastewater management solution be developed for the Monte Rio 


area?  The District’s southern system is largely subject to the Sonoma County 
Waiver Prohibition because the level of development in the area is not 
suitable for septic systems and there is no centralized sewer system or other 
centralized wastewater management solution for the area – all wastewater is 
treated by septic systems (or less).  Generally under the waiver prohibition 
policy, no parcel with development can have an expanded use, and no 
undeveloped parcels can be developed by waiving a septic system standard.  
 This issue is currently under investigation for solutions (and has been off and 
on for the past 20 years).  It is likely that any solution will include growth 
management controls, such as the construction of up to 10 new residential 
units per year, which included as a mitigation measure in the Environmental 
Impact Report (EIR) on the last failed proposed solution.  If a wastewater 
management system is not implemented, Monte Rio will remain under a 
waiver prohibition which essentially forbids any new construction. 


 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    10


Because of the uncertainty surrounding possible population trends and the lack of 
projections focused on the District’s service area, projecting the future population 
accurately is difficult.  The Sonoma County General Plan Update of 2009 forecast a 
population growth rate of 0.69% for the unincorporated area of Sonoma County.  
There is nothing more specific than that for the District’s service area.   The 
population projections show in Table 3.1 use the 2010 Census data projected out at 
the 0.69% per year trend.   
 
 


 Table 3-1 
 Population - Current and Projected  


  2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035   
 Service Area Population 7,493 7,644 7,798 7,955 8,115 8,279  
 
 
3.2 Historical, Current, and Future Water Use 
 
3.2.1 Historical and Current Water Use  
 
When Sweetwater Springs Water District began operations in 1992, taking over 
from Citizen’s Utilities, it inherited an antiquated, aging infrastructure with high 
distribution system losses.    Table 3-2 shows system losses in 2000 which are 
typical for the District for that time period. Since then the District has spent over 
$13 million in a Capital Improvement Program (CIP) to bring its water systems up 
to current standards providing better fire flow, less system losses, better water 
quality, and fewer service interruptions to its customers.  The District has an 
approved, but currently not totally funded, $9 million CIP for FY 2012-2018.  This 
effort needs to continue as system losses are still an unacceptable 28% and the 
District fixes an average of approximately 270 leaks per year.   
 
District total water use is in a declining trend.  The District has always had low per 
capita water use compared to other parts of California.  The coastal climate and 
forested nature of much of the District does not require much outside watering 
compared to more interior areas and the landscape patterns do not favor large 
lawns or other grassy areas.  The CIP program is having an effect in reducing 
system losses and the regional water conservation efforts, plus a concerted toilet 
replacement program by the Russian River County Sanitation District which has a 
service area largely similar to the District’s Guerneville system, has resulted in 
reduced overall water production by the District.   







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    11


 
 


 Table 3-2 Historical and Current Water Use (DWR Tables 3,4) 
Water Deliveries — Actual 2000, 2005 and 2010 


2000 2005 2010 
  Metered Metered Metered 


 Water use sectors # of 
accounts Volume # of 


accounts Volume # of 
accounts Volume


Single family 3,052 466 3,068 445 3,027 381
Multi-family 289 122 311 104 346 116
Commercial 149 97 152 107 143 83
Industrial           
Institutional/governmental 15 10 24 14 23 12
Landscape       
Agriculture 1 14       
Other (Fire Protection) 17 0 20 0 


 Total Delivered 3,521 695 3,572 670  3,559 592 
System Losses  393  277 235 


Total   1,088   947 827 
  


Units:    acre-feet per year 


 
3.2.2 SBx7-7 Compliance and Future Water Use 
 
Because the District has little planning information for its service area, projections of 
future water use are difficult to develop.  Development of SBx7-7 targets allows an 
approach that fits with State regulatory requirements.  The District fits well with 
following Method 1 of the SBx7-7 20x20 compliance target – the gallons per capita per 
day target.  The District’s Board has discussed this approach and has adopted Method 
1 as the SBx7-7 Method 1 for determining the District’s compliance targets. The 
Method 1 2020 compliance target of 90.2 gallons per capita per day (gpcd) is based on 
80 percent of the District Baseline gpcd of 113 as calculated by the CUWCC GPCD 
Target Calculator v1.5. The 2015 interim compliance target is 102 gpcd. In 
comparison, the District’s 2010 gpcd was 99.4.   The CUWCC GPCD Target Calculator 
v1.5 results are shown in Table 3-3.  
 
In calculating future gpcd’s water system loss targets have been employed.  The 2010 
system loss was 28%.  The District has a goal of getting to a system loss rate of 15%. 
 Using that as a goal for 2025, interim loss target goals can be developed for 2015 
(24%) and 2020 (20%) for the purpose of using the resulting gpcd’s (multiplied by 
population projections) to estimate the water supply needed in those years.  The 
District will strive to have a better loss percentage sooner, but for water supply needs 
purposes, these seem to be realistic goals.  Table 3-4 GPCD Targets shows actual and 
projected gpcd using the methods discussed here (actual water use, estimated 
population projections, and system water loss reduction goals).      







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    12


 
Table 3‐3 CUWCC SBx7‐7 Compliance/Targets  


(from CUWCC GPCD Target Calculator v1.5) 
GPCD in 2010  99.4 


Base daily per capita water use (10-15yr baseline) 112.8 
Base daily per capita water use (5yr baseline) 104.2 


Max. allowable GPCD target in 2020 (95% x 5yr baseline) 99.0 


 
Method 1: Baseline per Capita Water Use 


  
  


80% x Base daily per capita water use (10-15yr baseline) 90.2 
  


2015 Target: 101.5 
2020 Target: 90.2 


 
 
Table 3-4 shows that the District will meet the 20% reduction in baseline gpcd in 2020 
(90.2 gpcd), if the system loss reduction targets are met.  Water conservation 
programs will help supplement the effort to reduce District water use.        
 
 


   
 Table 3-4. GPCD Targets 


  


% 
System 
Loss/ 
Target 


GPCD 
based on 
System 


Loss 
Reduction


DWR/CUWCC 
Target* 


Baseline 
gpcd   113 113


2010 actual 28% 99.4 109


2015 target 24% 95.4 102


2020 target 20% 89.4 90.2


2025 target 15% 84.2  
*From CUWCC GPCD Target Calculator v1.5 
 
3.2.3  Unaccounted-for Water and Additional Water Use  


The projected quantity of unaccounted-for system water losses for the next 25 
years, in 5-year increments is shown in Tables 3-5 and 3-6.  This is the only “other 
water use and losses” as requested in DWR Table 11.  Therefore, Table 11 is not 
included in this Plan and unaccounted-water which is distribution system losses, has 
been directly included in the afore-mentioned Tables 3-5 and 3-6 which give the 
total picture on District projected water use. 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    13


 
At this time, the District does not use water for groundwater recharge to prevent 
salt water intrusion (saline barriers), for conjunctive use, or other groundwater 
recharge.  The District delivers no raw water to any customers.   
 
The District has no plans for desalinated water, nor is the District located such that 
desalinated water would be a feasible supply.   
 
The District does not directly manage any recycled water supplies.  Recycled water 
within the District’s service area is managed by the Russian River County Sanitation 
District and is discussed below in Section 3.2.7.  Recycled water within the District 
service area is not included in District reported water use in any of the tables in this 
document.   
 
3.2.4 Total Projected Water Use 


The resulting projected water demand, based on the sum of the metered water 
demand projections and unaccounted for water projections, is shown in Table 3-5 
and 3-6.  These projections show that District water use is projected to decline up 
to approximately 2030 when increasing population projections combined with a flat 
projected gpcd results in increased water use.   
 
 


Table 3-5 (DWR Tables 5, 6) 
Water Deliveries and Unaccounted Water — Projected, 2015 and 2020 


2015 2020   
  Metered Metered   


 Water use sectors # of 
accounts Volume # of 


accounts Volume   


Single family 3,098 406 3,176 417    
Multi-family 354 110 363 113    
Commercial 152 94 157 97    
Industrial           
Institutional/governmental 25 14 25 15    
Landscape         
Agriculture         
Other (Fire Protection) 20 0 25 0    


 Total Delivered 3,649 624 3,746 642    
System Losses  197  161    


 Total   821   803    
  


Units:    acre-feet per year 


 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    14


 
 


Table 3-6 (DWR Table 7)   
Water Deliveries and Unaccounted Water — projected 2025, 2030, and 2035   


2025 2030 2035   Metered metered metered 


 Water use sectors # of 
accounts Volume # of 


accounts Volume # of 
accounts Volume 


Single family 3,255 432 3,343 447  3,421 463 
Multi-family 372 117 382 121  391 125 
Commercial 162 100 162 104  162 107 
Industrial        
Institutional/governmental 25 15 25 16  25 16 
Landscape           
Agriculture           
Other 25 0 25 0  25 0 


 Total Delivered 3,839 664 3,937 688  4,024 711 
System Losses  117  122   126 


 Total   781   810    837 
    


Units:    acre-feet per year    
 


3.2.5 Water Sales to Other Agencies  


The District does not currently sell water to other agencies.  
 
3.2.6  Projected Water Demand of Lower Income Households  


As indicated in Senate Bill 1087 (SB 1087), the projected water demand of future 
lower income households must be included in the UWMP.  Lower income household 
is defined by California Health and Safety Code Section 50079.5 as 80 percent or 
less of the area median income (AMI), adjusted for family size and revised annually. 
According to the Sonoma County General Plan Update of 2009, the District’s service 
area has a total buildout of 97 new low income housing units.  These units will have 
an annual water demand of approximately 30 af per year.  This amount is well 
within the District’s ability to serve water.   
 
3.2.7  Recycled Water  


The Sonoma County Water Agency, acting through the Russian River County 
Sanitation District (RRCSD), built a wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) in 1978 to 
service a large portion of the Guerneville and Rio Nido area. Currently, the RRCSD 
only provides recycled water to the Northwood Golf course.  The amount provided 
to Northwoods Golf Course in 2010 was 53.5 af which offsets an equivalent amount 
of potable water that would be coming from District water supplies or groundwater 
directly pumped by the Golf Course.  This amount is expected to be similar during 
the planning horizon of this Plan unless RRCSD implements an additional recycled 
water distribution project.    
 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    15


The RRCSD is reviewing alternatives associated with its effluent disposal options to 
expand the use of recycled water use.  The RRCSD certified an EIR back in 2007 for 
its Irrigation Reliability and Beneficial Reuse Project.  As of September 2011, no 
project has been approved as RRCSD still needs to identify an appropriate first 
phase project to implement.  Limited preliminary planning of potential first phase 
alternatives indicates that this first phase project would provide an additional 
estimated potable water offset of 23 AFY within the Sweetwater Springs service 
area within the next 10 years.   
 
The District’s Monte Rio service area does not have a sewer system nor any 
collective wastewater management system – all wastewater treatment is through 
individual onsite wastewater treatment systems - septic systems.  Septic systems 
for this area have been in regulatory disfavor for many years – in 1997 Sonoma 
County declared a Waiver (from septic system regulations) Prohibition for the area. 
 No new parcel can be developed with a waiver of septic system regulations and 
redevelopment of existing structures can become very expensive in meeting septic 
system codes. 
 
There currently is a Wastewater Task Group investigating solutions for the Monte 
Rio wastewater management situation; no solution is expected to be approved 
soon.  Production of recycled water has not been discussed as part of this process.   
 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    16


 Chapter 4.  Water Conservation  
 
This section provides a description of the District’s water conservation program and 
its Best Management Practices (BMPs), which are also referred to as water demand 
management measures (DMMs) by the Urban Water Management Planning process. 
The District utilizes water conservation BMPs as a method to reduce water 
demands, thereby reducing water supply need for the District.  


4.1 Introduction 


The District is a member of the California Urban Water Conservation Council 
(CUWCC), joining in December 2010. The CUWCC was created to assist in 
increasing water conservation statewide, under a Memorandum of Understanding 
Regarding Urban Water Conservation (MOU). As signatory to the MOU, the District 
has pledged their good faith effort towards implementing BMPs identified in the 
CUWCC MOU. The two primary purposes of the MOU are:  
 


1. To expedite implementation of reasonable water conservation measures in 
urban areas, and  


2. To establish assumptions for use in calculating estimates of reliable future 
water conservation savings resulting from proven and reasonable 
conservation measures. Estimates of reliable savings are the water 
conservation savings that can be achieved with a high degree of confidence 
in a given service area.  


The MOU requires that a water utility implement only the BMPs that are 
economically feasible. If a BMP is not economically feasible, the utility may request 
an economic exemption for that BMP. The District has not requested economic 
exemption from any of the BMPs at this time.   In prior years, the CUWCC BMPs 
matched the Urban Water Management Planning Act DMMs one-for-one. The 
CUWCC recently regrouped their BMPs into the following five categories: 
 


1. Utility Operations Programs (DMMs C, D, J, K, L, M) 


2. Educational Programs (DMMs G, H) 


3. Residential (DMMs A, B, F, N) 


4. Commercial, Industrial, Institutional (DMM I) 


5. Landscape (DMM E)  


How the revised CUWCC BMP structure matches up with the UWMP DMMs is shown 
in Table 4-1. The first two categories (Utility Operations Programs and Educational 
Programs) are grouped as Foundational BMPs and do not have a water conservation 
savings that can be directly attributed to them. The three remaining categories are 
grouped as Programmatic BMPs.    
 
The District has chosen to use the gpcd approach to measuring achievement of the 
CUWCC BMP’s.  As such, the CUWCC requires participation in Foundational BMP’s 
but not Programmatic.  As a new member of the CUWCC, the District is still learning 
the details of participation, however, we expect to be fully compliant.   







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    17


 
Urban water suppliers that are members of the CUWCC may submit their most 
recent BMP Annual Reports for reporting years 2009-2010 to meet the requirements 
of DWR Water Code Section 10631 (f). The District is currently implementing all  
DMMs that relate to residential water use.  Landscape and Industrial DMMs have 
little relevance to the District as those water uses are small or nonexistent.  The 
level of implementation is described below.   Because the District is such a recent 
member, we did not submit a full report in 2011; we expect to do so in 2012.    







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    18


 


Table 4-1. Demand Management Measures and California Urban Water Conservation 
Council BMP Names (DWR Table E-1) 


CUWCC BMP Organization and Names (2009 MOU) UWMP DMMs 
Type Category BMP# BMP Name DMM# DMM Name 


1.1.1 Conservation Coordinator L Water conservation 
coordinator 


1.1.2 Water Waste Prevention M Water waste prohibition 


1.1.3 Wholesale Agency 
Assistance Programs J Wholesale agency 


programs 


1.2 Water Loss Control C System water audits, leak 
detection, and repair 


1.3 


Metering with Commodity 
Rates for All New 
Connections and Retrofit of 
Existing Connections 


D 


Metering with commodity 
rates for all new 
connections and retrofit of 
existing connections 


Utility 
Operations 
Programs 


1.4 Retail Conservation Pricing K Conservation pricing 


2.1 Public Information Programs G Public information 
programs 


Foundational 


Education 
Programs 


2.2 School Education Programs H School education programs 


A 


Water survey programs for 
single-family residential and 
multifamily residential 
customers(a) 3.1 Residential assistance 


program 


B Residential plumbing 
retrofit 


3.2 Landscape water survey A 


Water survey programs for 
single-family residential and 
multifamily residential 
customers(a) 


3.3 
High-Efficiency Clothes 
Washing Machine Financial 
Incentive Programs 


F High-efficiency washing 
machine rebate programs 


Residential 


3.4 WaterSense Specification 
(WSS) toilets N 


Residential ultra-low-flush 
toilet replacement 
programs 


Commercial, 
Industrial, and 
Institutional 


4 Commercial, Industrial, and 
Institutional I 


Conservation programs for 
commercial, industrial, and 
institutional accounts 


Programmatic 
(District is not 
required to do 
these 
programs by 
the CUWCC 
MOU because 
it is following 
the gpcd 
approach to 
measuring 
CUWCC 
compliance) 


Landscape 
5 Landscape E 


Large landscape 
conservation programs and 
incentives 


Source: 2010 UWMP Guidebook, Table E-1 
(a) Components of DMM A (Water survey programs for single-family residential and multifamily residential customers) applies 


to both BMP 3.1 (Residential assistance program) and BMP 3.2 (Landscape water survey) 


 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    19


4.2  Demand Management Measures Implementation  
 
This section describes the District’s implementation of each of the 14 urban water 
conservation BMPs through the end of calendar year 2010.   The District is 
implementing all applicable BMPs of the CUWCC’s MOU. The District actively 
implements all of the relevant BMPs as follows:  
 
4.2.1  Foundational BMPs 


The Foundational BMPs include Utility Operations Practices and Education Programs.  
 
BMP 1. Utility Operations Programs 
 
BMP 1.1.1 Conservation Coordinator  (DMM (L) Water conservation 


coordinator) 
 
The District conservation coordinator is the General Manager.  Total staff for the 
District is 11 and hiring a full-time conservation coordinator is not practical for a 
District this size.    
 
BMP 1.1.2 Water Waste Prevention  (DMM (M) Water waste prohibition) 
 
District Policy 3090.90 prohibits waste of water.  The policy is shown in Appendix A 
at A-3. The Policy prohibits wastage of water and provides for termination of water 
service after one warning.   
 
BMP 1.1.3 Wholesale Agency Assistance Programs  (DMM (J) Wholesale 
agency programs)  
 
This BMP does not apply because the District is not a wholesale water supplier. 
 
BMP 1.2 Water Loss Control  (DMM (C) System water audits, leak 
detection, and repair) 
 
Water loss control is very important for the District as approximately 28% of the 
water pumped from District wells and treated at the District treatment plants did 
not reach its customers in 2010.  In the past 10 years the District has completed 
capital projects totaling approximately $13 million and has an approved Capital 
Improvement Program of an additional $9 million (however, largely unfunded at this 
time) focused mainly on bringing the distribution system up to AWWA standards, 
including loss reduction.   
 
District staff actively seek out leaks and repair them as soon as possible.  In 2010 
the District had 267 total breaks that required 1059 hours of staff time to repair.  
The District also undertakes in-house projects to replace shorter sections of leaking 
distribution system.  In March 2011 staff received CUWCC training on the use of 
AWWA’s Water Loss Audit Software. This software is now being utilized by the 
District to complete a standard water audit and balance annually.  District staff has 
had leak detection training and is always looking for improvements in this area.   
 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    20


Meeting the 2020 gpcd target of 90.2 gpcd will require success with the District’s 
water loss control program.   
  
BMP 1.3 Metering with Commodity Rates for All New Connections and 


Retrofit of Existing Connections  ( DMM (D) Metering with 
commodity rates for all new connections and retrofit of existing 
connections) 


 
All District water connections are metered, as required by District Policies.  Metering 
of each water connection assists with the detection of water leaks and allows 
customers to manage their use of water. The District’s supply sources are also 
metered, and the data from the supply meters is checked against sales data to 
allow the District to identify water lost in the distribution system.  This information 
is tracked and reported monthly at District Board meetings, and is also available on 
the District’s website.    
 
BMP 1.4 Retail Conservation Pricing  (DMM (K) Conservation pricing)  
 
The water rate structure for the District is steeply increasing (approximately 2x with 
each tier) block rates with multiple tiers. Meters are read bi-monthly, with bi-
monthly (6 per/yr.) billing cycles. Billing units are 100 cubic feet (Hcf). 
 
BMP 2. Education Programs 
 
BMP 2.1 Public Information Programs   (DMM (G) Public information 
programs)  
 
Public information for District customers is regional and local.  The Sonoma County 
Water Agency (SCWA) provides regional water conservation information which 
benefit District customers.  The District provides its own message through the 
District’s website, press releases, water bill inserts, and public displays at the 
District office, including displays of SCWA-sponsored conservation efforts when 
requested.   
 
BMP 2.2 School Education Programs    (DMM (H) School education 
programs)  
 
The District’s Water Education Program is implemented by Sonoma County Water 
Agency (SCWA), the regional water wholesaler. SCWA provides a comprehensive 
program designed to help educators teach students the “value” of water as an 
important natural resource and to promote water conservation and stewardship of 
our watershed. The program includes classroom instructional presentations, field 
study opportunities, teacher trainings and workshops, free curriculum materials 
aligned with the existing California State Frameworks and the new California 
Science Standards, a lending library of videos, interactive models and printed 
materials, production of a newsletter for teachers and endorsement, participation 
and financial sponsorship of events, assemblies and workshops. All of the programs 
and materials are free to teachers in the service area.  
 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    21


4.2.2  Programmatic BMPs 


The Programmatic BPMs include Residential; Commercial, Industrial, and 
Institutional; and, Landscape BMPs. 
 
BMP 3. Residential 
 
BMP 3.1 Residential Assistance Program  (DMM (A) Water survey programs 
for single-family residential and multifamily residential customers; DMM 
(B) Residential plumbing retrofit)  
 
The District through its bi-monthly meter reading and utility billing process notifies 
customers who have unusually high water use or other evidence of high water use, 
such as water running off property or a spinning meter noticed during the meter 
read.  These customers are contacted by phone, letter and /or by leaving a door 
hanger at the premises.  The customer is asked to determine if a leak or other 
water related problem is ongoing at the premises. 
 
The Russian River County Sanitation District has offered a toilet replacement 
program for customers in the Sanitation District service area which is approximately 
the same as the Guerneville system in the District.  The District has offered toilet 
rebates for the Monte Rio system since January 2010.   
 
BMP 3.2 Landscape Water Survey   (DMM (A) Water survey programs for 


single-family residential and multifamily residential customers) 
 
The District does not have a program for landscape water surveys, as there are few 
large landscapes within the District service area. 
 
BMP 3.3 High-Efficiency Clothes Washers  (DMM (F) High-efficiency 
washing machine rebate programs)  
 
The District has not directly participated in this rebate program.  The Russian River 
County Sanitation District has offered this program for customers in the District’s 
Guerneville system.   
 
BMP 3.4 WaterSense Specification Toilets (DMM (N) Residential Ultra-
lowflush Toilet Replacement Programs)  
 
Toilets eligible for rebates and retrofits within the District and (we understand) 
required for new development and remodels meet the WaterSense specification.   
 
BMP 3.5 WaterSense Specification for Residential Development 
 
The District has no role in approving residential development design.  The County of 
Sonoma has implemented CalGreen Standards which are similar in concept to the 
WaterSense specifications, but we understand these Standards are not fully 
compliant with the WaterSense specifications at this time.  The District will follow 
this issue and support the County in becoming compliant with the WaterSense 
specification.   







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    22


 
BMP 4. Commercial, Industrial, and Institutional  (DMM (I) Conservation 
programs for commercial, industrial, and institutional accounts)  
 
The District has relatively few commercial customers and no programs directed at 
those customers.  Toilet replacement/rebate programs available through the District 
and the Russian River County Sanitation District are available to commercial 
customers as well as residential.   
 
BMP 5. Landscape  (DMM (E) Large landscape conservation programs and 


incentives) 
 
BMP 5.1 Accounts with Dedicated Irrigation Meters 
 
The District has no accounts with dedicated irrigation meters, nor an irrigation 
water rate.   
 
BMP 5.2 Commercial/Industrial/Institutional Accounts with Mixed-Use 


Meters 
 
The District has no accounts with mixed-use meters. 
 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    23


Chapter 5: Water Supply Reliability and Water Shortage 
Contingency Planning 
 
This section provides a comparison of the District’s projected water supply and 
demand from 2010 through 2035 during normal year, single‐dry and multiple‐dry 
years. The water demands included in this section are described in Section 2 and 
the water supplies are described in Section 3. This section also provides an 
overview of the District’s water shortage contingency planning and drought 
planning. A copy of the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan (Water Shortage 
Plan), which more fully describes the District’s plan for responding to drought and 
water shortage conditions, is included in Appendix G.   
 


5.1 Frequency and Magnitude of Supply Deficiencies 


The District has yet to experience a severe water supply shortage due to drought.  
This is a result of a number of factors including:  
 


• The large area comprising the Russian River Watershed which supplies 
the base flow for the lower Russian River; 


• Diversions from the Eel River to Lake Mendocino;   
• Releases from Lake Mendocino and Lake Sonoma insure adequate 


supply for the fishery, summer recreational use, and the District’s 
demand; 


•  The water supply is 100% groundwater and supply needs in recent 
years have been well within the water rights license amount of 1137 
AFY; and 


• District production capability is much greater than supply needs; 
  


 
However, diversions from the Eel River have been reduced to Lake Mendocino due 
to actions by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC).  The current 
D1610 rules regarding minimum flows in the River were developed based on the 
previous Eel River diversions and storage in Lake Mendocino may not be sufficient 
fulfill  required minimum flow releases during a prolonged regional drought. 
 
The District is subject to a number of possible non-drought-related problems with 
its water supply.  These could include a major earthquake affecting District facilities, 
a major flood resulting in contamination, a prolonged electrical outage, or a toxic 
chemical spill or other contamination of the Russian River.   The above events could 
result in the interruption of the water supply from as little a few hours to up to four 
or more weeks.  The District has an Emergency Preparedness and Response and 
Recover Plan to respond to these situations and this is recognized in the Water 
Shortage Plan. 
 
5.2  Water Supply Reliability 


Table 5-1 presents the basis years for projected supplies available during the 
historical single and multiple-dry water years. 
 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    24


Table 5-1. Basis of Water Year Data (DWR Table 27) 


Water Year Type Base Year(s)* 
Normal Water Year 2006 
Single Dry Water Year 2009 
Multiple Dry Water Years 2007-2009 
*
According to the Department of Water Resources Hydrologic Classification Indices, 2006 was a wet year, 2007 was a dry year, 


2008 was a critical dry year, and 2009 was a dry year. These are the most appropriate years for which data to complete Table 7-
2 (DWR Table 28) were available.  


 
The actual water supply available to the District for the specific Normal, Single Dry 
and multiple dry years identified in Table 5-1 are summarized in Table 5-2.   The 
reduction in demand in 2007 and 2008 is believed to be more a long-term reduction 
in water use rather than any response to the dry period.  In 2009 there was a 
District and regional call for water conservation which likely had some role in the 
10% reduction from 2006.   
 


Table 5-2. Supply Reliability – Historic Conditions, AFY (DWR Table 
28) 


Multiple Dry Water Years 


Sources 


Normal 
Water 
Year 


(2006) 


Single 
Dry 


Water 
Year 


(2009) 
Year 1 
(2007) 


Year 2 
(2008)  


Year 3 
(2009) 


El Bonita and Monte Rio 
Well Fields (metered water 
pumped from these wells)  


980 881 937 942 881 


Percent of Normal 100 90 96 96 90 
 
There are no known issues that could result in inconsistency of supply as shown in 
Table 5-3.  
 


Table 5-3. Description of the Factors in Inconsistency of Supply (DWR 
Table 29) 


Name of 
Supply Legal Environmental Water Quality Climatic 


Groundwater none None None None 
 


5.3  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 


The District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan, in Appendix A below complies with 
Section 10632 of the California Water Code, which states that the Urban Water 
Management Plan shall provide an urban water shortage contingency analysis that 
includes information on the estimated three-year minimum water supply, actions in 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    25


the event of a water shortage, water waste prohibitions, non-essential water uses 
during a water shortage, mechanisms for determining water use reductions, 
revenue and expenditure impacts and the emergency preparedness and plans for 
catastrophic events. Portions of the required Plan contents, such as the three-year 
minimum water supply, are included in this Chapter 5 of the UWMP. 
 


5.4  Water Quality 


The quality of the District’s water deliveries is regulated by the California 
Department of Public Health (DPH), which requires regular collection and testing of 
water samples to ensure that the quality meets regulatory standards and does not 
exceed MCLs.   The quality of existing groundwater supply sources over the next 25 
years is expected to continue to be good.  
 


5.5  Drought Planning 


The District’s minimum supply reliability for the next three years based on its 
current available supplies are shown in Table 5-5.  These amounts are the stated 
amounts in the District’s water rights license.  For purposes of drought contingency 
planning, Table 5-5 assumes a State Board order that reduces the Districts available 
water rights license amount by 25%.  Such an order has never occurred, is not 
expected, and is only included for drought planning purposes.  There are no 
hydrological nor hydraulic reasons to expect the District’s capability of producing its 
water rights license amount of 1,137 AFY would be compromised in a three-year dry 
period.   
 


Table 5-4. Current Supply Reliability, AFY (DWR Table 31) 


Multiple Dry Water Year Supply 


Source 


Average/ Normal 
Water Year 


Supply (2011) 
Year 1 
(2011) 


Year 2 
(2012) 


Year 3 
(2013) 


Groundwater 1,137 1,137 1,137 853 


 
A comparison of the projected normal year water supply available to the Town and 
customer demands from 2015 through 2035, in five-year increments, is shown in 
Table 5-6.  







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    26


 
Table 5-5. Projected Normal Water Supply and Demand Comparison, AFY 


(DWR Table 32) 
  2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 


Groundwater 1,137 1,137 1,137 1,137 1,137 
Demand Totalsa) 821 803 781 810 837 


Difference/Other Water Supply 
Sources 316 334 356 327 300 


Difference as a percent of Supply 
28% 29% 31% 29% 26% 


Difference as a percent of 
Demand 38% 42% 45% 40% 36% 


(a)       From Table 3-5 and 3-6. 


 
As shown in Table 5-6, the District has sufficient water supplies through 2035 to 
meet Normal Year water demands.  A comparison of the projected single dry year 
water supply available to the Town and customer demands from 2010 through 
2035, in five-year increments, is shown in Table 5-7. 
 


Table 5-6. Supply and Demand Comparison – Single Dry Year, AFY 
(DWR Table 33) 


  2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 
Groundwater(a) 853 853 853 853 853


Required Percent Demand 
Reduction From Normal 


Year(b) 10% 10% 10% 10% 10%


Demand Totals(b) 739 722 703 729 753
Difference between Supply 


and Demand 114 130 149 124 100
Difference as % of Supply 13% 15% 18% 15% 12%


Difference as % of Demand 15% 18% 21% 17% 13%


(a)      Assumes an order from State Board that reduces license amount by 25%.. 


(b)      Assumes a District call for a 10% reduction in demand by customers as part of the drought response. 
 


 
A comparison of the projected multiple dry year water supply available to the 
District and customer demands from 2010 through 2035, in five-year increments, is 
shown in Table 5-8. 
 
Tables 5-6 through 5-8 show that the District is in good condition to weather 
foreseeable drought conditions.  The District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
(Appendix A) provides the general plan and outlines measures to provide water 
supplies through a broader range of emergency conditions.   







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    27


 
Table 5-7. Supply and Demand Comparison – Multiple Dry Year, AFY (DWR Table 


34) 
    3-Year Dry Period Beginning 
    2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 


Supply Totals 1,137 1,137 1,137 1,137 1,137


Demand Totals 
821 803 781 810 837


Difference 316 334 356 327 300


Difference as % of 
Supply 28% 29% 31% 29% 26%


Multiple-dry year 
first year supply(a) 


Difference as % of 
Demand 38% 42% 45% 40% 36%


Supply Totals 


1,137 1,137 1,137 1,137 1,137


Demand Totals 
821 803 781 810 837


Difference 316 334 356 327 300


Difference as % of 
Supply 28% 29% 31% 29% 26%


Multiple-dry year 
second year 


supply(a) 


Difference as % of 
Demand 38% 42% 45% 40% 36%


Supply Totals 


853 853 853 853 853


Demand Totals 
739 722 703 729 753


Difference 114 130 149 124 100


Difference as % of 
Supply 13% 15% 18% 15% 12%


Multiple-dry year 
third year 
supply(b) 


Difference as % of 
Demand 15% 18% 21% 17% 13%


(a)       The first and second year water supplies and demands in the Multiple Dry Year scenarios are projected to be the same 
as the Normal Year water supplies and demands shown in Table 4-6. 


(b)       The third year water supplies and demands in the Multiple Dry Year scenarios are projected to be the same as the 
Single Dry Year water supplies and demands shown in Table 4-7. 


 
5.6 Transfer or Exchange Opportunities and New Water Supply 
Projects 
 
The District does not have feasible dry year water transfer or exchange options.  
The nearby production capacity of neighboring small water utilities is not large 
enough to effectively assist the District.  It is more likely that the District would be 
requested to assist these utilities in the event of a regional water shortage, or 
localized shortage affecting them.    
 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    28


Because the District’s supplies can meet projected demand, including likely drought 
year water shortage scenarios, the District has no plans for new water supply 
projects within the planning horizon of the 2010 UWMP Update.   







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    29


Appendix A.  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 


A.1.  Water Shortage Emergency Response  
During declared shortages, or when a shortage declaration appears imminent, the 
General Manager, or his designated representative(s), shall be responsible for 
notification of the appropriate personnel and agency representatives.  The 
personnel and agencies to be contacted include: The District Board of Directors, 
District Staff, the Russian River & Monte Rio Fire Districts, the California 
Department of Public Health, the Sonoma County Office of Emergency Services and 
such other agencies and/or persons as deemed appropriate.  The District may also 
notify all customers through its automated calling service, as appropriate.  The 
District’s general response to any emergency is also described in the District’s 
Emergency Preparedness Response and Recovery Plan.   
 
A.1.1.  Emergency Response Check List. 


 
The following Table A-1 summarizes the actions the water agency will evaluate 
during a water supply emergency.  
 


Table A-1.  Possible Disaster Response Activities 


Examples of Potential Actions to Discuss Check if 
Discussed 


Determine what constitutes a proclamation of a water shortage.  
Stretch existing water storage.  
Obtain additional water supplies.  
Develop alternative water supplies.  
Determine where the funding will come from.  
Contact and coordinate with other agencies.  
Create an Emergency Response Team/Coordinator.  
Create a catastrophe preparedness plan.  
Put employees/contractors on-call.  
Develop methods to communicate with the public.  
Develop methods to prepare for water quality interruptions.  


 
 
A.2.  Emergency Response Stages and Reduction Goals 
The District has a three-stage Emergency Response Plan (Table A-2) to invoke 
during declared water shortages.  The Emergency Response Plan includes voluntary 
and mandatory reductions, depending on the causes, severity, and anticipated 
duration of the water supply shortage.  
 


Table A-2 
Emergency Response Stages and Reduction Goals 


Shortage Condition Stage 
Customer 
Reduction 


Goal 
Type of Rationing Program 


15 – 25% I 25% Voluntary 
26 – 35% II 35% Mandatory 
36 – 50% III 50% or > Mandatory 


 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    30


A.2.1  Priority by Use 


Priorities for use of available potable water during shortages are based on the legal 
requirements set forth in the California Water Code, Sections 350-358.  Water 
allocations are established for all customers according to the following ranking 
system: 
 
• Minimum health and safety allocations for interior residential needs  (includes 


single family, multi-family, hospitals and convalescent facilities, retirement and 
mobile home communities, and fire fighting and public safety) 


• Commercial, industrial, institutional/governmental operations  (where water is 
used for manufacturing and for minimum health and safety allocations for 
employees and visitors), to maintain jobs and economic base of the community 
(not for landscape uses) 


• Permanent agriculture (orchards, vineyards, and other commercial agriculture 
which would require at least five years to return to production).  


• Existing landscaping  
• New customers, proposed projects without permits when shortage declared. 
 
A.2.2  Health and Safety Requirements 


Based on commonly accepted estimates of interior residential water use in the 
United States, Table A-3 indicates per capita health and safety water requirements. 
In Stage I shortages, customers may adjust either interior or outdoor water use (or 
both), in order to meet the voluntary water reduction goal. 
 
Under the Stage II mandatory rationing program, the District has established a 
health and safety allotment of FORTY-FIVE GALLONS PER CAPITA PER DAY (45 
gpcd), which is equivalent to 1.8 units (180 cubic feet) per person per month.  This 
amount of water is sufficient for essential interior water use.  Stage III mandatory 
rationing would require that most customers make changes in their interior water 
use habits (for instance, not flushing toilets unless “necessary” or taking less 
frequent showers).  
 
 


Table A-3 
Per Capita Health and Safety Water Quantity Calculations 


 Non-Conserving Fixtures Habit Changes 1 Conserving Fixtures 2 
Toilets 3 flushes x 5.5 gpf  16.5 3 flushes x 5.5 gpf 16.5 5 flushes x 1.6 gpf 8.0 
Shower 4 min x 4.0 gpm 16.0 4 min x 3.0 gpm 12.0 5 min x 2.0 10.0 


Washer 12.5 gpcd 12.5 11.5 gpcd 11.5 11.5 gpcd  11.5 


Kitchen  3 gpcd 3.0 2 gpcd 2.0 4 gpcd 4.0 


other 3 gpcd 3.0 2 gpcd 2.0 4 gpcd 4.0 


Total (gpcd)  51.0  44.0  37.5 
1  Reduced shower use results from shorter and reduced flow.  Reduced washer use results from fuller 


loads. 
2  Fixtures include ULF 1.6 gpf toilets, 2.0 gpm showerheads and efficient clothes washers. 


 
 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    31


A.2.3  Water Shortage Stages and Triggering Mechanisms 


Specific criteria for triggering the District's rationing stages are shown in Table A-4. 
 Examples of possible reduction methods are shown in Table A-5.   
 


Table A-4 
Water Shortage Stages and Triggering Mechanisms 


Percent 
Reduction of 


Supply 


Stage 15 - 25% 
(Voluntary) 


Stage II 25 - 35% 
(Mandatory) 


Stage III 35 - 50% > 
(Mandatory) 


Water Supply Condition 


Current Supply 
Total supply is 75 – 85% of 


“normal.” 
OR 


Total supply is 65 – 75% of 
“normal.” 


OR 


Total supply is less than 65% 
of  “normal.” 


OR 


Future Supply 


Projected supply insufficient to 
provide 75% of “normal” 


deliveries for the next two 
years. 


OR 


Projected supply insufficient 
to provide 65% of “normal” 
deliveries for the next two 


years. 
OR 


Projected supply insufficient to 
provide 50% of “normal” 


deliveries for the next two 
years. 


OR 


Water Quality 


Contamination of 20% of 
water supply (exceeds primary 


drinking water standards) 
OR 


Contamination of 30% of 
water supply (exceeds 
primary drinking water 


standards) 
OR 


Contamination of 40% or more 
of the water supply (exceeds 


primary drinking water 
standards) 


OR 


Disaster Loss Disaster loss Disaster loss Disaster Loss 


 
Table A-5 


Consumption Reduction Methods 
Examples of Consumption Reduction Methods Stage When Method Takes Effect 


Demand reduction program All stages 
Flow restriction III 
Restrict new connections III 
Use prohibitions II, III 
Water shortage pricing III 
Per capita allotment by customer type III 
Voluntary rationing I 
Mandatory rationing II, III 
Education Program All Stages 
Other  


 
A.3.  Water Shortage Ordinance 


The District has adopted a Wastage of Water Ordinance (3090.90) listed below.   
 
 3090.90 Wastage of Water:  No consumer shall cause or permit any 
water furnished to their property by the District to run to waste in any gutter or 
otherwise.  Notwithstanding section 3080.30-3080.60, the District may, after one 
warning, terminate the service of any consumer for failure to comply with the 
foregoing rule.  Restoration of service may be conditioned upon installation of a flow 
restrictor on the consumer’s service.  Fees will be charged for the flow restrictor and 
installation or removal in addition to the turn-on charge provided for in section 
3020.112. 
 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    32


The District would consider implementing a moratorium on new connections during 
declared water shortages, and revisions to the wastage of water ordinance or 
adoption of other water shortage-related ordinances as appropriate to the type of 
emergency.  A draft emergency water shortage ordinance is in Appendix E. 
 
A.3.1.  Excessive Use Penalties  


Any customer violating the regulations and restrictions on water use shall receive a 
written warning for the first such violation.  Upon a second violation, the customer 
shall receive a written warning and the district may cause a flow-restrictor to be 
installed in the service.  If a flow-restrictor is placed, the violator shall pay the cost 
of the installation and removal.   If water service is disconnected, it shall be 
restored only upon payment of the turn-on charge fixed by the Board of Directors. 
 
 
A.4.  Mechanism to Determine Reductions in Water Use 


Under normal water supply conditions, potable water production figures are 
recorded daily.  All customers are metered and are billed on a bimonthly basis.  
Production totals are reported monthly to the Field Supervisor and the General 
Manager, and are incorporated into the District’s water production report and the 
General Manager’s Report presented at each monthly Board meeting.  Bimonthly 
sales information is also incorporated into the General Manager’s monthly report.   
 
During a Stage II or Stage III water shortage, or during a water emergency, daily 
production figures will be reported to the Field Manager.  The Field Manager will 
compare the weekly production to the target weekly production to verify that the 
reduction goal is being met.  Weekly reports will be forwarded to the General 
Manager, the Board of Directors and the State Department of Public Health or other 
appropriate regulatory agencies.  If reduction goals are not met, the General 
Manager will notify the Board of Directors so that corrective action can be taken.  
 
A.5.  Revenue and Expenditure Impacts and Measures to Overcome 
Impacts 


The District maintains a reserve equal to 15% of its annual operating budget 
expenses (approximately $1.5 million Operating Budget expenses) for the purposes 
of dealing with emergencies and disaster-related expenses.  This reserve amount is 
$277,000 for FY 12.  The District has additional budget reserves for economic 
uncertainty, debt repayment and capital expenses.  The total District Reserve Policy 
amount is approximately $1 million.    
 
The analysis shown in Table A-6 Cost Impacts Associated with Water Shortages 
assumes that water revenues are consistent with metered use in the 2005/2006 
fiscal years upon which the District’s Rate Model is based.  It also assumes that 
total district operating expenses would increase by approximately 10%, or 
$150,000 during these major water shortage events.  Table A-6 shows the 
estimated cost impacts of the major shortage events: 
 
Table A-6  Cost Impacts Associated with Water Shortages 


 Stage II Stage III 


% Reduction in Annual Sales 35% 50% 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    33


Reduction in Water Sales Revenue $290,000 $400,000


Increased Operating Costs $150,000
 


$150,000


Total Net Reduction in Revenue $450,000 $550,000
 
 
As shown in Table A-6, the District would have sufficient reserves to sustain a major 
water shortage emergency for over one year, but the financial impacts of these 
unlikely events would be substantial.  During this period the Board of Directors 
would have ample time to assess the need for rate increases consistent with the 
type of water shortage.   It may be that a rate restructuring would be needed to 
encourage reduced water use while developing sufficient revenues for sustained 
operations.   
 
 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    34


  


APPENDIX B 
 
 


RESOLUTION OF ADOPTION – URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    35


Appendix C.  Documentation of Regional Coordination 
 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    36


Appendix D.  Draft Emergency Water Shortage Ordinance 
 


 ORDINANCE NO. XX 
 


AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE OF SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER 


DISTRICT DECLARING A WATER SHORTAGE AND PROVIDING 


PROVISIONS FOR CONSERVING WATER AND PROTECTING PUBLIC 


HEALTH  
 
  


WHEREAS, Northern California has been experiencing severe drought conditions 
for XX [months/years] [or other condition that necessitates ordinance], which has 
created water shortage conditions with District water supplies, and;  
 
WHEREAS, the water shortage conditions have created a water supply emergency 
such that District supplies are cut XX%; and  
 
WHEREAS, failure to adopt water conserving measures and provide methods for 
enforcing those measures could cause the District’s water supplies to be severely 
depleted and have the effect of endangering public health in the District’s service 
area; and  
 
WHEREAS, District staff have developed a water shortage contingency plan which 
sets out water reduction goals and priority water uses to reduce water use and 
protect public health by extending District water supplies; and 
 
WHEREAS, District staff have determined that supplies have been reduced XX 
percent and that level of reduction is consistent with Stage XX of the Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to sections 31026 and 31027 of the California Water Code, a 
county water district has the power to restrict the use of district water during an 
emergency caused by a drought or other threatened or existing water shortage 
conditions and to enact an ordinance that restricts and prohibits certain water uses 
during a water shortage, which ordinance becomes effective immediately upon 
adoption; and 
 
WHEREAS, it essential that the provisions of this ordinance be enacted immediately 
to protect public health. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District, County of Sonoma, as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Stage XX of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan is hereby declared. 
 
Section 2.  The following uses of water are declared nonessential and are 
prohibited: 
 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


    37


• Water use in outdoor areas resulting in runoff. The use of water which allows 
water to run off to a gutter, ditch, or drain. 


• The excessive use, loss, or escape of water through breaks, leaks or 
malfunctions in the water user's plumbing or distribution facilities. 


• The washing of vehicles, building exteriors, sidewalks, driveways, parking 
areas, tennis courts, patios or other paved areas without the use of a positive 
shut-off nozzle on the hose, which results in excessive run-off, except where 
necessary to dispose of liquids or substances that would endanger the 
public's health and safety. 


 
Section 3.  [Insert additional water use prohibitions as applicable by the severity of 
the emergency.] 
 
Section 4.  The  General Manager shall forthwith direct and cause the 
disconnection of the water service of any person or customer not in compliance with 
this ordinance. Such service shall be restored only upon the payment of the 
District’s turn-on charge and other applicable charges as provided in the District 
Policies and Procedures. 
 
Section 5.  [ADD CEQA COMPLIANCE LANGUAGE DEPENDING ON NATURE OF 
EMERGENCY] 


Section 6.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 
is for any reason held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 
unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions 
of the Ordinance.  The Board hereby declares that it would have passed this 
Ordinance and each section, subsection, sentence, clause and phrase thereof 
irrespective of the fact that one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses 
or phrases may be held invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
Section 7.  Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon 
adoption by the Board of Directors.  
 
This Ordinance was adopted on XXXXX X, 20XX, on roll call by the following vote: 
  
 Boardmember 1   
 Boardmember 2   
 Boardmember 3   
 Boardmember 4   
 Boardmember 5   
     
           
       Board President   
ATTEST: 
  
  
    
Clerk of the Board 
 
 
1715589.1 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


Appendix E. Urban Water Management Plan Checklist, Organized by Subject 
Calif. Water 


Code 
Reference 


Additional 
Clarification UWMP location No. UWMP requirement  


PLAN PREPARATION 


10620(d)(2)  Table 1-1 4 Coordinate the preparation of its plan with other 
appropriate agencies in the area, including other water 
suppliers that share a common source, water 
management agencies, and relevant public agencies, to 
the extent practicable. 


10621(b)  Appendix D 6 Notify, at least 60 days prior to the public hearing on the 
plan required by Section 10642, any city or county within 
which the supplier provides water that the urban water 
supplier will be reviewing the plan and considering 
amendments or changes to the plan. Any city or county 
receiving the notice may be consulted and provide 
comments. 


10621(c)  Appendix B 7 Provide supporting documentation that the UWMP or any 
amendments to, or changes in, have been adopted as 
described in Section 10640 et seq. 


10635(b)   Appendix C 54 Provide supporting documentation that the urban water 
management plan has been or will be provided to any city 
or county within which it provides water, no later than 60 
days after the submission of this urban water 
management plan. 


10642  Chapter 1 55 Provide supporting documentation that the water supplier 
has encouraged active involvement of diverse social, 
cultural, and economic elements of the population within 
the service area prior to and during the preparation of the 
plan. 


      
  


38







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


Calif. Water 
Code 


Reference 
Additional 


Clarification UWMP location No. UWMP requirement  


10642  Chapter 1 56 Provide supporting documentation that the urban water 
supplier made the plan available for public inspection and 
held a public hearing about the plan. For public agencies, 
the hearing notice is to be provided pursuant to Section 
6066 of the Government Code. The water supplier is to 
provide the time and place of the hearing to any city or 
county within which the supplier provides water. Privately-
owned water suppliers shall provide an equivalent notice 
within its service area. 


57 Provide supporting documentation that the plan has been 
adopted as prepared or modified. 


10642  Appendix B 


58 Provide supporting documentation as to how the water 
supplier plans to implement its plan. 


10643  Appendix B 


10644(a)  Appendix D 59 Provide supporting documentation that, in addition to 
submittal to DWR, the urban water supplier has submitted 
this UWMP to the California State Library and any city or 
county within which the supplier provides water supplies a 
copy of its plan no later than 30 days after adoption. This 
also includes amendments or changes. 


10645  Chapter 1 60 Provide supporting documentation that, not later than 30 
days after filing a copy of its plan with the department, 
the urban water supplier has or will make the plan 
available for public review during normal business hours 


SYSTEM DESCRIPTION 


8 Describe the water supplier service area.  10631(a)  Chapter 2 
9 Describe the climate and other demographic factors of the 


service area of the supplier 
10631(a)  Chapter 2, Table 


2-2 


      
  


39







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


Calif. Water 
Code 


Reference 
Additional 


Clarification UWMP location No. UWMP requirement  


Chapter 3, Table 
3-1 


10 Indicate the current population of the service area  10631(a) Provide the most 
recent population 
data possible. Use 
the method 
described in 
“Baseline Daily Per 
Capita Water Use.” 
See Section M. 


Chapter 3, Table 
3-1 


10631(a) 2035 and 2040 can 
also be provided to 
support consistency 
with Water Supply 
Assessments and 
Written Verification 
of Water Supply 
documents. 


11 Provide population projections for 2015, 2020, 2025, and 
2030, based on data from State, regional, or local service 
area population projections.  


12 Describe other demographic factors affecting the 
supplier’s water management planning. 


10631(a)  Chapter 3 


SYSTEM DEMANDS 


10608.20(e)  Chapter 3, Table 
3-3 


1 Provide baseline daily per capita water use, urban water 
use target, interim urban water use target, and 
compliance daily per capita water use, along with the 
bases for determining those estimates, including 
references to supporting data.  


NA 10608.36 
10608.26(a) 


Retailers and 
wholesalers have 
slightly different 
requirements 


2 Wholesalers: Include an assessment of present and 
proposed future measures, programs, and policies to help 
achieve the water use reductions.  Retailers: Conduct at 
least one public hearing that includes general discussion of 
the urban retail water supplier’s implementation plan for 
complying with the Water Conservation Bill of 2009.  


      
  


40







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


Calif. Water 
Code 


Reference 
Additional 


Clarification UWMP location No. UWMP requirement  


3 Report progress in meeting urban water use targets using 
the standardized form.  


10608.40  Table 3-3 


Chapter 3, Tables 
3-2 and 3-5, 3-6 


10631(e)(1) Consider ‘past’ to be 
2005, present to be 
2010, and projected 
to be 2015, 2020, 
2025, and 2030. 
Provide numbers for 
each category for 
each of these years. 


25 Quantify past, current, and projected water use, 
identifying the uses among water use sectors, for the 
following: (A) single-family residential, (B) multifamily, 
(C) commercial, (D) industrial, (E) institutional and 
governmental, (F) landscape, (G) sales to other agencies, 
(H) saline water intrusion barriers, groundwater recharge, 
conjunctive use, and (I) agriculture. 


NA 10631(k) Average year, single 
dry year, multiple 
dry years for 2015, 
2020, 2025, and 
2030. 


33 Provide documentation that either the retail agency 
provided the wholesale agency with water use projections 
for at least 20 years, if the UWMP agency is a retail 
agency, OR, if a wholesale agency, it provided its urban 
retail customers with future planned and existing water 
source available to it from the wholesale agency during 
the required water-year types  


10631.1(a)  Section 3.2.6 34 Include projected water use for single-family and 
multifamily residential housing needed for lower income 
households, as identified in the housing element of any 
city, county, or city and county in the service area of the 
supplier. 


SYSTEM SUPPLIES 


      
  


41







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


Calif. Water 
Code 


Reference 
Additional 


Clarification UWMP location No. UWMP requirement  


Chapter 5, 
several tables 


13 Identify and quantify the existing and planned sources of 
water available for 2015, 2020, 2025, and 2030. 


10631(b) The ‘existing’ water 
sources should be 
for the same year as 
the “current 
population” in line 
10. 2035 and 2040 
can also be 
provided. 


Chapter 2 and 4; 
Section 2.3.1 


10631(b) Source 
classifications are: 
surface water, 
groundwater, 
recycled water, 
storm water, 
desalinated sea 
water, desalinated 
brackish 
groundwater, and 
other. 


14 Indicate whether groundwater is an existing or planned 
source of water available to the supplier. If yes, then 
complete 15 through 21 of the UWMP Checklist. If no, 
then indicate “not applicable” in lines 15 through 21 under 
the UWMP location column.  


10631(b)(1)  Section 2.3.1 – 
license 


15 Indicate whether a groundwater management plan been 
adopted by the water supplier or if there is any other 
specific authorization for groundwater management. 
Include a copy of the plan or authorization. 


16 Describe the groundwater basin. 10631(b)(2)  Section 2.3.1 
17 Indicate whether the groundwater basin is adjudicated? 


Include a copy of the court order or decree. 
10631(b)(2)  NA 


10631(b)(2)  Section 2.3.1 18 Describe the amount of groundwater the urban water 
supplier has the legal right to pump under the order or 
decree. If the basin is not adjudicated, indicate “not 
applicable” in the UWMP location column. 


      
  


42







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


Calif. Water 
Code 


Reference 
Additional 


Clarification UWMP location No. UWMP requirement  


10631(b)(2)  Section 2.3.1 19 For groundwater basins that are not adjudicated, provide 
information as to whether DWR has identified the basin or 
basins as overdrafted or has projected that the basin will 
become overdrafted if present management conditions 
continue, in the most current official departmental bulletin 
that characterizes the condition of the groundwater basin, 
and a detailed description of the efforts being undertaken 
by the urban water supplier to eliminate the long-term 
overdraft condition. If the basin is adjudicated, indicate 
“not applicable” in the UWMP location column.  


10631(b)(3)  Table 2-3, 
Chapter 5 


20 Provide a detailed description and analysis of the location, 
amount, and sufficiency of groundwater pumped by the 
urban water supplier for the past five years 


Table 2-3, 
Chapter 5 


10631(b)(4) Provide projections 
for 2015, 2020, 
2025, and 2030. 


21 Provide a detailed description and analysis of the amount 
and location of groundwater that is projected to be 
pumped. 


24 Describe the opportunities for exchanges or transfers of 
water on a short-term or long-term basis. 


10631(d)  Chapter 2, 
Section 2.3.2 


10631(h)  Section 5.6 30 Include a detailed description of all water supply projects 
and programs that may be undertaken by the water 
supplier to address water supply reliability in average, 
single-dry, and multiple-dry years, excluding demand 
management programs addressed in (f)(1). Include 
specific projects, describe water supply impacts, and 
provide a timeline for each project. 


10631(i)  Section 3.2.3 31 Describe desalinated water project opportunities for long-
term supply, including, but not limited to, ocean water, 
brackish water, and groundwater.  


      
  


43







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


Calif. Water 
Code 


Reference 
Additional 


Clarification UWMP location No. UWMP requirement  


10633  Section 3.2.7 44 Provide information on recycled water and its potential for 
use as a water source in the service area of the urban 
water supplier. Coordinate with local water, wastewater, 
groundwater, and planning agencies that operate within 
the supplier's service area. 


10633(a)  Section 3.2.7 45 Describe the wastewater collection and treatment systems 
in the supplier's service area, including a quantification of 
the amount of wastewater collected and treated and the 
methods of wastewater disposal. 


10633(b)  Section 3.2.7 46 Describe the quantity of treated wastewater that meets 
recycled water standards, is being discharged, and is 
otherwise available for use in a recycled water project. 


10633(c)  Section 3.2.7 47 Describe the recycled water currently being used in the 
supplier's service area, including, but not limited to, the 
type, place, and quantity of use. 


10633(d)  Section 3.2.7 48 Describe and quantify the potential uses of recycled water, 
including, but not limited to, agricultural irrigation, 
landscape irrigation, wildlife habitat enhancement, 
wetlands, industrial reuse, groundwater recharge, indirect 
potable reuse, and other appropriate uses, and a 
determination with regard to the technical and economic 
feasibility of serving those uses. 


10633(e)  Section 3.2.7 49 The projected use of recycled water within the supplier's 
service area at the end of 5, 10, 15, and 20 years, and a 
description of the actual use of recycled water in 
comparison to uses previously projected. 


10633(f)  Section 3.2.7 50 Describe the actions, including financial incentives, which 
may be taken to encourage the use of recycled water, and 
the projected results of these actions in terms of acre-feet 
of recycled water used per year. 


      
  


44







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


Calif. Water 
Code 


Reference 
Additional 


Clarification UWMP location No. UWMP requirement  


10633(g)  Section 3.2.7 51 Provide a plan for optimizing the use of recycled water in 
the supplier's service area, including actions to facilitate 
the installation of dual distribution systems, to promote 
recirculating uses, to facilitate the increased use of treated 
wastewater that meets recycled water standards, and to 
overcome any obstacles to achieving that increased use. 


WATER SHORTAGE RELIABILITY AND WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLANNING b 


10620(f) no importation NA;   5 Describe water management tools and options to 
maximize resources and minimize the need to import 
water from other regions. 


10631(c)(1)  Chapter 5 22 Describe the reliability of the water supply and 
vulnerability to seasonal or climatic shortage and provide 
data for (A) an average water year, (B) a single dry water 
year, and (C) multiple dry water years. 


10631(c)(2) 100% groundwater NA 23 For any water source that may not be available at a 
consistent level of use - given specific legal, 
environmental, water quality, or climatic factors - describe 
plans to supplement or replace that source with 
alternative sources or water demand management 
measures, to the extent practicable. 


10632(a)  Appendix A 35 Provide an urban water shortage contingency analysis that 
specifies stages of action, including up to a 50-percent 
water supply reduction, and an outline of specific water 
supply conditions at each stage 


10632(b)  Table 5.5 36 Provide an estimate of the minimum water supply 
available during each of the next three water years based 
on the driest three-year historic sequence for the agency's 
water supply. 


      
  


45







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


Calif. Water 
Code 


Reference 
Additional 


Clarification UWMP location No. UWMP requirement  


10632(c)  Appendix A 37 Identify actions to be undertaken by the urban water 
supplier to prepare for, and implement during, a 
catastrophic interruption of water supplies including, but 
not limited to, a regional power outage, an earthquake, or 
other disaster. 


10632(d)  Appendix A 38 Identify additional, mandatory prohibitions against specific 
water use practices during water shortages, including, but 
not limited to, prohibiting the use of potable water for 
street cleaning. 


10632(e)  Appendix A 39 Specify consumption reduction methods in the most 
restrictive stages. Each urban water supplier may use any 
type of consumption reduction methods in its water 
shortage contingency analysis that would reduce water 
use, are appropriate for its area, and have the ability to 
achieve a water use reduction consistent with up to a 
50 percent reduction in water supply. 


40 Indicated penalties or charges for excessive use, where 
applicable. 


10632(f)  Appendix A 


10632(g)  Appendix A 41 Provide an analysis of the impacts of each of the actions 
and conditions described in subdivisions (a) to (f), 
inclusive, on the revenues and expenditures of the urban 
water supplier, and proposed measures to overcome those 
impacts, such as the development of reserves and rate 
adjustments.  


42 Provide a draft water shortage contingency resolution or 
ordinance. 


10632(h)  Appendix A 


10632(i)  Appendix A 43 Indicate a mechanism for determining actual reductions in 
water use pursuant to the urban water shortage 
contingency analysis. 


      
  


46







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


Calif. Water 
Code 


Reference 
Additional 


Clarification UWMP location No. UWMP requirement  


Appendix A 10634 For years 2010, 
2015, 2020, 2025, 
and 2030;  Quality 
is not an issue and 
that is stated in 
Appendix A 


52 Provide information, to the extent practicable, relating to 
the quality of existing sources of water available to the 
supplier over the same five-year increments, and the 
manner in which water quality affects water management 
strategies and supply reliability 


10635(a)   Chapter 5, Table 
5-8 


53 Assess the water supply reliability during normal, dry, and 
multiple dry water years by comparing the total water 
supply sources available to the water supplier with the 
total projected water use over the next 20 years, in five-
year increments, for a normal water year, a single dry 
water year, and multiple dry water years. Base the 
assessment on the information compiled under Section 
10631, including available data from state, regional, or 
local agency population projections within the service area 
of the urban water supplier. 


DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES 


Chapter 4 10631(f)(1) Discuss each DMM, 
even if it is not 
currently or planned 
for implementation. 
Provide any 
appropriate 
schedules. 


26 Describe how each water demand management measures 
is being implemented or scheduled for implementation. 
Use the list provided. 


10631(f)(3)  Chapter 4 27 Describe the methods the supplier uses to evaluate the 
effectiveness of DMMs implemented or described in the 
UWMP.  


      
  


47







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 2010 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 


      
  


48


No. UWMP requirement  


Calif. Water 
Code 


Reference 
Additional 


Clarification UWMP location 


28 Provide an estimate, if available, of existing conservation 
savings on water use within the supplier's service area, 
and the effect of the savings on the ability to further 
reduce demand. 


10631(f)(4)  Chapter 4 


29 Evaluate each water demand management measure that 
is not currently being implemented or scheduled for 
implementation. The evaluation should include economic 
and non-economic factors, cost-benefit analysis, available 
funding, and the water suppliers' legal authority to 
implement the work.  


10631(g) See 10631(g) for 
additional wording. 


Chapter 4 


32 Include the annual reports submitted to meet the Section 
6.2 requirements, if a member of the CUWCC and signer 
of the December 10, 2008 MOU. 


10631(j) Signers of the MOU 
that submit the 
annual reports are 
deemed compliant 
with Items 28 and 
29. 


Chapter 4 


 
 





		Item V-A - Staff Report re Res 11-25 2010 UWMP Adoption

		Meeting Date: October 6, 2011 



		Item V-A.1 Res 11-25 Adopting Method 1 and 2010 UWMP

		Item V-A.2 2010 Urban Water Mgmt Plan Draft

		Chapter 1.  Introduction

		1.1  Urban Water Management Planning Act

		1.2  Resource Maximization and Import Minimization

		1.3  Coordination

		1.4  Public Participation and Plan Adoption 

		1.3  Plan Organization

		2.1 Description of Service Area

		2.2 Climate



		2.3 Water Supply Sources

		2.3.1 Groundwater

		3.1   Population - Historic, Current and Projected 

		3.2.3  Unaccountedfor Water and Additional Water Use 

		3.2.4 Total Projected Water Use

		3.2.5 Water Sales to Other Agencies 

		3.2.6  Projected Water Demand of Lower Income Households 



		3.2.7  Recycled Water 

		4.1 Introduction

		4.2.1  Foundational BMPs

		BMP 1. Utility Operations Programs

		BMP 1.1.1 Conservation Coordinator  (DMM (L) Water conservation coordinator)

		BMP 1.1.2 Water Waste Prevention  (DMM (M) Water waste prohibition)

		BMP 1.3 Metering with Commodity Rates for All New Connections and Retrofit of Existing Connections  ( DMM (D) Metering with commodity rates for all new connections and retrofit of existing connections)



		BMP 2. Education Programs



		4.2.2  Programmatic BMPs

		BMP 3. Residential

		BMP 3.2 Landscape Water Survey   (DMM (A) Water survey programs for single-family residential and multifamily residential customers)

		BMP 3.5 WaterSense Specification for Residential Development



		BMP 5. Landscape  (DMM (E) Large landscape conservation programs and incentives)

		BMP 5.1 Accounts with Dedicated Irrigation Meters

		BMP 5.2 Commercial/Industrial/Institutional Accounts with Mixed-Use Meters









		Chapter 5: Water Supply Reliability and Water Shortage Contingency Planning

		5.1 Frequency and Magnitude of Supply Deficiencies

		5.2  Water Supply Reliability

		5.3  Water Shortage Contingency Plan

		5.4  Water Quality

		5.5  Drought Planning



		5.6 Transfer or Exchange Opportunities and New Water Supply Projects

		Appendix A.  Water Shortage Contingency Plan

		A.1.  Water Shortage Emergency Response 

		A.2.  Emergency Response Stages and Reduction Goals

		A.2.1  Priority by Use

		A.2.2  Health and Safety Requirements

		A.2.3  Water Shortage Stages and Triggering Mechanisms

		A.3.  Water Shortage Ordinance

		A.3.1.  Excessive Use Penalties 

		A.4.  Mechanism to Determine Reductions in Water Use



		A.5.  Revenue and Expenditure Impacts and Measures to Overcome Impacts



		APPENDIX B








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: October 6, 2011  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE FUTURE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
REVIEW  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discuss and provide direction for continuation of review 
and suggested changes to the District’s Policies and Procedures.    


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
Staff and Board members have spent many months reviewing Section 2000 of the District’s 
Policies and Procedures (P&P).  Adoption of Ordinance 47 which incorporates the changes 
from this review is on the agenda for this meeting.  The Section 2000 review was the first part 
of a general review of the District’s P&P.  It is now time to shift our focus to a different part of 
the P&P.   
 
The revisions to Section 2000 include formatting changes that make it a more 
Internet/Website friendly electronic document.  Staff would like to first reformat the entire 
P&P in a similar way.  The next question is what and how much do we want to review for the 
next phase.  Section 2000 took a long time – do we want a smaller portion of the P&P for our 
next review?   
 
Section 3000, either in part or in its entirety, needs many changes, and is appropriate for 
periodic review.  This Section contains the operating rules for the District and some of the 
policies are dated.   We need to revise the purchasing policy (Section 3700, or better 
conform our purchasing practices to this policy) and there are several numbers that need 
changing or reference to other locations with the correct numbers.   Some portions of this 
Section are quite new and are not in need of any changes.    





		Meeting Date: October 6, 2011 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: October 6, 2011  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE DESIGN SERVICES AND 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AND INSPECTION SERVICES FOR FY 
2013 CIP  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discuss and provide direction for negotiation of a 
contract for design and construction management and inspection services for the FY 
2013 CIP  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District has an aggressive Capital Improvement Program (CIP) with a priority aim of 
reducing system water losses.  The FY 2012 CIP which includes main replacement on 
Western, Eastern and Northern Avenues and Orchard Lane in the Guerneville System, 
and in the Foothill Drive area in the Monte Rio System, including work in  Beech Ave., El 
Rancho Way, Breen Ct., and Grahn Dr. is underway and near completion.  It is time to 
start design of the FY 2013 CIP (Table 1) which includes:   
 


• Replacement of approximately 1760 ft of main line on Starret Hill Road in Monte 
Rio with 22 services.  


• Replacement of approximately 1440 ft of main line on Lovers Lane in 
Guernewood Park with 24 services.  


• Replacement of Replace approximately 1,375 ft of main line on Middle Terrace in 
Monte Rio with 17 services, and   


• Elimination of dead end mains and creation of loops by installing 1,950 lf of new 
main and appurtenances in Canyon Seven Rd between Sequoia Rd and Paradise 
Lane in Rio Nido.   


 
Completion of these projects will reduce system leakage, improve water service and fire 
protection, and pave roads affected by the construction.   The estimated cost of the FY 
2013 CIP is $1,299,000 and these projects are 75% funded by the Russian River 
Oversight Committee (RRROC) and the Sonoma County Community Redevelopment 
Agency (CRDA).  By undertaking the design element of this project relatively soon, the 
project can be ready to start construction in late spring 2012 or early next summer.   
 
The FY 2012 CIP has had design services and construction management and inspection 
services provided by Coastland Engineering.  This contract was awarded through a 
request for proposals (RFP) process whereby the District reviewed several proposals by 
local engineering firms to determine the most qualified candidate. The awarded cost of 
that contract was approximately $170,000.   District staff’s experience with Coastland 







DESIGN SERVICES AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AND 
INSPECTION SERVICES FOR 2013 CIP 2  
October 6, 2011 
 


 


has been excellent.  The cost amounts and other elements of the RFP process from last 
year are still relatively fresh.  We expect the hourly costs and other related expenses to 
be similar to what was proposed by Coastland last year and for the proposed personnel 
to be similar.   I have talked with Coastland management and they are interested in 
doing the work.   Staff would like direction or concurrence from the Board to negotiate a 
contract with Coastland to provide the needed design services and construction 
management and inspection services for the FY 2013 CIP described in Table 1.   
 
 


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District FY 2013 Projects 
 


Starrett Hill Road (MR) Replace approximately 1760 ft of main line, 22 
services. $380,000 
Lovers Lane (GV) Replace approximately 1440 ft of main line, 24 
services. $300,000 
Middle Terrace (MR) Replace approximately 1,375 ft of main line, 17 
services. $290,000 
Canyon Seven Rd (GV) – Eliminate dead end mains and create loops by 
installing 1,950 lf of new main and appurtenances in Canyon Seven Rd 
between Sequoia Rd and Paradise Ln.   $329,000 


FY 2013 Total $1,299,000 
 





		Meeting Date: October 6, 2011 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: October 6, 2011  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets 
all known State and Federal water quality standards.   


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in August were 26,091 units 


(59.9.4 AF, Monte Rio cycle) and production was 86.7 AF.  Compared to one 
year ago, sales are less and production is very similar (68.1 AF and 86.9 AF, 
respectively).    Figure 1 shows the 12 month moving average since 
September 2006, data are available back to May 2001.   


 
3. Leaks:  The District spends much staff time addressing leaks and we have 


an extensive capital program to replace water mains to reduce leaks in the 
system.  In August we had 28 total leaks and spent 120 man-hours on 
them.   Those are much smaller amounts in leaks and man-hours compared 
to the prior month and more than August one year ago (24 leaks, 87 man-
hours).  Figure 2 is continued showing service and main leaks separately.  It 
shows that service leaks are continuing to increase, while main leaks are 
also increasing, but at a lower rate.     


 
4. Figure 3 is the 2011 daily flow at the Hacienda gage chart starting in June.   


Because we are having back to back wet years, I am expecting summer flow 
this year to be similar to last – so far that is happening.  Figure 3 has been 
changed to start in June and cut off maximum flows at 400 cfs – this shows 
the lower flows that we have this time of year in better detail; there were no 
flows below 400 cfs in May.   


 
5. 2012 CIP:  The Foothill Road, Monte Rio, part of the project is mostly 


completed – services are connected, paving is done and looks good.    The 
Drake Estates part (Guerneville) of the project is well underway.  Mainlining 
is completed and the contractor is working on the services.      


 







General Manager’s Report  2 of 4 
October 6, 2011 


6. Toilet Rebate Program:  No toilet rebates were issued in September.  A 
total of 69 rebates have been approved.     


 
7. In-House Construction Projects:  There were six in-house projects 


reported for September.  These were all meter-related projects which took 
56.75 man-hours to complete.         


 
8. Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP).  Approval of the UWMP is on 


this agenda.       
 


9. Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) Water Rights Permit Revision 
Protest.  The Board requested that this item be on the Board agenda after 
discussion with Supervisor Carrillo.  No new action on this item; I haven’t 
been contacted by Supervisor Carrillo nor staff from SCWA and I didn’t have 
time to call staff at the SCWA for an update on the Water Rights Permit 
Revision EIR. 


 
10. Rio Vista Terrace.  Pressure testing for Rio Vista Terrace has been 


scheduled for October 6, 2011.  I will discuss results at the Board meeting.       
 


11. Gantt Chart:   October in the Gantt Chart shows that the 2012 CIP 
should be completed during the month – progress on those projects has 
been noted above.    The Urban Water Management Plan public hearing is on 
this month’s agenda.  2013 CIP design is on this agenda.          


 
 


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since September 2006 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


Sep-06 Mar-07 Sep-07 Mar-08 Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11


Sa
le


s 
an


d 
Pr


od
uc


tio
n 


(A
F)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


D
iff


er
en


ce
 (%


)


Sales
Production
%Difference


 


 







General Manager’s Report  3 of 4 
October 6, 2011 


 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline Breaks 
Moving Annual Average Since September 2006


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


Sep
-06


Nov
-06


Ja
n-0


7


Mar-
07


May
-07


Ju
l-0


7


Sep
-07


Nov
-07


Ja
n-0


8


Mar-
08


May
-08


Ju
l-0


8


Sep
-08


Nov
-08


Ja
n-0


9


Mar-
09


May
-09


Ju
l-0


9


Sep
-09


Nov
-09


Ja
n-1


0


Mar-
10


May
-10


Ju
l-1


0


Sep
-10


Nov
-10


Ja
n-1


1


Mar-
11


May
-11


Ju
l-1


1


Sep
-11


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks
Service Breaks


Figure 3.  Russian River Summer Flow at Hacienda Bridge, 2011 Compared to Earlier Years 
and the 2000-2008 Average, Updated September 27, 2011


0


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


1-J
un


8-J
un


15
-Ju


n


22
-Ju


n


29
-Ju


n
6-J


ul


13
-Ju


l


20
-Ju


l


27
-Ju


l


3-A
ug


10
-A


ug


17
-A


ug


24
-A


ug


31
-A


ug
7-S


ep


14
-S


ep


21
-S


ep


28
-S


ep


Fl
ow


 (c
fs


)


2000-08 Avg


2009


2010


2011


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000







Jan-11 Feb-11 Mar-11 Apr-11 May-11 Jun-11 Jul-11 Aug-11 Sep-11 Oct-11 Nov-11 Dec-11 Jan-12 Feb-12 Mar-12 Apr-12 May-12 Jun-12 Jul-12 2012
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease Completed
2011-12 Budget Preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program Board 
Discussion 


December-11


•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews Draft 
Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April-11


•        Approve Budget May-11
2012-13 Budget Preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program Board 
Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews Draft 
Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action


•        Approve Budget
Capital Projects


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Starts


April-10


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Completed


October-10


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 2 Construction 
St t•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 2 Construction 
Completed
•        2012 CIP Construction Award of Contract


•        2012 CIP Construction Starts


•        2012 CIP Construction Complete


•        Update/Review District CIP


•        2013 CIP Design


2010 Urban Water Management Plan July-11 Public Hearing
Water Rights SCWA Protest SCWA Response
Building Lease


•        Lease Ends July-11
Policies and Procedures


•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Goals and Objectives


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 





		Meeting Date: October 6, 2011 



